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NOTICE 
To 

The Members, 

Madhucon Projects Limited 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 32nd Annual General 
Meeting of the Members of Madhucon Projects Limited will be 
held on Thursday, 29th September, 2022 at 03:00 P.M (IST) 
at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 1-7-70, 
Madhu Complex, Jubtipura, Kharnmam-507003 to transact 
the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
1, 

a) 

b) 

To receive, consider and adopt: 

the Audited Financial Statements of the Company in 
IND AS format for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2022 together with the Reports of the Board 
of Directors and Auditors’ thereon; and 

The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of 
the Company in IND AS format for the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2022 together with the report of 
the Auditors’ thereon. 

To appoint a director in place of Mr, Mohammad 
Shafi (DIN: 07178265), who retires by rotation and 
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

To appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration. 

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without 
modification, the following resolution as an 
Ordinary resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT to the provisions of 
Sections 139,141, 142 and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

(Auctit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re- 
enactment thereof} and pursuant to the 

Board of Directors of the 
Co, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 0072578), 

Hyderabad be and are hereby reappointed as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the second 
term of four consecutive years, who shall hold office 
from the conclusion of this 32nd AGM till the 
conclusion of the 36th AGM to be held in the year 
2026, at such remuneration as may be determined 
by the Board of Directors of the Company. 

z 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of 
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SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

4. Ratification of the Re-appointment of Mr. Seethaiah 
Nama (DIN:00784491) as Managing Director of the 
Company: 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modifications, the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT as recommended by the 
Nornination and Remuneration Committee 
of the board in accordance with the provisions of 
Sections 196, 197, 198 and 203 read with Schedule 
V and all other provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including eee 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof 
Debary ir fenio) and eootent Of ho retonbces be anes 
is hereby accorded for reappointment of Mr. N. 
Seethaiah, (DIN; 00784491) as Managing Director 
of the Company for the period of 3 years w.e.f, 1st 
May, 2022 on the existing monthly managerial 
remuneration of Rs.5,00,000/- (Five Lacs Only) 
without enhancement in remuneration due to the 
continuous losses incurred by the Company. 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of 
Directors of the Company be and are hereby 
authorised to do all such acts and deeds as may be 
necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
resobution.” 

Ratification of the reappointment of Mr. Madhava 
Rao Potla (DIN 00385838) as an independent 
director of the Company, 

To consider and, if thought fit, lo pass, with or 
without modifications, the following resolution as a 
Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 149, 152 and other relevant provisions of 
the Companies Act. 2013 and Rules made 

force), Articles of Association of the 
approval and recommendation of the nomination 
and remuneration committee, and that of the Board, 
Mr. Madhava Rao Potla (DIN 00385838), who 
holds office as an independent director up to 
September 28, 2022 be and is hereby reappointed 
2S an independent director, nol liable to retire by 
rolation, for a second term of five years with effect 
Se ee ee ee oe 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 
hereby suthorized to delegate all or any of the 
sronmeee > Svey Comune os Cues tere Senn bores bo 

10 any other officer(s) / authorized 
sreaneaairetts of the Company to do afl acts, 

 



deeds and things and take af such steps as may be 
necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 

Ratification of the of Mrs. Chinthapll 
Lakshimi Kumari (DIN 06942473) as an 
independent director of the Company. 

To consider and, # thought fit, to pass, with or 
withoul modifications, the following resolution as a 
Special Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 149, 152 and other relevant provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) 
or fe-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in 
force), Articles of Association of the 

approval and recommendation of the nomination 
and remuneration commitiee, and that of the Board, 
Mrs. Chinthaplli Lakshimi Kumari (DIN 06942473), 
who holds office as an independent director up to 
September 26, 2022 be and is hereby reappointed 
a$ an independent director, not liable to retire by 
rotation, for a second term of five years with effect 

ee 27, 2022 up to September 26, 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 
hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the 
powers to any committee of directors with power to 
further delegate to any other officer(s) / authorized 
representative(s) of the Company to do all acts, 
deeds and things and take all such steps as may be 
necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 

To appoint and approve the remuneration of the 
Cost Auditor for the financial year ending on 31st 
March, 2023. 

To consker and, if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modifications, the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or enactment(s) thereof, for the time 
being in force), the remuneration of Rs.1,50,000.00 
(Rupees One Lakh fifty Thousand only) inclusive of 
of taxes payable, M/s AS RAO & CO., Cost 
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000326), the 
Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct audit of 
cost records made and maintained by the 
for the financial year ending 31st March, 2023, as 
recommended by Audit Committee and approved 
by Board of Directors be and is hereby ratified. 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of 
Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
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authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as 
may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect 
to this resolution.” 

Approval for Non-Provision of the interest on 
Working Capital Loans & Unsecured Loans of the 

To consider and, if thought fi. fo pass, with or 
without ssomiactions: ten hikawing pancholen on 
an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the total intorest 
provisions on Rs. 670.88 Cr. and Rs. 45.09 Cr. 
oviano Cantal Legal and Toon Losa roapuctieel? 

to Rs. 715.97 Cr. for the full financial 
year 2021-22 be not applied and provided for in the 
books of accounts of the Company on the basis that 
the Company has submitted the One Time 
Settlement proposal to all Working Capital Banks 
and Financial institutions. Company is working for 
the approval, with required improvements, 
modifications, f any, as may be mutually agreed 

for Madhucon Projects Limited 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 11-08-2022 D. Malla Reddy 

Company Secretary 

1. The & Statement pursuant to Section 

2. 

3. 

4. 

xplanatory 
102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to 
Special Business to be transacted at the Annual 
General Meeting is annexed hereto, 

The Company has provided the facility to Members 
to exercise their right to vote by electronic means 
both through remote e-voting and e-voting during 
the AGM. The process of remote e-voting with 
necessary instructions is given in the subsequent 
paragraphs. 

The Company has appointed Mr. Venkata Krishna 
Reddy Sabbella, Practicing Company Secretary 
(Membership No. ACS 53083) (PCS No, 19542), to 
act as the Scrutinizer, to scrutinize the e-voting 
process in a fair and transparent manner and they 
have communicated their willingness to be 
appointed and will be avaiable for the said purpose. 

Amember entitled to atiend and vole at the Annual 
General Meeting (‘Meeting’) is entitled to appoint a 
proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of him/her- 
self and the proxy need not be a member of the 
Company. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be 
received by the Company not less than 48 hours 
 



before the meeting. Proxy form Is attached herein. A 

person can act as proxy on behalf of the members 
not exceeding 50 (Fifty) and holding in the 
aggregate not more than 10% (Ten percent) of the 
total share capital of the Company carrying voting 
fights. A member holding more than 10% (ten 
percent) of total share capital of the Company 

carrying voting nghts may appoint a single person 
@$ proxy and such person shail nol act as a proxy for 
any other person or shareholder as per rule 19 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014, 

In fine with the MCA Circulars, the notice of the 32st 
AGM along with the Annual Report 2021-22 are 
being sent only by electronic mode to those 
Members whose e-mail addresses are registered 
with the Company’ Depositories. Members may 
please note that this Notice and Annual Report 
2021-22 will be available on the Company's website 
at https:// www.madhucon.cominvestors/ annual 
reports/, websites of the Stock Exchanges Le. BSE 
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Limited and NSE Limited at www_bseindia.com 
and 

www.nseindia.com respectively, and on the 
website of KFintech at 

Nites //evoting. kfimtech.com, 

Members who have not registered their e-mail 
address are requested to register the same in 
respect of shares held in electronic form with the 
Depository through their Depository Participant(s) 
and in respect of shares held in physical form by 
writing to the Company's Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent, KFin Technologies Private 
Limited, (Unit: Madhucon Projects Limited) 
Selenium Tower B, Plot No. 31 & 32, Gachibowli 
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad- 
500 032, 

Brief profile of the Directors proposed to be 
appointed / re-appointed is given as under as per 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Name of Director Mr. Nama Seethaiah Mr. Madhava Rao Potla Mrs, Chinthaplli Lakshimi 

Kumari 

Date of Birth 03-03-1966 25-12-1959 21-06-1955 

Nationality indian Indian Indian 

Date of appointment 15-03-1990 28-09-2017 26-09-2017 

Qualifications Graduate of Civil Engineering | _B.com: LLB B.Sc.; BED 
Expertise in Functional industrialist & Business Legal Professional Retired Professional 

Area Business Professional 

Shares held in the 

Company 23,802 NIL NIL 

List of Directorships 4 unlisted public Itd., 2 unlisted public itd., 1 unlisted public Itd., 

held in other Companies | companies & 1 private companies. company 

ltd company 

Chairman/Member 

Committee of Boards of 

other Companies in 

which he/she is a 

Director NIL NIL NIL         

  

 



the provisions of Regulation 36(3) of the Listing 
Regulations. 

8. Members hokling shares in physical mode are also 
requested to register / update their e-mail address 
with the Company / KFintech for receiving all 
communicabons from the Company electronically, 

9, Members who are holding shares in physical form 
are advised to submit particulars of their bank 
account, viz. name and address of the branch of the 
bank, MICR code of the branch, type of account and 

Madhucon Projects Limited), Selenium Tower B, 
Ptot No, 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, 
Gachibowli, Hyderabad - 500 032, 

10, The Register of Members and Share Transfer 
Books of the Company will remain closed from 
Friday, 23rd September, 2022 to Thursday 29th 
September, 2022 (both days inclusive). 

11. Members are requested to note that, dividends F_Y. 
2014-15 if not en-cashed for a period of 7 years from 
the date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of 
the Company, are liable to be transfer to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF") on due 
date in November, 2022. 

12. Members seeking any information with regard to 
the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM 
are requested to write to the Company on or before 
Thursday, 22nd September, 2022 through email to 
cs@madhucon.com. The same will be replied by 
the Company sultably. 

ANNEXURE TO NOTICE: 

Explanatory Statement Pursuant to the provisions of 

Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013: 

The following explanatory statement sets out all material 
facts relating to the special business mentioned under Item 
Nos. 4to 8 of the accompanying Notice. 

ftem No.4: Ratification of the Re-appointment of Mr. 
Seethaiah Nama (DIN:00784491) as Managing Director of 
the Company: 

Mr. Seethaiah Nama, (DIN: 00784491) was appointed as the 
Managing Director of the Company for the period of 3 years 
w.e.f, 1st May, 2019 vide 29th Annual General Meeting of the 
company, held on 21st September, 2019, Accordingly, tenure 
of the period of 3 years was completed by 30th April, 2022. 
The Board approved re-appointment of Mr. Seethsiah Nama, 
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(DIN: 00784491) as Managing Director of the Company for 
the period 3 years w.e.f. 1st May, 2022 on the base of 
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee Meeting held on 20th April, 2022 and now 
proposed to seek Members approval of the same, in terms of 
the applicable provisions of the said Act and Rules made 
there under. 

Mr. Seethaian Nama, is not disqualified from 
appointed as a Director and Managing Director 
section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013. He 
communicated his willingness with consent to act 
Managing Director of the Company. He satisfies all 
conditions as set out in section 196(3 aOia) of Bie the said Act 
Part-! of Schedule V thereof and hence, is eligible 
sohcbeaard. Vie batts ke pene oo ete ts 
Notice pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (LOD 
Regulations. 

ke
t 
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Save and except Mr. Seethaiah Nama and his relatives to the 
extent of their sharehokding interest, if any, in the company, 
none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company are their relatives, in any way, concemed or 
interested in the aforesaki resolution. 

The Board recommends Ordinary Resolution set out in item 
No, 4 for the approval of members. 

litem no. 5: Ratification of the reappointment of Mr. Madhava 
Rao Potla (DIN 00385838) as an independent director of the 
Company. 

Mr. Madhava Rao Potla was appointed as an independent 
director of the pursuant to Section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, at the AGM 2017 by the members to 
hold office up to September 26, 2022 and he is due for 
retirement from the first term. Based on the recommendation 
of the nomination and remuneration committee, the Board, at 
meeting held on August 11, 2022 has recommended the 
reappointment of Mr. Madhava Rao Potia as an 
director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a second term of 
five years effective September 29, 2022 to September 28, 
2027. The Company has received consent letter and also 
received a notice under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 
2013 from a member, intending to nominate Mr. Madhava 
Rao Poila to the office of independent director. In the opinion 
of the Board and based on its evaluation, Mr. Madhava Rao 
Potla fulfills the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 
2013. The resolution seeks the approval of members for the 

of Mr. Madhava Rao Potla as an independent 
director of the Company pursuant to Sections 149, 152 of the 
Act and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof) and his office 
shall not be fable to retire by rotation. 

No director, key managerial personnel or their relatives 
except Mr. Madhava Rao Potla, to whom the resolution 
relates, is interested in or concemed, in passing the proposed 
aforesaid resolution. 

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set forth in 

 



item no. § for the approval of members. 

item no. 6: Ratification of the re t of Mrs. 
Chinthapili Lakshimi Kumari (DIN 56542473) as an 
independent director of the Company. 

Mrs. Chinthapili Lakshimi Kumari was appointed as an 
independent director of the Company pursuant to Section 
149 of the Companies Act, 2013, at the AGM 2017 by the 

members to hold office up to September 26, 2022 and she is 
due for retirement from the first term. Based on the 
recommendation of the nomination and remuneration 

committee, the Board, al meeting held on August 11, 2022 
has recommended the reappointment of Mrs. Chinthaplli 
Lakshimi Kumari as an independent director, not liable to 
retire by rotation, for a second term of five years effective 
September 27, 2022 to September 26, 2027. The Company 
has received consent letter and also received a notice under 
Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 fromm a member, 
intending to nominate Mrs. Chinthaptli Lakshimi Kumari to the 
office of independent director. In the opinion of the Board and 
based on its evaluation, Mrs. Chinthapili Lakshimi Kurnari 
fullilis the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013. 
The resolution seeks the approval of members for the 
reappointment of Mrs. Chinthaplli Lakshimi Kumari as an 
independent director of the Company pursuant to Sections 
149, 152 of the Act and the Rules made thereunder (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof) and 
her office shall not be Rabie to retire by rotation. 

No director, key managerial personnel or their relatives 
except Mrs. Chinthaplli Lakshimi Kumari, to whom the 
resolution relates, is interested in or concemed, in passing 
the proposed aforesaid resolution. 

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set forth in 
item no. 6 for the approval of members, 

item No. 7: To appoint and approve the remuneration of the 
Cast Auditor for the financial year ending on 31st March, 

The Board of Directors of the Company on the 
recommendation of Audit Committee approved the 
appointment and remuneration of Mis AS RAO & CO., Cost 
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000326) as the Cost 
Auditors of the Company to conduct the audit of the Cost 
Records of the Company for the financial year ending on 31st 
March, 2023. In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 14 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable 
oo iS Se Dees 8 SUSIE BORIS oF Cen uae 

payable to the Cost Auditor for the financial year ending 31st 
March, 2023, as set out in the Ordinary Resolution in 

ltam No. 7. 
None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personne! of the 
Company is concerned or interested financially or otherwise, 
in the said Resolution. 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED Fe 
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ttem No. 8: Approval for Non-Provision of the Interest on 
Working Capital Loans & Unsecured Loans of the Company: 

Approval for Non-Provision of the Interest on Working Capital 
Loans and Unsecured Loans: 
The board members discussed in this connection and that the 
Company has submitted the One Time Settlement (OTS) 
proposal to each of the Working Capital Banks and is working 
with them. The Company is hopeful to get it approved with 
suitable modifications, if any. It was further deliberated that as 
the Company has put up OTS proposal with each Working 
Capital Bank against their respective » Interest 
provision on working capital loans and unsecured 
not made. 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company is concemed or interested financially or othenwise, 
in the said Resolution. 

By Order of the board 

for Madhucon Projects Limited 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 11-08-2022 D, Malla Reddy 

Company Secretary 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING: 
1. Use the following URL for e-voting from KFintech 

website: https://evoting.kfintech.com. 

2. Members of the Company hokling shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on 22nd 
September, 2022, the cutoff date, may cast their vote 
electronically. 

3. Enter the login credentials i.e. User ID and password 
mentioned in your email. Your Folio No/DP ID CBent ID 
will be your User ID. However, if you are already 
registered with KFintech for e-voting, use your existing 
User ID and password for casting your votes. 

4. Afterentering the details appropriately, click on LOGIN. 
5. You will reach the Password change menu wherein you 

are required to mandatorily change your password. The 
new password shall comprise of minimum 8 characters 
with at least one upper case (A-Z), one lower case (az), 
one numeric value (0-9) and a special character (@, #,$ 
etc.). is strongly recommended not to share your 
password with any other person and take utrnost care to 
keep your password confidential. 

You need to login again with the new credentials. 
On successful login, the system will prompl you fo select 
the EVENT i.¢., Madhucon Projects Limited. 

8. On the voting page, the number of shares (which 
represents the number of votes) held by you as on the 
SEN ee: if you desire to cast all the votes 

to the resolution, enter all shares 
and click ‘FORTAGAINST as the case may be or 
partially in FOR’ and partially in ‘AGAINST’, but the total 
number in "FOR' and/or "AGAINST taken together 
should not exceed your total shareholding as on the cut- 
off date, You may also choose the option ‘ABSTAIN’ and 
the shares held will not be counted under either head. 

9. Members holding multiple folios / demat accounts shall 
choose the voting process separately for each folio / 

“o
> 

 



10, 

11. 

12, 
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demat account. 

Cast your vole by selecting an appropriate option and 
click on SUBMIT. A confirmation box will be displayed. 

Click OK to confirm else CANCEL to modify. Once you 
confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
During the voting period, Members can login any number 
of times till they have voted on the Resolution. 

The Portal will open for voting from 9.00 a.m. on 
Monday, 26th September, 2022 and closes at 5,00 
p.m. on Wednesday, 28th September, 2022 with E- 
Voting Sequence number (EVSN)—6883). 

Members of the Company who have purchased their 
shares after the dispatch of the Notice but before the 
cutoff date (22nd September, 2022) may contact 
KFintech at Tel No. 1800 309 4001 (toll free) to obtain 
login id and password or send a request to 

MADHUCOM 

13. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently 

14. 

Asked Questions (FAQs) for shareholders and e-voting 
User Manual for shareholders available at the download 
section of hitps://evoting.kfintech.com of contact 
KFintech at Tet No. 1800 309 4001 (toll free). 

Pursuant to SEB! Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/ 
CIRVP/2020/242 dated 9th December 2020 on “e-voting 
facility provided by Listed Companies”, e-voting process 
has been enabled to all the individual demat account 
holders, by way of single login credential, through their 
demat accounts / websites of Depositories / DPs in order 
to increase the efficiency of the voting process. Individual 
demat account holders would be able to cast their vote 
without having to register again with the @-Voting service 
provider (ESP) thereby not only facilitating seamless 
authentication but also ease and convenience of 
participating in e-voting process. 

Sharehokiers are advised to update their mobile number 
and e-mail ID with their DP ss in order to access e-voting 
facility. 

Procedure to login through websites of Depositories: 
  

NSDL CDSL 
  

  

o
o
o
 

NM 
2: 

Users already registered for IDeAS facility of NSDL 
Click on URL: hitps//eservices.nsdl.com. 
Click on the “Beneficial Owner icon under 'IDeAS’ 
section. 

Enter your User ID and Password for accessing IDeAS, 
On successful authentication, you will enter your IDeAS 
service login. 

Click on “Access to e-Voting’™. 

Click on Company name or 6-voting service provider and 
you will be re-directed to KFintach website for casting the 
vote during the remote e-voting period. 

Users not registered for IDeAS facility of NSDL 

To register, click on URL: hitps://eservices.nsdi.com 
Select “Register Online for IDeAS". 

Proceed to complete registration using your DPID, Chient 
ID, Mobile Number, ete. 
After successful registration, please follow steps given 
under Sr. No. t above to cast your vote, 

Users may directly access the e-voting module of 
NSDL as per the following procedure: 

Clickon URL: httpsy/wew.evoting.nsdl.com! 

Click on the button “Login” available under “Shareholder 
/ Member section. 

Enter your User ID (i.e. 16-digit demat account number 
held with NSOL), login type, Password / OTP and 
Verification code as shown on the screen 

On successful authentication, you will enter the e-voting 
module of NSOL 
Click on Company name or e-voting service provider and 
you will be re-directed to KFintech website for casting the 
vote during the remote e-voting period.   

Users already registered for Easi/Easiest facility of 
CDSL 
Click on URL: 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/homel/login or 
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi 
Enter your User ID and Password for accessing Easi / 
Easiest. 

c. Click on Company name or e-voting service provider 
for casting the vole, 

Users not registered for | Easi/Easiest facility of 
CDSL 
To register, click on 
https://web_cdslindia.com/myeasi/ home/login 

Proceed to complete registration using your User ID, 
Client Id, Mobde Number, etc. 

After successful registration, please follow steps give 
under Sr, No, 1 above to cast your vole, 

Users may directly access the e-voting module of 
CDSLas per the following procedure: 

Click on URL: www.cdstindia,com 
Provide demat account number and PAN 

System will authenticate user by sending OTP on 
registered mobile & email as recorded in the demat 
account 
On successful authentication, your will enter the e-voting 
module of COSL., 

Click on Company name or e-voting service provider and 
your will be re-directed to KFintech website for casting 
the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

URL 
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Procedure to login through their demat accounts / website of Depository Participant 
  

COSt.   
  

Individual shareholders hokding shares of the Company in Demat mode can access e-Voting facility provided by the Company 
using login credentials of their demat accounts (online accounts) through their demat accounts / websites of Depository 
Participants registered with NSDL/CDSL. An option for “e-Voting” will be available once they have successfully logged-in 
through their respective logins. Click on the option "e-Voting” and they will be redirected to e-Voting modules of NSDL/CDSL (as 
may be applicable), Click on the e-Voting fink available against the name of Company or select e-Voting service provider 
“KFintech” and you will be redirected to the e-Voting page of KFintecnh to cast your vote without any further authentication. 

  

Members who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are advised to use “Forgot User ID" / “Forgot Password” options 
available on the websites of Depositories / Depository Participants. Contact details in case of technical issue on NSDL website 

  

Contact details in case of technical issue on NSDL website Contact details in case of technical issue on COSL website 

  

  Members facing any technical issue in fogin can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@>nsdi.co,in 
Or call al toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30   

Members facing any technical issue In login can contact 
COSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 
23058738 or 22-23058542-43. 

  

15. Pursuant to SEB! Circular No. SEBIHO/CFD/CMD/ 
CIRIP/2020/242 dated 9th December 2020 on “e-voting 

facility provided by Listed Companies", e-voting process 
has been enabled to all the individual demat account 
holders, by way of single login credential, through their 
demat accounts / websites of Depositories / DPs in order 
to increase the efficiency of the voting process. Individual 
demat account hokjers would be able to cast their vote 
without having to register again with the @-Voling service 
provider (ESP) thereby not only facilitating seamless 
authentication but also ease and convenience of 
participating in e-voting process. 

16, The voting results declared along with the Scrutinizer's 
Report shall be placed on the Company's website 
www.madhucon.com and the website of the Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agent viz., evoting@kfintech.com 
immediately after the declaration of the result by the 

Chairman or a person authorized by the Chairman. The 
results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE 
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 
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MADCON 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 32° Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited Financial 
Statements tor the year ended March 31, 2022. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

      

  

  

  

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY (' Rs.in Lakhs) 

S.No. Paniculars Slandalone Year ended | Consolidated Year ended] 

(Audited) | (Audited) |~ (Audited) | ~ (Audited) 
1 | Incorne from Operations: 

(a) Net Sales! Income fram Operations 70614.85 | 64,655.05 | 94814.79| 90,916.23 

(b} Other income 1656.95 7,190.97 11745.99| 12,484.10 

Total Income 72271.80 | 71,646.02 | 100560.78| 1,03,400.33 

'— 2 | Expenses: 

(a) Cost of Materiats Consumed 51899.33 | 63,442.04 73573.07| 88,842.92 

(b) Changes in Inventory of Finished goods, 

Work-in-Progress and siock-in-trade . . 934.24 889.61 

(c) Employee benefits expense 1679.16 1,728,40 292022] 2,792.85 

(d) Other expenses 19308,89 | 10,288.63 | 2373070 1,994.51 

(e) Financial Costs 417.54 847.22 3137.00] 24,570.33 

(f) Depreciation and amortization expense 478.06 595.97 1409498 12,871.32 

Total Expenses 7378299 | 76,902.26 | 11839021] 1,31,961.54 

3 | Profit(Loss) Before Exceptional ems (1-2) (1511.19) | (5,056.25) | (1182943)| (28,561.21) 

4 | Exceptional toms Share of (Loss) from Associate Co., 982.39 982.39 

5 | Profit{Loss) Before Tax (3-4) (1511.19) | (5,056.25) | (10847.04)| (27,578.82) 

6 Tax Expense 

a) Current Tax = - - - - 

b) income Tax Refund Received (5,392.23) «| (6,392.23) 
c) Deferred Tax 1870.14 3,982.,68 1870.14| 3,982.68 

Total Tax (a+b) 1870.14 | (1,409.55) 1870.14| (1.40955) 

7 | Net Profit(Loss) After Tax (5-6) (3381.33) | (3,646.70) | (12717.18)| (26,169.29) 

Share of Loss transferred to Non-Controliing interest - - |  (2082,68)| (2,830.05) 

Profit\Loss) after Tax after Non-Controlting interest (3381.33) | (3,646.70) | (10634.51)| (23,339.24) 

Share of Profit. or Loss froen Associated Companies - - - - 

~Profit(Loss) after Tax after Share of Minonty 

intorest & Associated Companies ($881.53) | (S/646.70) | (108S4.51)) 25 999.24) 
8 Ji. Other Comprehensive Income 19.45 (35.65) 19.45 (35.65) 

ii, Amount not re-classifiadle to P&L = - (1.96) - 

Share of Other Comprehensive Income 

transferred to Non-Controlling Interest - - - - 

9 | Total Comprehensive Income (7+8) (3361.88) | (3,682.35) | {10617.03)| (23,374.90) 

10 | Paidupequityshare capital (Face VahusofRs. 1 each) 737.95 737.95 737.95 737.95 

14 | Other Equity §2191,.06 | 55,588.59 |(2,10,525.29) |(1,90. 160.04) 

12. | (i) Earning per share of Rs, 1/- each (not anrwalized) 

(a) Basic (4.58) (4.94) (14.41) (31.63) 

(b) Diluted (4.58) (4.94) (14.44) (31.63)                 
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Extract of Annual Return: 
Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12/1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2021, the annual return as referred under section 134(3)(a) of the Act for the financial year ended 31° March, 2022 is 

available on the Company website at www. madhucon.conmvinvesier/Annuairetum 

indian Accounting Standards: 
The Company has followed Indian Accounting Standards and accounting principles generally accepted in India in preparation 
of financial statements for the financial year 2021-22. 

Dividend: [Section 134(3)(K)} 
No dividend was declared on equity shares for the year ended 31.03.2022 due to Loss. 

Bosrd Meetings: 
The Board met 4 (Four) times during the financial year 2021-2022, The following are the dates of meeting convened in 
different Quarters of the financial year. 

  

  

  

                    

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter 

Meating No. Date Meeting No. Date Maeting No. Date Meeting No. Date 

592 09-07-2021 §93 13-08-2021 594 12-11-2021 595 09-02-2022 

6, Directors’Responsibility Statement: 

Pursuant to the requirement under section 134(3) {c) of the Companies Act, 2013, & is hereby confirmed: 

t That In the preparation of annual accounts for the financial year ended 31° March, 2022; the applicable Accounting 
Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating io material departures. 

& That the Directors have selected Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent, $0 as to give 3 true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Cornpany, at the 
end of the financial year and of the proGt or loss of the Company for that period. 

& That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the mainienance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with theprovisio ns of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities. 

lv, That the Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the year ended 31 March 2022 on a “Going Concer” basis. 

v, That the directors had taid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such intemal 
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively, 

vi, That the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance wilh the prajsions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

7. Adequacy of internal Financial Control: 

The Company has structured and implemented framework for Internal Financial Controts (IFC") in terms of the 
explanation to Section 134(5) (e) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board of Directors of the Company is of the opinion that 
the Company has sound IFC for the year 2021-22. The Company ts continuousty monitoring and identified the gaps if any, 
and inplements improved controls wherever the effect of such gaps would have a material effect on the Company's 

operations. 

Deciaration from independent Directors on Annual Basis: 

The Company has recetved Deciarations of independence as stipulated under section 1497) of Companies act 2013 and 
regulation 25 of the listing regulations from Independent directors confirming that he /she is not disqualified from continuing 
as independent Director, the samme annexed to this report as ANNEXURE-A. 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy: 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the policy for Remuneration of Directors, KMP & other 

Employees and the criteria has been formulated by the Commitiee for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 
of a Director. The Company's policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters provkied 

in Section 178{3) of the Act has been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report. 

Share Capital: 
The paid up share capital is Rs. 7,37,94.9404 of Rs.1/ each. There were no other changes thal have been made in the 

share capital of the Company during the year under review. The Details of Share Capital are given in the notes to the 
Financial Statements. 
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11. Pasticulars of Loans, Guarantees or investments wxier Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
given in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

12. Related Party Transactions: 

The transactions entered with the related parties by the Company for the year under review with respect to rendering of 
services were on arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of business. Hence Section 188{1) is not attracted to the 
Company. Thus disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company. There are no material related party 
transactions during the year under review with the promoters, Directors of Key Managerial Personnel. 

13. Material Changes and commitments affecting the financial position ofthe Company: 

There are no material and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company ocourred between the end 
of the financial year to the financial statements relate and the date of this report. 

14, Particulars regarding Energy Consumption, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Eaming and Outgo: 

Legg ypelint gga oc theta panlegie ts are ign coand hte nm hie bo belied onsnpaag fornia 
Pere Bey relating to Conservation of Energy. Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are 

furnished as ANNEXURE-4 to this report. 

15. Risk Management: 

Periodic assessments to identify the risk areas are carried out and management is briefed on the risks in advance to enable 
the to control risk @ properly defined plan. The risks are taken into account while preparing the annual 

them. 

16. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy: 

Sram nce aceng atti Grr ill edamame neaieaas ancaninteleel salad maintained 
Directors wes formed t recommend; 

a} The policy on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and 

b) a eetiee eee oR WI Seas EOD OP Nr AROS MOOT OO, BNO OE BOF SeSET SnD OE ee 

17. Formal Annual Evaluation: 

in compliance with the Act, 2013 and 17(10) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements), Regufations, 2015, the performance of the Board was carried out during the year under 

18, Reporton the Performance/Financial Position ofthe Subsidiaries /Associates/Joint Ventures Companies: 

A separate sialement containing the salient features of the financial statements of the subsidiary Companies/Associate 
Companies/Joint Ventures is prepared in Form AOC-1 as per the provisions of Section occ ag mls 2013 
read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as Amended and Is attached to Financial Statements 

19. Consolidstionof Accounts: 

in compliance with Regulation 33 of the SEB! (LOOR) , 2015 and in compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Ind AS 28 Investments in and joint ventures and Ind AS 110 Consolidated 

hase tea pacreige Rigo gsenese A praca gh mye rnin yp consolidated financial statoments for the financial 
ae sep pwr BAD ce duly audited by the Statutory Auditors which forms part of the Annual Report, 
Annual Accounts of the Subsidiary Companies and the reisted information will be made available to shareholders, 

who may be interested in obtaining the same at any point of time as have been kept for inspection by any 
shareholder at the Registered Office of the Company and also at its Subsidiary , 

20. Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel appointed and resigned during the Year, 

a) Change In Key Managerial Personnel during the year: 

1. Mr. Nama Seethaiah was reappointed as Managing Director fothe period of 3 years w.e.f. 1" May, 2022. 
2. Mr. MS Sivanand had resigned as the Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 21-03-2022. 
3. Mr. 0. Malla Reddy was appointed as the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer w.e.f. 21-03-2022. 

b) Change in Directors during the year: 
1, Mr. Madhava Rao Potla reappointed as Independent director of the Companyor the second term w.e.f, 20" 

September, 2022. 
2, Mrs, Chinthapalli Lakshimi Kumari reappoinied as independent director of the. Company for the 

second term w.e.f. 27” September, 2022. 
3, Reatification for the re-appointment of Mr. Seethaiah Nama (DIN: 00784491) as Managing Director of 

the Compan} w.e.f.1 May, 2022. 
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CEO and CFO Certification : 
In accordance with the Regulation 17(8) of the SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company have submitted a certificate for the year ended 31st 
March 2022 to the Board of Directors which forms part of the Annual Report. 

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy: 
The Company has established Vig? Mechanism for Directors / Employees to report their genuine concems or grievances. 
The Audit Comenitiae of the Company oversees the vigil Mechanism through the Committee. i provides for adequate 
safeguards against victimization of directors/ employees who avail of the mechanism, It also provides for direct access to 

the Chairman of the Audit Comenitiee. In case of repeated frivolous complaints, the suitable action will be initiated by the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 
2013; 

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment 

of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013, Internal Complaints Commitiee (KOC) has 
been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. Al employees (permanent, contractual, 
temporary trainees) are covered under this policy. 

During the financial year 2021-22, the Company received no complaints on sexual harassment. 

Deposits: 

The Company had not accepted or invited any Deposits and consequently no deposit has matured / become due for re 
payment a8 on 31“ March 2022. 

Audit Committee: 

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were heki during the year. The details pertaining to composition of Auda 
Cornmittee are included in the Corporate Governance Report 

Stakeholders’ RelationshipCommittes: 

The Committee focuses on shareholders’ grievances and strengthening of investor relations, The Commiltiee coordinates 

the services of the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents. There were no complaints pending for redressal as at 3st 
March, 2022. 

Statutory Asditors and their Report: 

P. Murali & Co..Chartered Accountants ( FRN 0072578) were reappointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the 
period of 4 (Four) Financial Years wet. FY 2022-23 to FY 2025-26 and expressed the willingness to hold the office up 
to the conclusion of the 36" Annual General meeting. They have fumished a consent fetter to the effect that their 
Proposed appointment within the limits specified under section 141(1) (g) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Cost Auditors; 

The Board of Directors, on recommendation of Audit Committee appointed AS RAO & CO,, Cost Accountants 

(Registration No, 000326) as the Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct audit of cost records made and maintained by 
the Company pertaining to Works Contracts, Construction of Roads, etc. for financial year commencing ont “ April, 2022 
and ending on 31" March, 2023. 

Secretarial Auditors and Secretarial Audit Report: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appoiniment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s Venkata Krishna & Associates, Company Secretaries (ACS 
$3083 and CP No.19542) has been appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the financial year 202223 to 
carry out the Secretarial Audit and issue report thereon. Secretarial Audil report issued for the financial year anded 31” 
March, 2022 by M/s Venkata Krishna & Associates, Company Secretaries is annexed to this Report as ANNEXURE IL. 

30. Listing With Stock Exchanges: 

The Company's securities have been listed with Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE), and National Stock Exchange (NSE). 

Listing fee has been paid to BSE and NSE within the prescribed time Emit ss set in Regulation 14 of Listing Regulations 

for the Financial Year 202-2022. 
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31. Particulars of Employees: 

The Company has not employed any individual whose remuneration falls within the purview of the Smits prescribed under 
the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rutes, 2014. 

32. Depository System : 

As the Members are aware, your Company's shares are tradable compulsorily in electronic form and your Company has 
established connectivity with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) & National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL). in view of the numerous advantages offered by the depository system, the members are requested to avail the 

facility of Demeteriatization of the Company's shares on CDSL or NSDL. The ISIN allotted to the Company's Equity shares 
is INE 378001032 

3. Prevention of Insider Trading: 

Your Company has in place code of conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by designated persons and code of 
practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information which is in adherence to the SEBI 
(Prohibition of insider trading) Amendment Regulations, 2018, The disclosures received pursuant to this code and the 
Regulations are disseminated to the Stock Exchanges within prescribed time irnit. The Report of compliance officer was 
placed before the Board. The code is available at Ge company’s website at the following fink waw.madhucon.com. 

34. Corporate Governance and Shareholders Information: 

As per SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a Report on Corporate Govemance 
forming part of this Report, together with the Practising Company SecretariesCertificaie regarding the compliance of the 
conditions of Corporate Governance ts given in a separate section in the Annual Report. 

35. Appreciations: 

The Directors wish to express their appreciation for the assistance and continued ceoperation received from the Central 
and State Govemments, Banks, Financial institutions, JV partners, clients, consultants,-sub contractors, Customers, 
Suppliers and aiso the Directors wish to thank all the employees for the dedicated contribution, support and continued 
co-operation throughout the year al all levels, 

For and on behalf of the Board of Madhucon Projects Limited, 

Sd/- Sd/- 

(N. Seethalah) {Mohammad Shafi) 
Place; Hyderabad 
Dato:11-08-2022 Managing Director Whole-time Director 

DIN: 00784491 DIN: 07178265 

INFORMATION ASPER SECTION 134 (3) (F) THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 READ 
WITHRULE 8(3) OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS)RULES, 2014 

A  CONSERVATIONOFENERGY: 
hae ei ese cx sche pep eh lg ii 

However, energy conservation measures are taken up wherevor required 

8 TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

The Company ts constantly updating &s technology in the areas wherever necessary for improving the 
productivity, efficiency and quailty of Its performance. 

C FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO; NIL 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ANNEXURE - | 

L Industry Structure and Developments: 

Infrastructure sector is a key driver for the Indian economy. The sector is highly responsible for propelling India’s overall 
development and enjoys intense focus from Government for initiating policies that woukl ensure time-bound creation of world class 
infrastructure in the country. Infrastructure sector includes power, bridges, dams, roads, and urban infrastructure development. 
india has the second-largest road network in the world, spanning over 5.8 million kms. Over 64.5% of all goods in the country are 
transported through roads, while 90% of the total passenger traffic uses road network to commute. 

Under the Union Budget 2022-23, the Government of India has allocated Rs.1,99,107.71 crore (US$ 26,04 billion) to the Ministry of 
Road Transport and Highways. In the Union Budget of 2022-23, the increase in Budget was a whopping 68% compared to the last 
year, In the Union Budget of 2022-23, the government plans to complete 25,000 kilometres of National highways. 

The Government of India has allocated Rs. 111 lakh crore (USS 13.14 billion) under the National Infrastructure Pipeline for FY 2019- 
25. The Roads sector is expected to account for 18% capital expenditure over FY 2019-25. Measures in three thrust areas to 
increase funding for NIP by (i) creation of institutional structures-set up and capilalize a Development Financial Institution (DFI), (8) 
big thruston monetizing assets, (if) enhancing the share of capital expenditure, is the strong outlay. 

Highway construction in India increased at 17.00% CAGR between FY16-FY21. Despite pandemic and lockdown, India has 
constructed 13,298 km of highways in FY21. In FY¥21, 13,298 kms of highway was constructed across India. The National 
investment and Infrastructure Fund (NIIF)is making progress towards integrating its road and highway portfolio, 

With regard to Railway Infrastructure (i) National Rail Plan for India (2030) to create a ‘future ready’ Railway system by 2030. (i) 
2000 Km of network fo be brought under Project Kavach, (iii) Multimodal Logistics Parks at four locations through PPP mode, (iv) 
100 PM Gatishak& Cargo Terminals for multimodal logistics facilities to be developed in next three years, (v) 400 new generation 
Vande Bharat trains to be developed — (a) aesthetically designed vista dome linke Hoffman busch (LHB) coach on tourist routes for 
better travel, (b) High density network and highly utilized network routes to have an indigenously developed automatic train 
protection system, eliminating train collision due to human error. Besides urban infrastructure include (a) Expansion of metro raa 
network and augmentation of city bus service, (b) "Metrolife’ and "Metroneo’ technologies will be used lo provide metro ral systems 
at much lesser cost with similar experience. 

The Government has set up Development Financial Institution (DFI) to act as a provider, enabler and catalyst for infrastructure 
financing wherein lending portiolio will be created under the proposed DFI in three years. 

Overall, the infrastructure sector is the winner in this year's Budget. However, ts success lies in its effective implementation and 
focusing on projects with quick tumaround time. 

i, - Opportunities and Strengths: 

The Goverment of India is taking every possible initiative to boost the infrastructure sector and is expected to invest highly in the 
infrastructure sector, mainiy highways. Many steps have been taken to improve funding avenues to the infrastructure sector. There 
Sr ee nT I nee ae NO Oe NL OO 

. 1 Crores, 

Pee ee yee 

Transportation Division: 

Your Company has completed 11,258 lane kms of road projects across India till date. Besiies, work amounting Rs, 1330.24 Crore 
was done till March, 2022 out of the total work amounting to Rs. 2,253.44 Crore. Balance work of Rs. 923.20 Crore ts outstanding as 
on date. 

2. Irrigation Projects: 
Your Company executed many Irrigation projects such as Canals, Dams, Tunnels, Spillways, Pump house and Lift Inigation 
Projects across PAN India. At present various Irrigation Projects having a total value of Rs. 1,635.23 Crore are under progress 
across PAN India. Out of which work amounting to Rs. 1,032.63 Crore was already executed till March, 2022, while work 
arnounting to Rs, 602,60 Crore is the balance outstanding to be executed, 

itl. Outlook: 
Future outlook of infrastructure industry in India: 
The outlook for the Infrastructure sector appears positive since the country is looking forward with a strong mandate to stimulate 
economic growth. In Union Budget FY 2022-23, the government has given a massive push to the Infrastructure sector by allocating 
Rs.1,99,107.71 crore (USS 26.04 billion) to the Ministry of Road Transport and Highways to enhance the transport infrastructure. 

Re ee 111 lakh crore (USS 13,14 billion) under the National Infrastructure Pipeline for 
19-25, 

in the Union Budget of 2022-23, the increase in Budget was a whopping 68% compared to the last year. In the Union Budget of 2022- 
23, the govemment plans to complete 25,000 kilometres of National highways. 
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The infrastructure sector has become the biggest focus area for the Government of India. India plans to spend US$ 1.4 trillion on 
infrastructure during 2019-23 to have a sustainable development of the country. The Government has suggested investment of 
Rs. 5,000,000 crore (US$ 750 billion) for railways infrastructure from 2018-30, 

India and Japan have joined hands for infrastructure development in India's Northeast states and are also setting up an India- 
Japan Coordination Forum for Development of Northeast to undertake strategic infrastructure projects for the region, 

Under Phase-| of Bharatmala Pariyojana, the Ministry has approved implementation of 34,800 km of national highways in 5 years 
with an outlay of Rs. 5,35,000 crore (USS 76.55 billion). Under this scheme, 22 greenfield projects (8,000 kms length) are being 
constructed; this is worth Rs. 3,26 lakh crore (US$ 43,94 billion). The government also aims to construct 23 new national highways 
by 2025. The Minister for Road Transport & Highways and Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises is targeting to construct 40 kms 
per day in FY22. The National Highways Authority of India (NHAI) is expected to award projects worth ~Rs, 2.25 lakh crore (USS 
30.3 bilion) with a total length of 5,000 kms in FY 22, 

Your Company is giving major thrust in various infrastructure projects to reap the benefit of growth in infrastructure sector. 

Road Ahead: 

Wi. 

The roadmap to India's infrastructure is exciting and futuristic, and it will not be an exaggeration to say that the new decade seems 
to be a promising one. 

According to Indian Infrastructure Sector in India Industry Report India plans to spend USS 1.4 trillion on infrastructure in between 
the period of 2019-23 to promote sustainable development in the country, This depicts the upward trajectory of the Indian 
infrastructure space which is on the rise, Also, with Covid-19 restrictions been removed, the infrastructure work has progressed, 
and the Indian National Highways are continuously being upgraded based on the latest technology. 

More and more green and clean initiatives are happening across government bodies in major countries, especially, the Indian 
government has given the much-needed push to the infrastructure sector in the recent FY 2022-23 budget. India is looking at $5 
trillion economy dream, as quoted by Finance Minister Nirmala Sitharaman during the recent budget announcement. The 
economy boost is only possible with the infra development at the forefront. Additionally, there is a need to work in the direction of 
developing advanced infrastructure that will provide momentum to PE/VC investments in India, 

According to the data released by Department for Promotion of Industry and intemal Trade Policy (DPIIT), construction 
development sector attracted Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) inflow worth USS 26.1 billion between April 2000-June 2021. In 
FY22 (until Novernber 2021), the private sector invested Rs. 15,164 crore (USS 1.98 billion) in roads. In FY21, infrastructure 
activities accounted for 13% share of the total FDI inflows of US$ 81,72 billion, 

Risks and Concerns: 

The COVID-19 pandemic has the major effect on timely completion of various projects, The availability of construction labor force 
is expected to affect the projects for another one year, On the other hand, other construction delays continue to be a concern factor 
which stems from number of factors outside the control of the project sponsors, which includes tand acquisition, regulatory 
approvals, inflation, and litigation etc., which can delay the timely complation of the project and increase in cost of project. This can, 
in turn, lead to additional funding, additional cost of fund etc, 

The construction sector is expected to face a simultaneous reduction in both supply and demand on account of this pandemic. As 
the sector is driven by infrastructure projects to a large extent, it is expected to be hit severely by the current levels of uncertainty, 
dismal business and consumer sentiments, loss of income as well as the diversion of government funds towards COVID-19 
management. 

internal Control Systems and their adequacy: 

Your Company has adequate system of Internal Control developed by our in-house Internal Audit team consisting of qualified and 
experienced accounting, costing and technical professionals to ensure that the resources of the Company are used efficiently and 
effectively, all assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and the transactions are 
authorized, recorded and reported correctly, financial and other data are reliable for preparing financial information and other data 
and for maintaining accountability of assets. 

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance: 

the year under review, your Company has achieved a total income (standalone) of Rs, 72,271.80 Lakhs against Rs 
71,846.02 Lakhs and Earning per Share (EPS) of Rs. (4.58) against Rs. (4.94) of the Previous Year. 

Human Resources/Industrial Relations: 

Your Company has recruited competent Professionals at all levels of management for af verticals of the Company as a part of 
corporate restructuring process and strengthening its Business Verticals to meet the pace of growth of your Company. The 

Industrial relation is very cordial. 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

In Compliance with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 

the company sets forth the report on the Corporate Govemance on the matters as mentioned in the said schedule 

and practices followed by the company. 

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

The Company's philosophy on corporate governance oversees business strategies and ensures fiscal 
accountability, ethical corporate behavior and faimess to all stakehoiders comprising reguiators, employees, 
customers, vendors, investors and the society al large. It is imperative that our Company's affairs are managed 
in a fair and transparent manner. We ensure that we evolve and follow not just the stated corporate 

governance guidelines, but also global best practices. We consider it our inherent responsibility to disclose 

timely, adequate and accurate Information regarding our financials and performance, as well as the leadership 
and governance of the Company, The Company is in compliance with all requirements stipulated under 
SEB! (LODR) Regulations, as applicable, with regard to corporate governance, 

2. BOARDOF DIRECTORS: 

i Composition and Category of the Directors as on 315! March, 2022 
In terms of compliance with the requirement of The Companies act, 2013/and the SEB! (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, the Company endeavor to have an optimum 
combination of Executive and Non Executive Director with one woman director to maintain the 

independence of the Board and separate the functions of Governance and Management through Board 
and Committees. 

As on 31st March 2022 , the Board consist of 6 (Six) Directors. There is 1(One) Managing Director, 1{one) 
Whoie-time Director, 1 (one) Nen Executive & No -independent Director and 3 (three) Non executive 
Independent Directors including 1 (One) chairman and 1(ome) Woman Director, 

- Chairman & 

Mr. N. Director 

Mr. Mohammad Whole-time Non-independent 

Woman Director Non- Executive & Woman independent 

P, 

6 . Madhu Director Non-Executive 

  

ii. Number of Board Meetings heldduring the year - 

The Board met 4 (Four) times during the financial year 2021-2022. 

  

i Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and the last Annual General Meeting. 

The particulars of atlendance of Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting by Directors for the 
financial year ended have been set out here below: 
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SL] Name of the Director ‘Board Meetings | 
No |” — attended = —Ss_| Attendance at previous AGM 

(2021-2022) _ 
1 Mr. Ramadas Kasarmeni 4 Yes 

2 | Me. N. Seethaiah 4 Yes 
3__| Mr. Mohammad Shafi 4 Yes 
4 Mr. P. Madhava Rao 2 No 

5 Mrs. Ch. Lakshimi Kumari 3 Yes 

6 | Mr, Madhu Malarmpati 4 Yes           
  

lv. Number of other Boards or Board Committees in which he/she is a member or Chairperson. 

None of the directors are members of more than ten committees or chairman of more than five 
committees in public limited companies in which they are directors. Necessary disclosures have been 
obtained from ail the directors regarding their directorship and have been taken on record by the Board. 

The names of the Directors and the details of other chairmanship / directorship / committee membership 
of each Director as on 31st March 2022 is given below: 

  

  

SL Name of the Director Position No, of Committee Committee 
No. Directorships | Membership Chairmanship 

in other in other in other 
Companies. | Companies Companies 

1 | Mr. N. Seethaish Managing Director 5 0 0 

°o
 

So
 

2 | Mr. Mohammad Shafi Whole-time Director 3 

3 Mr, Ramadas Kasameni| Chairman and 

              
Independent Director 3 3 2 

4 | Smt. Ch. Lakshmi Kumari] Independent Director 1 0 0 

5 | MP. Madhava Rao Independent Director 2 2 0 

6 | Mr. Madhu Malampati Non-executive non- 7 0 0 
independent Director 
  

v. In terms of sub regulation (i) regulation 10 part C of Schedule V a certificate from the Company 
Secretary in practice was obtained to the effect that none of the directors on the Board of the 
company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or confinuing as directors of 
companies by the Board / Ministry of corporate affairs or any such statutory authority. 

3.. CODE OF CONDUCT; 

4 

Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has 
suitably modified the ‘Code of Conduct for Board of Directors, Senior Management and Key Managerial 
Personnel’ (Code of Conduct) and Is available on the Company's website. The Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed their compliance with the Code 
of Conduct as at 31st March 2022. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

Brief description of terms of reference: 

In terms of compliance with the requirement of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations, the Audit 
Committee has been constituted consisting of qualified and independent Board members for providing 
accurate and transparent financial reporting to the Board and shall have the powers and roles to perform 

the functions as mentioned in Listing Regulations and respectively read with Section 177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

fi, Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson: 

The Audit Committee comprises of the following members as on 315t March 2022: 
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1. Smt. Ch. Lakshmi Kumari, Independent Director as Chairperson 

2. Sri Madhava Rao P, independent Director as Member 

3. Sri. Ramadas Kasameni, independent Director as Member 

iii. Meeting and attendance during the year: 

In terms of compliance with the requirement of Regulation 18 (2) of the Listing Regulations the Audit 
Committee met 4 (Four) times during the financial year under review, on 09-07-2021, 13-08-2021, 12-11- 
2021 and 09-02-2022 and the attendance of the members of the Audit Commitiee as recorded is as 

  

  

  

  

under: 

SL. No. Name of the Director Status No. of meetings attended 

1 Smt. Ch, Lakshmi Kumari Chairperson 3 
2 Mr. P. Madhava Rao Member 2 

3 Mr. Ramadas Kasameni Member a             
Head of Finance & Accounts Division and Internal Auditors attended the meetings of the Audét Committee 

2s Invitees. In terms of compliance with the requirement of Listing Regulations, The Audit Committee reviews 

the information from time to time as specified in the aforesaid clause. 

5. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

i. Brief description of terms of reference: 

The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as follows: 

1. To determine the Company's policy on specific remuneration package for Executive Directors 

including compensation payment, if any, on behalf of the Board of Directors and 

Shareholders 

2. To review, assess and recommend the appointment of Executive Director from time to time and also 

remuneration package including Employees Stock Option Schame to the Board of Directors. 

3. Any other function as may be delegated by Board of Directors. 

ii, Composition and Role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises the following non-executive independent 

directors as on 31" March 2022: 

1, Smt Ch. Lakshmi Kumari, Woman Independent Director as Chairperson 

2.. Me. Ramadas Kasameni, Independent Director as Member 

3. Mr, P, Madhava Rao , Independent Director as Member 

This commitiee recommends the appointmenUreappointment of executive directors and the 

appointments of employees from the level of vice president and above along with the remuneration to 

be paid to them. The remuneration is fixed keeping In mind the persons track record, his/her potential 

individual performance, the market trends and scales prevailing in the similar industry. 

li, Attendance during the year: 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committeemet 1 (One) times, during the financial year under 

review, on 13-08-2021. The attendance of the meeting by the members of the Committee as recorded is 

  

  

  

    

@s under: 

SL. Name of the Director Position No. of meetings Attended 
No. 

1 Smt. Ch. Lakshimi Kumari Chairperson 

2 Mr. P Madhava Rao Member 

3 Mr. Ramadas Kasameni Member         
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iv. Remuneration Policy: 
The Policy provides for the following: 

a) Attract, recruit, and retain good and exceptional talent; 

b) List down the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes, and independence of 
the directors of the Company; 

c) Ensure that the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees is 
performance driven, motivates them, recognizes their merits and achievements and promotes 
excellence in their performance; 

3) Motivate such personnel to align their individual interests with the interests of the Company, and 
further theinterests of its stakeholders; 

e) Ensure a transparent nomination process for directors with the diversity of thought, experience, 
knowledge, perspective and gender in the Board; and 

fh Fulfill the Company's objectives and goals, including in relation to good corporate governance, 
transparency,and sustained fong-term value creation for its stakeholders, 

Criteria for performance evaluation as laikd-down by nomination and remuneration committee 

The performance of Directors is evaluated by the Board (excluding the Director being evaluated) on the 

following criteria, as laid down by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

Evaluation Criteria: 

Active Participation in Board discussions and deliberations 

Contribution to development of strategy and risk management 

Guidance on corporate strategy, risk policy, corporate governance practices 

Independence and unbiased decisions/opinions etc. 

Details of Remuneration to Executive Directors: 

Of the total 6 (Six) Directors, 2 (Two) are Executive Directors. The remuneration payable to these 
directors is determined by the Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and remuneration 

committee. This is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The non 

executive directors have drawn sitting fees from the Company for attending the meetings of the board 

and the committees, Details of Remuneration of the executive Directors for the financial year 2021-2022 

  

  

  

  

  

  

                

are as follows: 

Si. Director Consolidate Perquisite | Performanc | Sitting Total 
No, d Salary 5, e Bonus/ Fees (Per 

(Per Allowance Incentive! | (Rs.) Annum 
Month) sand Commissio ) 
(Rs.) other nf Stock (Rs.} 

Benefits Option 

1 Mr. N. Seethaiah 
Managing 5,00,000/- - - - 60,00,000 
Director 

2 Mr. Mohammad 
Shafi Whole-time 3,00,000/- - - - 36,00,000 
Director 

3 Mr. Ramadas 
Kasarneni, Independent - - - 40,000 40,000 
Director 

4 Mr. P. Madhava 
Rao, Independent & - - 20,000 20,000 

Director 

§ Mr, Ch. Lakshimi Kumari 

independent Director > = “ 30,000 39,000 

6 | Mr. Madhu ene 
Non-Executive Non-ind tent - - - 40,000 40,000 

Director     
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Details of shareholding of Directors as on 31" March 2022: 
As on 31st March 202 , the Company had 2 (Two) Executive Directors, 3 (Three) Non Executive 
Independent directors and 1 (One) Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director, the one executive director 

and one Non-Executive & Non Independent Director holds equity shares in the Company. The other now 
executive directors do not hold any shares in the Company. The details are as follows: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

i Name of the Director Status No. of Shares Percentage (%) 
No. held of total shares 

1 Mr, Ramadas Kasameni Chairman & 

Independent Director Na Nil 
2 Mr. Nama Seethaiah Managing Director 23802 0.03 

3 Mr. Mohammad Shafi Whote-time Director Na Nil 

4 Mr. P. Madhava Rao Independent Director Nil Nil 

5 Smt. Ch. Lakshimi Kumari Independent Director Nil Nil 

6 Me, Madhu Malampati Non-Executive & Non- 24000 0.03 
independent Director           
  

6. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

The Committee is empowered to oversee the redressal of Shareholders/Investors Comptainis/ Grievances 
pertaining to share transfersinon receipt of Annual Reports/dividend payments, issue of duplicate share 
certificates, transmission of shares and other complaints etc. 

Composition of the Committee: 

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Commitiee comprises of the following Members as on 31st March 2022. 

4. Smt Ch. Lakshmi Kumari, Independent Director as Chairperson 

5. Mr. P Madhava Rao, Independent Director as Member 

6. Mr. Mohammad Shafi, Whole-time Director as Member 

Atlendance during the year: 

The Shareholders/Investors Grievances Committee’ Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee met 2 (two) 
times during the year on 09-07-2021 and 09 02-2022, attendance of members of the Committee as 
recorded is as under: 

  

  

  

    

SI. No. Name of the Director Position No. of meatings 
attended 

1 Smt. Ch. Lakshmi Kumari Chairperson 2 

2 Mr. Mohammad Shafi. Member 2 

3 Mr. P. Madhava Rao Member 1           

Name and Designation of Compliance Officer: Mr. M.S, Sivanand, Company Secretary has resigned 
w.e.f, 21-03-2022 and appointed Mr, D. Malla Reddy, Company Secretary as Compliance Officer w.e.f, 
21" March, 2022. 

Number of Shareholders’ Complaint received during the year under report: 

All the requests and complaints received from the sharehokiers were attended to within the stipulated 
time and nothing was pending for disposal at the end of the year. During the period under review, the 
Company has not received the Complaints from Shareholders. 

Number of Complaints not solved to the satisfaction of Shareholders as on the date of approval 
of Directors Report - Nil 

Number of Pending Complaints as on the date of approval of Directors Report - Nil 
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vil E-mail ID for redressal of Shareholders’ Gnevances; 

The Company has created a separate e-mail ID: cs@madhucon.com for the Grievance Redressal 
Division / Compliance Officer exctusively for the purpose of registering and redressal of complaints by 
investors sharehokders. 

i, 

ii i. 

Location and Time for the last three Annual General Meetings held and 

Special resolutions passed in the last three Annual General Meetings held: NIL 

The particulars of previous 3 (Three) Annual General Meetings of the Company held is set out here under: 

  

  

  

  

            

31° AGM 30-09-2021 | Deemed Venue: Regd. Nil 
(2020-2021) 3.00 PM Office: 

Madhu Complex, 1-7-70, 

Khammam 

30thAGM 05-12-2020 | Deemed Venue: Regd. Nil 
(2019-2020) 3.00 PM Office: 

Madhu Complex, 

1-7-70, Jublipura, 
Khammam 

29thAGM 21-09-2019 | Regd. Office: Nil 
(2018-2019) 3.00 PM Madhu Complex, 

1-7-70, Jublipura, 
Khammam 

li. Postal Ballot: 

iv. 

During the year no resolution was passed through postal ballot, 
None of the business which is proposed to be transacted at the ensuing Annual General Meeting requires 
passing of a resolution through postal Ballot process. 

Meeting of independent Directors 

Pursuant to the companies Act, 2013 read with rules made there under and Secretarial Standard-| issues 
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 a meeting of the 
Independent Directors of the Company for the calendar year 2022 was hekd on 9” February, 2022. 

DISCLOSURES: 

Related Party Transaction (RPT): 

There has been no materially significant Related Party Transactions (RPT) with the Company's 
promoters, directors, the management, their subsidiaries or relatives which may have potential conflict 
with the interests of the Company at large. The necessary disclosures regarding the transactions are given 
in the notes to accounts. The Company has also formulated a policy on dealing with the Related Party 

Transactions and necessary approval of the audit commitiee and Board of directors will bet aken 
wherever required in accordance with the Policy, 

The Company has also formulated a policy for determining the Material RPT and the details of such policy 
for dealing with RPT are disseminated in the website of the Company under the following link: 
httpz/www.madhucon.com/corporate investors.htm! 

Disqualification of Directors: As on March 31, 2022 none of the Directors of the Company were 
disqualified under section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. Certification by a company secretary in practice to the 
effect that none of the directors on the board of the company have been debarred or disqualified from 
being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any 
such statutory authority. As required under Schedule V Part C Regulation 10 Sub regulations (i) of SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 disclosure was also made appropriately (Annexure — A). 

. There is no non-compliance by the Company, penalties, and strictures imposed on the Company by SEB! 

or Statutory Authority on any matters relating to capital markets during the last three years. 

. Whistle Blower Policy: 

The Company has an established mechanism for Directors / Employees to report concerns about 

unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the code of conduct or ethics policy. It also 
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provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of directors‘employees whal ava the 

mechanism. The Company has formulated a Policy of Vigil Mechanism and has established a mechanism 
that any personnel may raise Reportable Matters within 60 days after becoming aware of the same. All 

suspected violations and Reportable Matters are reported to the Chairman of the Audit Committee at e 

mail ID. whistieblower@madhucon.com, Key directions/actions will be informed to the Managing Director 

of the Company. 

v. The Managing Director has issued certificate pursuant to the provisions of Listing Regulations certifying that 
the financial statements do not contain any untrue statement and these statements represent a 

true and fair view of the Company's affairs. The said certificate is annexed and forms part of the 
Annual Report. 

Practising Company Secretaries Certificate on Corporate Governance as required under Schedule V, Part 

Cof Listing Regulations annexed herein forming a part of Corporate Governance Report. 

Subsidiary Companies: 

The financials of all the subsidiary companies have been duly reviewed by the audit committee. The Board 

is also periodically informed about all significant transactions and arrangements entered into by the 
subsidiary companies. 

The Company has also formulated a policy for determining the Material Subsidiary and the details of such 
policy are disseminated in the website of the Company under the following link: 

httpu/weww.madinecon.com/corporate/investors,hiim! 

SEB! Prevention of Insider Trading: 

With SEBI imposing the responsibility of “Prohibition of Insider Trading” in the Organizations, Board has 

designed a Code of Conduct strictly in accordance with the Model Code of Conduct prescribed under 

SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations 2015. The Code, besides other relevant matters, 

prohibits an insider from dealing in the shares of the Company, while in possession of the unpublished 

price sensitive information in relation to the Company. As on the date, there have been no violations of 

insider trading regulation. 

Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and the Senior Management: 

The standards for business conduct provide that the directors and the senior management will uphold 

ethical values and legal standards as the Company pursues its objectives, and that honesty and 

personal integrity will not be compromised under any circumstances. The Board of Directors has adopted 

a code of conduct for all Board members and senior management of the Company and affirmed its 
compliance on annual basis for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2022. In terms of compliance with 

the requirement of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations are disseminated in the website of the 

Company under the following link: 

httpv/www.madhucon.com/corporate/investors.him! 

Discretionary requirements under Listing Regulations: The Company has complied with all the 
discretionary requirements of Corporate Govemance stipulated under Part E of Schedule V of the Listing 

Regulations. Certificate to this effect has been issued by Mr. S Venkata Krishna Reddy, Practicing 
Company Secretary and the same has been incorporated as an Annexure to the Directors Report. 

SHAREHOLDER’S COMMUNICATION: 

The quarterly financial provisional un audited results of the Company publistved in the leading daily 
newspaper within 45 days from the end of the respective quarters and fourth quarter duly audited within 
60 days as per the Regulation 33 of Listing Regulations. 

The financial calendar events of 2021 -2022 relating to quarterly un-audited and quarterly and yearly 

Audited financial results are as follows: 

  

Financial Results Reporting for the : For 2021-22 were announced on 
  

tst Quarter ended 30” June, 2021 13th August, 2021 
  

  2nd Quarter ended 30th September, 2021 13th November, 2021     
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3rd Quarter ended 31st December, 2021 9” February, 2022 
  

  
4th Quarter and financial year ended 31st March, 2022 | 28th May, 2022 

    
  

i, The financial provisional un-audited results are published in a leading daily newspaper in English and in 

Nv. 

Regional language having nationwide circulation viz. Financial Express and Mana Telangana and are 
disseminated in the website of the conway. wate the following link: 

  

THaSe acichak ecn ober. sven et erceakcpar” lisse wobec ic Nelbual asi 
Exchange in https:/ www.conneci2nse.com/LISTING/ and to Bombay Stock Exchange in 
hitp:/Misting bseindia.com 

The performance of the quarterty, half yearly and annual together with financial results of the Company 
released time to time in media by the press statements and also displays on Company's website. 

10. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER'S INFORMATION: 

A) BSE 

AGM: Date, Time and Venue: 

Date : 29th September, 2022 

Day : Thursday 

Time : 03:00 PM 

Venue : Registered Office of the Company at Madhu Complex, 1-7-70, Jublipura, Khammam- 
507003. 

Financial Year: 
The Company follows the financial year commencing from 1" Aprit to. 31" March on consistent basis, 
Listing on Stock Exchanges: 

Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) 
Stock Code No.: BSE — 531497 

National Stock Exchange (NSE) 

Stock Code No.: NSE —- MADHUCON 

ISIN: INE 378D01032 

Market Price Data: 
High and Low during each month in last financial year 2021-2022: 
High and Low of Market Price of the Company's Equity Shares Traded on the BSE & NSE during the 
12 monthsperiod ended 31st March 2022 are as under- 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

              

Period High (Rs.) Low(Rs.) | No. of Shares No. of Trades 
April, 2021 547 4,75 1,08,433 284 

May, 2021 5.80 4.56 2,69,667 1,380 
June, 2021 743 4.87 846,921 2,457 

July, 2021 7,72 5,94 7,28,257 2,301 

August, 2021 6.93 4.61 246,348 694 
September, 2021 5.60 4.42 4.58,750 1,117 

October, 2021 6.00 4,55 6.02.258 2,002 
November, 2021 7,11 4.87 9,99.058 1,799 

December, 2021 11.70 6.72 21,68,905 3,999 
January, 2022 12.95 9.20 10,73,929 3,419 
February, 2022 10.74 6.75 3,917,302 1,251 

March, 2022 8.30 5.66 4,23,.625 1,142 
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B) NSE: 

Period High Lo Traded Quantity} No. of 
(Rs,) We No, of Shares Trades 

(Rs.) 

April, 2021 5.50 4.60 895.888 711 

May, 2021 5.75 4.65 6,18,441 2496 

June, 2021 7.35 5.00 25,99,510 5851 

July, 2021 7.75 6.05 20,28, 209 4654 

August, 2021 7,00 4.65 8,22,028 2219 

September, 2021 5.35 445 10,46,711 3011 

October, 2021 6.10 455 27 ,06,661 §928 

November, 2021 7,00 4.70 20,88,069 4714 

December, 2021 11,60 6.65 23,12,540 5107 

January, 2022 12.85 9.35 24,84,915 8244 

February, 2022 10.75 6.65 11,24,894 3494 

March, 2022 8.20 5.70 8,95,888 2972 
  

vi. Registrar and Transfer Agents: 

M/s KF in Technologies Private Limited 

(formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited) 

Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, 
Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda 

Hyderabad, Telangana-500 032 

Phone No.040-67161605 

vii. Share Transfer System: 

All the Share Transfers that are received will be processed by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) and 

approved and registered by the Board of Directors within 15 days from the date of adgment and de-mat requests 
are normally confirmed within an sverage period of 15 days from the date of lodgment for transfer. 

vill. Others: 

Shareholders holding shares in physical form should communicate the change of address, if any, directly to 

the Registrars and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. 

It has become mandatory for transferees to furnish a copy of Permanent Account Number for registration of 
transfer of shares held in physical mode, 

Sharehokiers hokding shares in physical form, who have not availed nomination facility and would like to do so 

are requested to avail the same, by submitting the nomination in Form No. SH.13. the form will be made 

available on request. Those holding shares in electronic form are advised to contact their DPs, 

A) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2022 

Equity Share Shareholders 
hokding of 

Shareholders 

95,97 

2.00 
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30,001 - 40,000 29 0.15 9,99,678 1.35 

40,001 - 50,000 17 0,09 7,70,993 1,05 

$0,001 - 1,00,000 41 0.21 28,57,715 3.87 

1,00,001 - Above 46 0,23 5,12,06,326 69.39 

Total 19,850 100.00 |7,37,94,940.00 100.00   
  

ix, Dematerialization of shares and fiquidity: 

7,35,40,130 Equity Shares equivalent to 99.65 % of the total equity share capital have been de 

materialized and 2,54,810 are in physical form equivalent to 0.35% as on 31st March 2022. 

to 

NSDL $932 53844435 72.96 

CDSL 10863 19695695 26.69 

Total 19850 7,37,94,940 100.00 

  

Shareholders are requested to convert their physical holding to demat /electronic form through any of the 

OPs to avoid any possibility of loss, mutilation etc,, of physical share certificates and also to ensure safe 

and speedy transaction in securities. 

x. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments, conversion date and Ekely impact on 

equity- No Outstanding instruments. 

xi. Plant Locations — Not applicable since the Company is not engaged in manufacturing activities, 

xii. Address for Investors Correspondence: 

For any assistance in respect of status on Demiaterialization of Shares, Transfer, Transmission, 
Transposition, Issue of Duplicate Certificates, Change of Address etc., members are requested to contact 
the following Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company. 

Mis. KFin Technologies Pvt, Lid 
(formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private 
Limited. )Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31- 32, 
Gachibowdli, Financial 
District, Nanakramguda 
Hyderabad, Telangana- 
500 032 
Phone No.040-67161605 

For any queries regarding shares held in Demat Form, members are requested to contact their respective 
Depository Participants. 

For any other information about the Company, members are requested to contact the following officer of the 
Company. 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer: 
Mr. D. Malla Reddy 
Corp. Off: “Madihucon House”, Plot No.1129/A, 
Road No.36, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad — 500 033 India 
Telephone: (040) 23556001 /2/3/4 
Fax No: (040) 23556005 
E-Mait cs@madhucon.com 

11. LISTINGFEES: 

Listing fee has been paid to BSE and NSE within the prescribed time limit as set in the Listing Regulations for 
the Financial Year 2022-2023. 
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12, RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT: 

The Quarterly Audit on Share Capital will be conducted by Practicing Company Secretary in accordance with 
circular of SEBI No. D&CC /FITTC/CIR-16/2002 dated 31* December 2002 and Certificates will be issued 
accordingly. 

13, DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT: 

i hereby confirm that the company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior Management 
personnel, affirmations that they have complied with code of conduct for Board Members and senior 

Management personnel in respect 

For and on behalf of the Board 

sd/ 

Nama Seethaiah 
Managing Director 

Pisce: Hyderabad DIN:00784491 
Date ; 11-06-2022 

CEO/CFO/GM (Finance & Accounts) Certification 

In relation to the Audited Financial Statements of the Company as at March 31, 2022, Mr. Nama Seethaiah, 
Managing Director and Mr. K, Venkateswartu, Chief Financial Officer of the Company certify that: 

A. We have reviewed the financial stalements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best 
of our knowledge and belief: 

1. That the Financial statements do not contain any materially untrue statement of omit any 
material factor contain statements that might be misleading; 

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance 

B. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 
which is fraudutent, illegal or violates the Company's code of conduct. 

C. We accept the responsibility for establishing and mainiaining internal controls for financial reporting and 
that they have evaluated the effectiveness of intemal control systems of the Company pertaining to 
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and Audit Committee, deficiencies in the 
design or operation of such intemal control if any of which we are aware and steps that we have 
taken or proposed to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

D. Further, we have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee 

1. Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year, wherever applicable; 

2. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and correct information has been 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements in IND AS format, wherever applicable and 

3. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and involvement therein, if any, of the 
management or an employee having a significant role in Company's internal control 
system over financial reporting, wherever applicable. 

Sdl- Sdl- 
(K. Venkateswariu) (N Seethaiah) 

Chief Financial Officer Managing Director & CEO 
DIN: 00784491 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 11-06-2022 
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(i) PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE 

To 
The Members, 
MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 
H.no.1-7-70, Jublipura, 
Khammam-507003, 
Telangana, India, 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Madhucon Projects Limited (the 

Company), for the year ended March31,2022 as per the Securities and Exchange Board of India(Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations,2015. 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the 
compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on 

the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the 
representations made by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of 

Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Securities and Exchange Board of 

India(Listing ObligationsandDisclosureRequirements Regulations 2015. 
We further state that such compliance is neiiher an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For Venkata Krishna& Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Venkata Krishna Reddy Sabbella 
Proprietor 

(ACS 53083; CP 19542) 
UDIN: A053083D000448775 

Place: 
Date: 11.08.2022 
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(Purewans 40 Reandation 34(3) and Schedule V Park ¢ Clause 01) of the SEB! 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To 

The Members, 
MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 
H.no.1-7-70, Jublipura, 
Khammam-507003, 
Telangana, India. 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 
MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED having CIN: L74210TG1990PLC011114 and having registered office at H.No.4 
7-70, Jublipura Khammam TG 507003 IN (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me/us by the 
Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schdule V Para - 
C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

in our opinion and to the best of my/our information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 
furnished to me / us by the Company & its officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 
Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from 
being appointed of continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority - 

4 

5 

6. 

  

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment’ continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For Venkata Krishna & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Place: Hyderabad (Venkata Krishna Reddy Sabbelia) 
Date : 11-08-2022 Proprietor 

(ACS 53083; CP 19542) 
UDIN: A0530830000448731 
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FORM NO MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rule 9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 

To, 
The Members of, 
MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED, 
H.No.1-7-70, Jublipura 
KhammamTG 507003 IN 

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable 
Statutory provisions of the Acts, Rules and Regulations as mentioned below 
and the adherence to good corporate practices byM/s. MADHUCON 
PROJECTS LIMITED(CIN: '74210TG1990PLC011114) (herein after called the 
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification on the company's books, papers, minute boks, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also 
the information provided by the company, its officers, agents and other 
authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby 
report that in my opinion, the company has during the audit period covering the 
financial year ended on 31“ March,2022 complied with the statutory provisions 
listed here under and also that the company has proper Board processes and 
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made here in after: 

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and retums filed 
and other records maintained by MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED for the 
financial year ended 31st March,2022 according to the provisions of:- 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under as applicable. 

i. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made there 
under. 

iii, The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye Laws framed there 
under. 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations 
made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment and 
Overseas Direct Investment. 

v. The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, | 992(‘SEBI Act’) 

a. The Securities andExchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of 
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,2011;(Not Applicable as there was no 
Acquisition of Shares) 
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b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider ~~ 
Trading)Regulations, 1992 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and 
Share Transfer Agent) Regulations 1993 regarding the Companies Act 
and dealing with client; 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue ofCapital and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulatons 2009(Not applicable as the 
company did not issue any securities during the financial year under 
review) 

e, The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 
Regulations, 1998; (Not applicable as the company has not bought back 
any of its securities during the financial under review). 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2009; and (Not applicable as the company has not delisted 
its equity shares from any stock exchange during the financial under 
review) 

vi. | have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(a) The Company has complied with the requirements under the Equity 
Listing Agreements entered into with the BSE Limited, National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited, and the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations,2015. 

(b) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India in respect of Board and General Meetings of the Company through 
Revised SSI and SS2. 

|, further report that: 

(a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper 
balance of Executive Directors; Non Executive Directors and Independent 
Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 
took place during the year under review were carried out in compliance with 
the provisions of the Act. 

The Chairman of the Company should be either an Executive/Promoter or 
Independent Director and optimum combination of Executive Non- 
executive Directors including Independentand Women Director should be 
maintained In case if a company has either Executive / Promoter Chairman 
then not less than 50% of the Board of Directors shall comprise of Non 
executive Independent Directors as per SEB! (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

(b) Adequate Notice is given to all the Directors toschedule the Board 
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 7 days 
in advance. There is adequate system for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 
meaningful participation at the meeting. Majority decision are carried out 
unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of 
Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be, 

(c) It is also noted that the Company has an Internal Audit System to constantly 
monitor the process for efficient Compliances. 

(d) During the period under review the Company has complied with the 
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provisions of the Act, Rubs , Regulations Guidelines . Standards etc 
mentioned above subject to the following observations: 

i) The company is yet to transfer unpaid dividendof an amount 
aggregating to Rs. 6.62 lakhs relating to Financial Years 2008-09 to 
2016 11 from unpaid dividend account to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (lEPF). 

ii) The Company has yet to file Annual Return on Foreign Liabilities and 
Assets as notified under the regulations of FEMA Act, 1999vide 
notification no- RBI/2010-11/427 A.P. (DIR Series) Circular No. 45. 

iii) In view of losses incurred by the company and in the absence of prior 
approval from lenders banks and financial institutions managerial 
remuneration paid by the company during the year is in excess of the 
limits specified in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read 
with schedule V of the Companies Act,2013. 

iv) The Company has constituted the corporate social Responsibility 
committee required under the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy 
under the provisions of section 135 of the companés act,2013 and 
Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) 
Rules 2014 

However in view of losses incurred During the Preceding three Years, 
the Company is unable to spend any amount towards to the 
Corporate Social Responsibility Activities. 

v) The following cases have been pending against the Company in 
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Hyderabad Bench 
  

    

CASE TITLE AND DET 
No NUMBER Aue 

SREI Equipment Fin. Lid., 

Vs MPL Reserved for Orders in IA No. 376/2022. Filed 
’ CP(IBY12/H08/2021 | the application U/s. 12 of IBC for the claim 
  

SBI Vs SEPL- Mr. Anish | Counter filed for MPL; MIL; MSPIL & Sr 
2 Niranjan Nanavaty Vs Nagendra - Notice for R3,.R4 & Ri Preferred for 

MPL{R2) wansactions U/s 25{j), 43 to 51 R/w 66, 67 and 
CB(IB¥13/7/HDB/2020 _| 60(5) of IBC, 2016 

Mis. SRI BALAJI 
3 ASSOSICATES-MPL __| Petitioner filed the application U/s, 9 of IBC for 

CP(IB)No.260/9/HDB/2018 | "e claim 

in my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the 
examinations carried out by me and explanations furnished and 
representations made to me by the Company, its officers and agents, 
| report that Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
the Rules made there under and the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company with regard to: 

            

a. Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and 
making necessary entries there in; 

b. Closure of Register of Members; 
c. Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed 

with the Registrar of Companies, Regional Director, Central 
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Government, National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) or other 
Authorities; 

d. Serviceof documents by the Company on its Members, Stock 
Exchanges, Auditors and the Registrar of Companies; 
Notice of Board and various Committee meetings of Directors; 
The meetings of Directors and all the Committees of Directors and 
passing of circular resolutions; 

g. The 31" Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on 30” 
September,2021 

h. Minutes of the proceedings of the Board Meetings, Committee 
Meetings and General Meetings; 

i. Approvals of the Board of Directors, Committee of Directors, 
Members and Government Authorities, where ever required; 

j. Payment of remuneration to Directors, Managing Director and 
Executive Directors; 

k. Appointment and Remuneration of Statutory Auditors and Cost 
Auditors; 

|. Transfer and transmission of the Company’s shares, issue and 
allotment of shares and issue and delivery of certificates of shares; 

m. Borrowings and registration of charges; 
n. Report of the Board of Directors: 
o. Investment of the Company's funds including inter-corporate loans 

and investments; 
p. Generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules 

there under, 

me
 

| further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial 
laws, like direct and indirect taxlaws, has not been reviewed in this audit since 
the same have been subject to review by internal auditors and other 
designated professionals. 

| further report that on examination of the relevant documents and records 
and based on the information provided by the Company, its officers and 
authorized representatives during the conduct of the audit, and also on the 
review of compliance reports by respective department heads / Company 
Secretary of the Company, in our opinion, there are adeqg uate systems and 
processes and control mechanism exist in the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable general laws.. 

| further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the 
Company and on examination of the relevant documents and records in 
pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with 
the specific industry/sector related laws as applicable specifically: 

(a) Rule 3(4) Shops and Establishment Rule,1990. 

(b) Labour Act, 1970 or Labour Act, 2015 and rules made there under 
applicable 

(c) Telangana Tax on Professional, Trades Calling and Employment, 1987 and 
the rules made there under as applicable. 

(d) Employees Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 and the rules made there 
under as applicable is under Implementation . 
However, Provident Fund commissioner-l of Madhapur, Hyderabad 
had initiated Proceedings against the Company for the recovery of 
past old dues relating to the-years 2007 - 2008 & 2009 - 2014. The 
Honourable High Court of Telangana Issued Stay of the 
Proceedings. 

(e) Employee Pension Scheme, 1995 and the’ rules made there under 
as applicable. 
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(f) Employees Deposit Linked Insurance Scheme, 1976 and the rules made 
there under as applicable. 

(g) The Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948 
(h) The Workmen Compensation Act, 1923 
(i) Industrial Dispute Act, 1947 and the rules made there under as applicable. 
(j) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and the rules made there under as applicable. 
(k) Contract Labour (Regulations and Abolition) Act, 1970 and 

Rules there under; and 
(i) Matemity Benefits Act, 1961 
(m)Air prevention and control of pollutionAct , 1981 
(n) Environmental protection Act, 1986 
(0) Water prevention and control of pollution Act1974 
(p) Motor transport Workers Act,1961 
(q) Noise Pollution(Regulation &Control)Rules,2000 
(r} Municipals Solid Waste (Management and Handling)Rules,2000 

i further report that “the Company” has defaulted in repayment of dues to 
Banks and financial institutions. All the seloans outstanding were classified as 
NPA by the Banks and Financiai Institutions. 

i further report that in the case of “Ranchi Expressways Ltd (REL)", a step 
down subsidiary of the company, CBI has filed FIR against REL, its Promoters 
and Directors on 1203-2019 under Prevention of Corruption Act and Indian 
Penal Code. Subsequently, the Enforcement Directorate has raided the 
premises of “the company” on 1106-2021 and the investigation is under 
progress. 

| have relied on the informaton supplied and representation made by the 
Company and its officers, agents, for systems and mechanism followed by the 
Company for compliance under the applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to 
the Company and my Annexed even letter dated is to be read alongwith with 
this report. 

For Venkata Krishna& Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Place: Hyderabad Venkata Krishna Reddy Sabbella 
Date : 01.06.2022 Proprietor 

(ACS 53083; CP 19542) 
UDIN: A053083D000448643 
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To, 
The Members, 
MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED, 
H.No.1-7-70, Jublipura, 
Khammam, 
Telangana 507003. 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management 
of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appnopriate to 
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the 
Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. | believe that the processes 
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records, 
Books of Accounts and Statutory Dues of the Company as commented by the 
Auditors. 

4. Where ever required, | have obtained the Management representation 

about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of 
events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, 
rules, regulations, standards is the responsibilityof management. My 
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management 
has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For Venkata Krishna &Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Place: Hyderabad Venkata Krishna Reddy Sabbella 
Date : 01.06.2022 Proprietor 

(ACS 53083; CP 19542) 
UDIN: A053083D000448643 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of M/s. Madhucon Projects Limited 

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of M/s. Madhucon Projects Limited (“the 

company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2022, and the 
statement of Profit and Loss and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the 
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2022, its loss and cash flows for the year ended on that 
date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

1) We refer to the carrying value of investments held in and unsecured loans 
and advances given by the company to its subsidiaries, which have been 
incurring losses and in case of some of these companies, net worth was fully 
or substantially eroded. In the absence of fair valuation of these 
investments, we are unable to comment upon the carrying value of 
investments and we are unable to comment whether any provision for 
impairment in the value of investments, loans and advances is required. 

2) We refer to the “Madhucon Mega Mall Private Limited (MMMPL) a 
subsidiary of the company incorporated for developing shopping mall cum 
multiplex on leased land taken from Andhra Pradesh housing Board (Now 
known as Telangana housing Board) (“The Board”) at Kukatpallyin 
Hyderabad, Pending approval from government to start the project, the 
carrying values of Investments in and Loans Sanctioned to MMMPL 
amounting to Rs.3,500.00 lakhs and Rs.135.33 Lakhs respectively are shown 
as realizable at the Values Stated in the Books of Accounts. 

3) There are outstanding Loans and advances of Rs. 3075.11 Lakhs and Rs 
362.87 Lakhs granted to “Nama Investments Limited” and “NNR Infra 
Investments Private Limited” respectively, in which the Company’s 
Directors have Interest. These Companies have been incurring Losses and 
accumulated losses exceeded the Net Worth. The management is yet to 
assess the risk of default and resultant expected credit loss allowance on 
such loans and advances. 
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4) The company is yet to transfer unpaid dividend of an amount aggregating 
to Rs. 6.62 Lakhs relating to Financial Years 2008-09 to 2010-11from unpaid 
dividend account to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 

5) “the Company” has defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks and financial 
institutions amounting to Rs.67,087.79Lakhs and Rs.4,508.69 Lakhs 
respectively as per books of account, All the loans outstanding were 
classified as NPA by the Banks and Financial Institutions. Interest on these 
loans have not been provided for the financial years 2018-19 to2021-22. 

6) In the absence of confirmations of Trade Payables and _ various 
advances/loans, we are unable to comment on the extent to which such 

balances are payable/ recoverable. 

7) (a) The Company is yet to file final GST Returns for the FY 2021-22 in case of 
a few states. 

(b) The turnover and input credits are subject to reconciliation. 

8) In view of losses incurred by “the company” and in the absence of prior 
approval from the lender banks and financial Institutions, managerial 
remuneration of Rs. 93.93 Lakhs paid by the company during the year is in 
excess of the limits specified under section 197 read with schedule V of 
Companies Act,2013. 

9) In case of “Ranchi Expressways Ltd (REL)”, a step down subsidiary of the 
company, CBI has filed FIR against REL, its Promoters and Directors on 12- 
03-2019 under Prevention of Corruption Act and Indian Penal Code, 
Subsequently, the Enforcement Directorate has raided the premises of “the 
company” on 11-06-2021 and the investigation is under progress. 

10) The Company has not produced Title Deeds in respect of certain immovable 
properties (lands) held. 

11) Internal Audit has not been conducted for the period Olst October 2021 to 
31st March 2022. 

12) There are some delays in depositing undisputed statutory dues including 
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, 
Value Added Tax (VAT), and other statutory dues, Undisputed amounts payable 

in respect thereof, which were outstanding for more than six months from the 
date they became payable (refer Annexure A, point VII ) 

Emphasis of Matter 

¢ “the Company” has offered Rs. 3,999.13 Lakhs as Revenue during the year 
which was an Advance received against work bills from a step-down 
subsidiary. 
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e We draw attention to Note 2.41 to Standalone financial statements- “The 
Company's” current liabilities exceeded current assets and “The Company” has 
defaulted in payment of dues to banks , all these indicate a material uncertainty 
existing that may cast a significant doubt on “The Company’s” ability to 
continue as a going concern. However, the management believes the use of 
going concern assumption on the preparation of the financial statements of “the 
company” is still appropriate in view of its continuing discussions with its 
lenders to obtain approval for and implementation of an appropriate debt 
resolution plan, and “The Company” will continue to be in operation in the 
foreseeable future. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 

specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under 

those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of 

the Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company in 

accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 

statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, 

and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters 

were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in 

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 

communicated in our report 

e The carrying value of investments held in and unsecured loans and advances 

given by the company to its subsidiaries, which have been incurring losses and in case of 

some of these companies, net worth was fully or substantially eroded. 

° “The Company” has defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks and financial 
institutions All the loans outstanding were classified as NPA by the Banks and Financial 

Institutions. Interest on these loans have not been provided for the financial years 2018-19 

to2021-22. 

® There are no confirmations of Trade Payables and various advances/ loans. 

° Title Deeds in respect of certain immovable properties (lands) held by the 

Company were not produced. 

° Internal Audit has not been conducted for the period Olst October 2021 to 31st 

March 2022. 

° “The Company's” current liabilities exceeded current assets and “The Company” 

has defaulted in payment of dues to banks 
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In connection with our audit of the Information Other than the Standalone 

Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexure to 

Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements 
and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the 
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of 
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's 
financial reporting process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control, 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal 
control. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists; we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the 
related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements 
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represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

e We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit. 

e We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued 

by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 

Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters Specified in paragraphs 

3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that: 

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

b) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 
the Company so far as appears from our examination of those books; 

c) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including 
Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and the statement of 
changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account; as per Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended. 

d) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the applicable 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant 
rules issued there under. 
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e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 
31, 2022, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2022, from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate report in ‘Annexure B’. 

g) In view of losses incurred by “the company” and in the absence of prior 
approval from the lender banks and financial Institutions, managerial 
remuneration paid by the company during the year is in excess of the limits 
specified under section 197 read with schedule V of Companies Act,2013. 

h) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as 
amended , in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the pending litigations which would impact 
its financial position in its notes to financial statements. 

iii The Company does not have long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii, The company is yet to transfer unpaid dividend of an amount 
aggregating to Rs. 6.62 Lakhs relating to Financial Years 2008-09 to 
2010-11 from unpaid dividend account to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (IEPF). 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to 
or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
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provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and 

belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) 

have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including 

foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly 

or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 

the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable 

and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that 

has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and 

(ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 

misstatement. 

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the 
year, 

For P.Murali&Co., 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 0072575 

A. Krishna Rao 
Partner 
Membership No. 020085 
UDIN:22020085 AKONJI3255 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date:28-05-2022 
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Annexure A to the Auditors Report 

Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors Report to the Members of M/s. 

Madhucon Projects Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March 

2022, we report that: 

In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 

a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 

including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(B) The Company doesn’t have any intangible assets. 

b) As explained to us, Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified 

by the management at regular intervals; as informed to us no material 

discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of 

verification is reasonable. 

c) The Company has not produced Title Deeds in respect of certain immovable 

properties (lands)held , as such we are unable to provide the details as 

required. 

d) According to the information and explanations given to usby the management the 

Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including 

right-of-use assets) during the year. 

e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for 

holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 

1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the 

Inventory has been physically verified during the year by the Management and in 

our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. As per our observations 

the coverage and procedure of such verification was appropriate, and there are no 
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major discrepancies found on and above 10% aggregately of such classes of 

inventory. 

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 5 crore, 

in aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial 

institutions on the basis of security of current assets . 

(a) The Company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, 

or stood guarantee, or provided security to other entity during the year 

(b) In our opinion, the loans provided and the terms and conditions of the grant of 

loans, during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest, 

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of 

principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments of 

principal amounts and receipts of interest are generally been regular as per 

stipulation. 

(d) In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount 

remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date. 

(e) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been 

renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of existing loans 

given to the same parties. 

(f) The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans either 

repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during 

the year. Aggregate amount for the year Rs 18722.12 /-lakhs, 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has complied with the provision of sections 185 and 186 of the Act to the 

extent applicable, in respect of loans, investments guarantees and security. 

During the year The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public covered 

under Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under, 
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vi. Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is 

required to maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in 

respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed the same, and are of the opinion 

that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and 

maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with 

a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records 

of the company examined by us, in respect of the Statutory dues: 

a) There are some delays in depositing undisputed statutory dues including 

Provident Fund, , Income-tax, Sales Tax, Goods and Service Tax, , Cess and other 

statutory dues applicable to it. Undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof, 

which were outstanding for more than six months from the date they became 

payable are as follows: 

S.No.| Name of the Status Nature of Due Period Rs. 

in Lakhs 

1 The Income Tax Act, 1961 Dividend 2011-12 to 2015-16 139.93 

Distribution Tax & 

Interest on it 

2 Professional Tax PT PAYABLE 2011-12 to 2020-21 20.87 

3 The Employees Provident Provident fund 2013-14 to 2020-21 95.73 

nds and Miscellaneous 

ision act 1952 

4 bales Tax Sales Tax payable [2013-14 to 2021-22 28.55 

5 Works Contract Tax Works Contract Tax [2014-15 to 2017-18 611.42 

6 Goods and Service Tax Goods and Service 2021-22 1,467.27 

Tax 

7 The Income Tax Act, 1961 Tax Deducted at 2021-22 3.07 

Source     
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Details of dues of Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, 

Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax and CESS which have not been 

deposited as on March 31, 2022 on account of disputes are given below: 

  

  

  

        

Name of _ the| Forum where | Period to which | Amount involved 

Statute dispute is pending | the amount relates | (Rs.in lakhs) 

Sales Tax Hon’bleHigh Court | 2001 to 2005 & 687.42 

2009-10 

Entry Tax Hon'ble High | 2015-16 & 2016-17 8.85 

Court 

Service Tax Settlement 2010-12 1,655.75 

Commission     
  

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the 

Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

a) Based on the examination of books of accounts and related records and according 

to the information and explanations given by the management, the company has 

defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions and banks during the year 

[Refer Point (5) of Basis for Qualified Opinion], as follows: 

Delay in Principal and Interest payments: 

  

  

            

Amount in Rs.Lakhs 
Nature Name of the} Amount not | Principal or | No. of days | Remarks, if 

Lender paid on due | Interest delay or | any 

date unpaid 

Cash credit | Bank of India 4,213.20 Principal 181 and|The loan 

above days | has become 

NPA 

Cash credit | Canara Bank 5,758.56 Principal 181 and|The loan     
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above days | has become 

NPA 

Cash credit | Axis Bank 8,958.54 | Principal 181 and} The loan 

above days | has become 

NPA 

Cash credit | ICICI Bank 21,217.85 | Principal 181 and} The loan 

above days | has become 

NPA 

Cash credit | State Bank of| 4,690.75 | Principal 181 and} The loan 

India above days | has become 

NPA 

Cash credit | Punjab National 4,991.80 | Principal 181 —=—s and| The loan 

Bank above days | has become 

NPA 

Cash credit | Kotak Mahindra| 4,836.26 | Principal 181 =and| The oan 

Bank above days | has become 

NPA 

Cash credit | IDBI 7A87.70 | Principal 181 and| The loan 

above days | has become 

NPA 

Term loan | SREL Equipment 4000.00 | Principal 181 and| The loan 

Finance above days | has become 

Ltd.(Financial NPA 

Institution) 

Interest on Axis Bank 35.25 | Interest 181 = and|The loan 

loans above days | has become 

NPA 

Interest on ICICI Bank 4,107.30 | Interest 181 and}The loan 

loans above days | has become 
NPA 

Interest on IDBI Bank 348.19 | Interest 181 and} The loan 

loans above days | has become 
NPA 

Interest on Canara Bank 193.00 | Interest 181 and} The loan               
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loans above days | has become 

NPA 

Intereston | Punjab 249.40 Interest 181 and| The loan 

loans National above days | has become 
Bank NPA 

Intereston | SREI Equipment | 508.69 Interest 181 and| The loan 

loans Finance above days | has become 
Ltd.(Financial NPA 

Institution)               
b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a 

wilful defaulter by any bank or other lenders. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, the 

Company has not raised any term loans during the year. 

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds 

raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for 

long-term purposes. 

e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the 

Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of 

or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. 

f) The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of 

securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or 

further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 

of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not 
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made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 

convertible debentures (fully or partially or optionally convertible) during 

the year. 

xi. a) No fraud by the Company and on the Company has been noticed or 

reported during the year. 

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has 

been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit 

and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year 

and up to the date of this report. 

c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by 

the Company during the year and up to the date of this report. 

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) 

of the Order is not applicable. 

xiii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related 

parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the 

standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting 

standards. 

xiv.i. Internal audit has not been conducted from October 2021 onwards, In our 

opinion the Company has no adequate internal audit system commensurate with 

the size and the nature of its business. 

a) We have considered, the internal audit reports up to 31" September, 2021, 

under audit, issued to the Company during the year and till date, in 

determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

xv. In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash 

transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors. As per 

the provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 
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xvi. a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve 

Bank of India Act, 1934. 

b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance 

activities. 

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the 

regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of 

the Order is not applicable. 

d) There is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core 

Investment Companies(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) 

xvii. The Company has incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit 

and the immediately preceding financial year 2020-21, cash loses amounts to Rs 

(2,884) /- lakhs and Rs (3,086)/- lakhs respectively . 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the 

year, 

xix, On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of 

financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, material uncertainty exists as on 

the date of the audit report indicate that the Company is not capable of meeting its 

liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 

period of one year from the balance sheet date, which depend on the outcome of the 

management plans(refer note on Going Concern 2.41) on the discussions with its 

lenders to obtain approval for and implementation of appropriate debt resolution 

plan. 

xx. In view of the losses incurred by the company, it is not covered under the provisions 

of section 135 of the Companies act 2013. 
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xxi. The qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies 

(Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the 

consolidated financial statements, the details of the companies and the clauses of the 

CARO report containing the qualifications or adverse remarks - 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

          

Ss Name CIN Holding Clause 

No Company/subsidiary | number of the 

/Step down subsidiary | CARO report 

Associate/Joint which is 

Venture qualified or 

adverse 

1 TN(DK) U45200TG2006PLC048941 | Step down subsidiary | (ix), (xiv), 

EXPRESSWAYS (xvii) 

LIMITED 

2 TRICHY- U45200TG2006PLC049815 | Step down subsidiary | (ix), (xiv) 

THANJAVUR 

EXPRESSWAYS 

LIMITED 

3 CHHAPRA-HAJIPUR | U45209TG2010PLC068742 | Step down subsidiary | (ix) 

EXPRESSWAYS 

LIMITED 

4 BARASAT- U45203TG2011PLC073469 | Step down subsidiary | (ix), (xiv) 

KRISHNAGAR 

EXPRESSWAYS 

LIMITED 

5 VI AYAWADA- U45209AP2011PLC077676 | Step down subsidiary | (xiv), (xvii) 

MACHILIPATNAM 

EXPRESSWAYS 

LIMITED 

6 RAJAULI- U45203TG2012PLC080775 | Step down subsidiary | (xiv), (xvii) 

BAKHTIYARPUR 

EXPRESSWAYS 

LIMITED 

7 MADURAI- U45203TG2006PLC050114 | Subsidiary (ix), (xvi) 

TUTICORIN 

EXPRESSWAYS 

LIMITED       
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NAMA HOTELS 

PRIVATE LIMITED 

U55101TG2007PTC056818 Subsidiary (vii), (xiv) 

  

MADHUCON 

HEIGHTS PRIVATE 

LIMITED 

U45209TG2007PTC056733 Subsidiary (vii), (ix), 
(xiv), (xix) 

  

10 MADHUCON MEGA 

MALL PRIVATE 

LIMITED 

U45400TG2007PTC056734 Subsidiary (vii), (xiv) 

  

  

11 MADHUCON INFRA 

LIMITED 

U45200TG2006PLC049235 Subsidiary (vii), (ix), 

(xiv), (xix) 
  

12 RANCHI 

EXPRESSWAYS 

LIMITED 

U45209TG2011PLC073568 Step down subsidiary (xiv), (xvii) 

      MADHUCON PROPERTIES 

LIMITED   U45200TG2005PLC045366 Associate     (vii),(xiv) 

  

For P. Muralié& Co, 

Chartered Accountants, 

FRN No: 007257S 

A Krishna Rao 
Partner 
Membership No:020085 
UDIN: 22020085 A KQNJI3255 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date:28-05-2022 
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under clause (i) of 

the Sub-section 3 of the Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘The Act’) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. 

Madhucon Projects Limited (‘the company’) as of 31% March 2022 in conjunction with 

our audit of Financial Statements of the company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 

established by the company considering the essential components of internal control 

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal financial controls 

over financial reporting based on our Audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 

the Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting ( the 

“Guidance Note”) and the standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 

143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an Audit of Internal Financial Controls, both 

applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the ICAI, These 

standards and guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 

and performed the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such 

controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy 

of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 

effectiveness, Our Audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design 

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The 

procedures selected depend on the Auditor’s Judgment, including the assessment of the 

risk of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion and the company’s internal financial control system 

over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 

preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes these policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 

records that, in reasonable detailed, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in 

accordance with generally accepted principles, and that receipts and expenditures are 

being made only in accordance with authorization of management and directors of the 

Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 

detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that 

could have a material effect on the Financial Statements. 
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Inherent Limitation of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitation of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

Projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 

to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contro] over financial 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion except for the possible effects of the matter described in the basis for 

qualified opinion, the company has, in all material respects, reasonable internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting but not adequate and such internal financial 

controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31", 2022, based 

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute Of 

Chartered Accountants of India. 

For P. Murali& Co., 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 007257S 

A Krishna Rao 
Partner 

Membership No: 020085 

UDIN: 22020085AKONJI3255 

Place: Hyderabad 

Date: 28-05-2022 

  

57



Madhocon Projects Limited 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 

(All the amounts are in lakhs except “No of Shares” , “Pace value of Equity share” 
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For Piternt & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Charweed Accountants 

ren) corms 

ANitehas Rew QW. Seethaiah) Mohammad Shaft 

Pertine Managing Director Whole: time Director 

Mereberalig Nurtver 020085 DEN-DOTS4H491 DEN-07 178206 

Plece  Hydewahad 

Date | May 28, 2002 XK. Venkateswartu D, Malla Reddy 

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
ACS: 0550 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2022 

{ % in Lakhs) 

Note Yeor ended Yeor ended 
No. Morch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Income 

Revenwye from Operations 2.25 70,614.85 64,655.05 

Other Income 2.26 1,656.95 7,190.97 

Total Income 72,271.80 71,846.02 

|Expenses 
Cost of Materials Consumed and Work Expenses 2.27 51,899.33 63,442.04 

Employee Benefits Expense 338 1,679.16 1,728.40 

Finance Costs 2.29 417.54 263,72 
Depreciation ami amortization expense 21 478.06 595.97 

Other Expenses 230 19,308.89 10,872.13 

Total Expemecs 73,782.99 76,902.26 

Profit/Loas Before Tax before Exceptional Items 1,511.19)! (5,056.24) 

impairment of Investments . ° 

Profit/Loss Before Tax after Exceptional Items (1,811.19)/ {5,056.24)| 

Tax Expense 

Current Tax (Imcoene Tax) . . 

Income Tax Refund Received . 65,392.23)) 

Deflered Tax 1,870.14 3,962,683 

1,870.14 1,409, 

Profit/Loss for the Year | 3,381.33) aiaeael 
|Other Comprebensive Income / (Loss) 

Remeasurement of the Defined Benefit Plans 19.45 (35.65)} 

Increase/ {Decrease} in borrowing cost pursuant to - - 

application of Effective interest rate method 

Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year 19.45 (35.65) 
(met of taxes) 

Total Comprehensive Income/Loas for the Year (3,361.88) |____3,682.34)) 

Earnings per share of face valuc of * 1 cach 

Basic and Diluted sisal {4.94)) 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements 

As per our reported even date annexed 

For P. Murali & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants 

PRN : 0072575 

A.Krishna Rao (MN. Seethalah) Mohammad Shafi 
Partner Managing Director Whole-time Director 

Membership Number 020065 DIN-00784491 DIN-07 178265 

Place ; Hyderabad K. Venkateswartu D. Malla Reddy 
Date: May 28, 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

ACS: 95589 

 



Madiucon Lissited 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year ended March 31, 2022 
2) Eqaity Share Capital . 
(Equity Shares of Ret /- cach 7.37 ,94,960 abarenj 
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MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED . 

  

teen) end ter 

In terme af our report attached 

For P.Mazall & Co. 
Charteeré Accogntants 
PRN -OOT257S 

AKrishea Reo 
Partner 
Membership Muenber 020085 

Place : Hyderabad 

Date: May 28, 2022 

The accomnpasytng notes ary an integral part of the standalone finsnctal staternents 

    
For and on behalf of the Board 

B. Seethaled Medam med Shall 
Managing Ovecter Whee Director 

ON 20784401 OIN-07 178265 

K Venksterwarts D. Malia Reddy 
Chief Financial Officer Cocnparry Secretary 

ACS OS 
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“Rin 
Year ended 

[5.056.25) 

595.97 

(78.40) 
847.22 

10,957.75 
1,468.41 

(8,111.58) 
1,115.09 

(9,53) 
22,037.79 
(26,843.88) 
(6.391 

(734,13) 

(1,876.67) 
(287.70) 

The accompanying sotes are an integral part cf the standalone financial statements in terms of owr report attached 

For P.Murali & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 0072575 

AXrishna Rao 

Parine: 

Momberthig Number 020085 

Piece: Hpderabed 
Date - May 24, 2022 

Por and on behalf of the Board 

(N. Seethaiah) Mohammad Shafi 

OWN-00784493 DIN-O7 178265 

K. Venkateswartu OD. Malis Reddy 

Ciel Feaccial Officer Company Secretary
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

Company Overview: 
Madhucon Projects Limited (MPL) or “the Company” is an integrated construction, 
Infrastructure development and management Company. The Corporate Office of the Company 
is located at ‘Madhucon House’ Road No.36, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad, India. 

The Company is engaged in the business of development and execution of Engineering, 
Procurement and Construction (EPC) and Turnkey Projects in multiple sectors such as 
Transportation, Irrigation, Water Resource Infrastructures, Railways, development of smart 
cities and properties in India. Completing the projects with high quality workmanship and 
commitment to excellence made the Company a leader in the industry. The Company is best in 
innovation, creativity and technological mastery, delivering top-quality work, ahead of schedule, 
in all sectors. A majority of the development projects of the Company are based on execution of 
Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC) and Turnkey Projects. 

Significant accounting policies: 

1.1 Statement of compliance 
The company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 
{as amended from time to time}. 

1.2 Basis of preparation 
These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual 
basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value in accordance 
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). Historical cost is generally based on the fair value 
of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. 

Measurement of fair values: 
A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for 
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair value measurements are categorized 
into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are 
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, 
which are described as follows: 

¢ Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities that entity can access at measurement date 

e Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and 

* Level 3 inputs for the assct or liability that are not based on observable market data 
{unobservable inputs). 

1.3 Presentation of financial statements 
The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the 
format prescribed in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The statement of 
cash flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of 
Cash flows”. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and 
Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way 
of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be 
disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended. 

 



MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED oe 
MAD 

Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in lakhs rounded off to 
two decimal places as permitted by Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Per share data are 
presented in Indian Rupees to two decimals places. 

1.4 Cash flow statement: 
Cash flow statement is prepared segregating the cash flows from operating, investing and 
financing activities, Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method. 
Under the indirect method, the net profit/{loss) is adjusted for the effects of: 

i. Changes during the year in inventories and operating receivables and payables and 
transactions of a non-cash nature; 

ii. Non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, unrealised foreign currency gains and 
losses, and undistributed profits of associates; and 

iii. All other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows. 

The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company is segregated 
based on the available information. Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) are 
reflected as such in the Cash Flow Statement. 

1.5 Use of Accounting Estimates: 
The preparation of the financial statements requires that the management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the results of operation during 
the reported period. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of 
current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates which are 
recognised in the period in which they are determined. 

1.6 Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition including any directly 
attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, attributable interest 
and finance costs, if any, till the date of acquisition/ installation of the assets less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant 
and Equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will Now to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. An 
item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. 

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured 
under the previous GAAP as at April 01, 2015 of its Property, Plant and Equipment and use the 
carrying value as deemed cost of the Property, Plant and Equipment on the date of transition i.e 
April 01, 2015. 

1.7 Intangible Assets 
Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is 
probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the 
cost of the asset can be reliably measured. Intangible assets are stated at cost, less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The estimated useful life 
and amortization method reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any 
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis, 
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1.8 

19 

1.10 

(a) 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

Depreciation/ Amortisation 
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost less 
its estimated residual value. Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment have been 
provided on Straight-Line method in accordance with the Schedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013, based on the useful life estimated on the technical assessment as in force and 
proportionate depreciation are charged for additions/disposals during the year. In respect of 
additions / disposal to the fixed assets / leasehold improvements, depreciation is charged from 
the date the asset is ready to use / up to the date of disposal. The asset’s useful lives are 
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. 

Impairment of Assets: 
At the end of each financial year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of Intangible 
assets and property, plant and equipment whether there is any indication that those assets 
have suffered an impairment loss. 

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable 
amount. Recoverable amount is determined at the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and 
the value in use in case of an individual asset and at higher of the cash generating unit’s (CGU) 
net selling price and the value in use. 

Impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment 
loss and the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount. 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset CGU is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no 
impairment loss is recognised for the asset or CGU in prior years. A reversal of an impairment 
loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial Instruments: 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are 
initially measured at transaction values and where such values are different from the fair value, 
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of 
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial 
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss, 

Financial Assets 
Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments. Financial assets other than trade receivables are initially 
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value 
through profit or loss, Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss is initially 
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 
Subsequent Measurement 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following 
categories: 

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business 
model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if 
it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise 
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding. Further, in case where the company has made an irrevocable 
selection based on its business model, for its investments which are classified as equity 
instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive 
income. In any other case, financial asset is fair valued through profit and loss. 

Impairment of Financial Assets 
The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the 
financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss, Loss allowance for trade 
receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime 
ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to 
the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial 
recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit 
losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the 
amount that is required to be recognised is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in 
statement of profit or loss. 

(d) De-recognition of Financial Assets 
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards 
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred 
asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for 
amounts it may have to pay. 

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred 
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a 
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to 
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial 
liability and an equity instrument. 

(a) Equity Instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the 
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments which are issued for cash are 
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs, Equity instruments which are 
issued for consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument. 

(b) Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans 
and borrowings and payables as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at 
fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable 
transaction costs. 
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(c) Subsequent Measurement 
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, 
the carrying amounts approximate the fair value due to the short maturity of these 
instruments. 

(d) De-recognition of Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another 
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the 
original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Cc. Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously. 

1.11 Investment property 
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation 
{including property under construction for such purposes). Investment properties are measured 
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment 
properties are measured in accordance with the Ind AS16's requirement for cost model. 
An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is 
permanently withdrawn from use and no further economic benefits expected from disposal. 

Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the property is included in profit or loss in the 
period in which the property is derecognized. 

1.12 Inventories: 
Raw Materials: 
Raw Materials, construction materials and stores & spares are valued at lower of weighted 
average cost or net realizable value. Cost includes all charges in bringing the materials to the 
place of usage, excluding refundable duties and taxes. 

Work in Progress: 
Work-in-Progress is valued at the contracted rates less profit margin / estimates. 

1.13 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and 
demand deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are 
considered an integral part of the company’s cash management. 

1.14 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: 
The Company recognises provisions when there is present obligation as a result of past event 
and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources and reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for Contingent liabilities is made in the notes on 
accounts when there is a possible obligation or present obligations that may, but probably will 
not, require an outflow of resources. 
Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements when inflow of economic benefit is 
probable. 
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1.15 Interest in Joint Operations 
A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the 
arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the 
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, 
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the 
parties sharing control, 

When a company undertakes its activities under joint operations, the company as a joint 
operator recognises in relation to its interest in a joint operation: 

1, its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly, 
2. its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly, 
3 its revenue from the sale of its share arising from the joint operation, 
4, its share of the revenue from the joint operations, and 
5. its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly. 

The Company accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses relating to its interest 
in a joint operation in accordance with the Ind AS applicable to the particular asscts, liabilities, 
revenues, and expenses. 

1.16 Revenue Recognition 
Revenue from construction/ project related activity and contracts for supply/commissioning of 
complex plant and equipment is recognised as follows: 

1. Cost phis contracts: Revenue from cost plus contracts is determined with reference to the 
recoverable costs incurred during the period and the margin as agreed with the customer. 

2. Fixed price contracts: Contract revenue is recognized only to the extent of cost incurred 
till such time the outcome of the job cannot be ascertained reliably subject to condition 
that it is probable that such cost will be recoverable. When the outcome of the contract is 
ascertained reliably, contract revenue is recognised at cost of work performed on the 
contract plus proportionate margin, using the percentage of completion method, 
Percentage of completion is the proportion of cost of work performed to-date, to the total 
estimated contract costs. 

The estimated outcome of a contract is considered reliable when all the following conditions are 
satisfied: 

i, the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
ii. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the contract will flow to the 

company; 
iii.the stage of completion of the contract at the end of the reporting period can be 

measured reliably; and 
iv. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the contract can be measured reliably. 

Expected loss, if any, on a contract is recognised as expense in the period in which it is 
foreseen, irrespective of the stage of completion of the contract. For contracts where progress 
billing exceeds the aggregate of contract costs incurred to-date and recognised profits {or 
recognised losses, as the case may be), the surplus is shown as the amount due to customers. 
Amounts received before the related work is performed are disclosed in the Balance Sheet as a 
liability towards advance received. Amounts billed for work performed but yet to be paid by the 
customer are disclosed in the Balance Sheet as trade receivables. The amount of retention 
money held by the customers is disclosed as part of other current assets and is reclassified as 
trade receivables when it becomes due for payment. 
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1.17 Other Income: 

a) Dividend Income: 
Dividend income from Investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to reccive 
payment has been established. 

b) Interest Income: 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. 
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and 
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net 
carrying amount on initial recognition. 

1.18 Insurance claims 
Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted 
and to the extent that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to 
expect ultimate collection. 

1.19 Claims 
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts are disclosed under contingent 
liabilities. Claims made by the company are recognised as and when the same is approved by 
the respective authorities with whom the claim is lodged. 

1.20 Commitments 
Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure. Commitments are classified and 
disclosed as follows: 

a} Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 
provided for 

b) Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid 
c) Funding related commitment to subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies and 
d) Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material 

and relevant in the opinion of management. 
e) Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business 

are not disclosed to avoid excessive details. 

1.21 Foreign exchange translation and foreign currency transactions: 
The functional currency and presentation currency of the Company is Indian rupee. 

Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of 
transactions. Gains and losses resulting from settlement of such transactions are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Monetary assets and liabilities related to foreign currency transactions remaining unsettled at 
the end of the year are translated at year end rates. The difference in translation of monetary 
assets and liabilities and realised gains and losses on foreign exchange transactions are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The exchange difference on restatement of long term receivables / payables from / to foreign 
operations that are considered as net investments in such operation are recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity or the 
individual financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. 

 



MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED os 

“Madhucon Projects Limited —— 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

1.22 Employee Benefits: 
Provident fund is defined Contribution scheme and contributions are charged to profit and loss 
account of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. Other retirement 
benefits such as Gratuity, leave encashment etc., are recognized on basis of the independent 
actuarial valuation. 

1.23 Borrowing Costs: 
Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest method and 
finance charges in respect of assets acquired on finance lease. 

Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from 
commencement of activities relating to construction / development of the qualifying asset upto 
the date of capitalisation of such asset are included in the cost of the assets. Capitalisation of 
borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended 
periods when active development activity on the qualifying assets is interrupted, All other 
borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

1.24 Taxes on Income 
Income tax expense represents sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax 

Current Tax 
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in 
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income tax Act, 1961. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities in the Company's financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the 
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible 
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised 
if the temporary differences arise from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a 
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available 
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

1.25 Leases 
The Company's leasing arrangements are mainly in respect of operating leases for premises and 
construction equipment, 

These leasing arrangements range from 11 months to 10 years generally and are usually 
cancellable / renewable by mutual consent on agreed terms. Lease payments under operating 
leases are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis in the statement of profit and loss 
over the lease term except where the lease payments are structured to increase in line with 
expected general inflation. 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

1.26 Fair value measurement 

The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair 
value is the price that would be received on sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: 

a. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
b. In the absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants 
act in their economic best interest. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

1.27 Earnings per Share: 
Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year 
attributable to the Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit 
or loss for the year, adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares, attributable to the 
Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of the equity shares and dilutive potential 
equity shares outstanding during the year except where the results are anti-dilutive. 
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Notes forming part of Finsocial Statements 
2.2 Investments 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

  

  

    
  

‘Aa at March D1, 2023 ‘Aa at Masch 51, 2021 
= Ba af Shares Amount Bool Ghare | Amount __/ 
1} Savestment in Sqeity Intruments 
Cea, 
In Shaews af © 20 cock, SuDy poke up gvhereien apectied) 

Madtirecen Indra Urreted £.22,20.27, 045 1.22.203.70 1222027008 122,202.70 
Matured Teticorie Exgresweups Lrnsued AEH S00 AASOIS ARIA 500 BAMAIS 
Mama Hotei Pricate Larited 3,71,21,200 271212 27131300 ayy 

TS (OK) Expeesewoye Licemed 1,039,000 12.00 i pe,cco 20.09 

Trichy Thactperar Rapreseweys Lertiod 100,000 10.0 Looeco 0 

Cohepre Hagpur Exprenreens Unnitnt 109,000 10.00 $00,000 70.00 

Matinecen Tell Highreays Linedest »),000 am ~o0O aw 
Mafirocen Mega Mel Picaw Lrened 30,000 309 2,00) 20 

Madirecen Neigh: Private Larsieé 2000 200 2,000 200 

Cherenat Kriabevager Rxpresewnys Lovsted 14,900 14 14,000 140 

Basch: Inpreewnys Lined i4,900 1 > 4600 140 

7 Mativeren lebereess 740,900 aso4uT Tmo oo 
7 £0,000 Ordinary Seren of indeewsia Rph 0.110 
Methecen Natural Pessucces Ligiited [Sirygepore| ms or ™ ol 

10 Aspeciates. ; 
in Bearers ef 20 cach, Selly paid up 

Maticen Properties Lisntied 20,000 30 2600 20 

{il} Otbers: 
In Shawwn of € 10 eae, Galy pelt ap 

Ragedagarnen Gee Prrmer Private Ureierd *55,080 46485 2 Oe 485) 
Carers Qask eed 4,000 ” 4,900 rl 

2} Ctber lowestments * 

Mews Hotels Prmate Limited - 5.00 00 - 3,s00 00 

Matiraren Megunal Merete Leoretet - 310.09 - 30.00 

PT Medtrucen indonesia . 1973 14 asrnia 

Martine Tulthoray Kapeewways Liretest ° 440 - 41500 

Fees test Beprerears terested - Leino o 1936.00 

AS58828 134,838.98 | 
aren cana 

id Market Velue Cost Market Vabus 

Aaarenaic shastert wabee of Quoted Levewbenrits Pa) ses i“ om 

ass             

  

        

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

    

  

    

  

      

  

  

  

The Coenqany get 2 status que ender Sen: court wad the case te persting ta er court. Managr ated eel ope traswd, whe et the Gs os 
ewelting the fal epprovel tos Gay Gaverunent Sc going abeed wah the aed poop: and Granciads are prepeced om going concerns 

1A) Te beng Coren ereytetend Srerecer tote at eqcty ateeres af sutnnliary Comeperhes ae given Rerrusder are pleted wath Darks ard Pusaniial bieterinns Shah levee eaterted bean 
focdnatrs te the ¥ 

pees =a 
1 Tuticorin Exprreweeys Liredint neo es4nh 

2 tettwy Lavedtent Maer, sear 

3 Hotels Prixale Lantint 104) ije4t 

|2.2 Trade Receivebtes 

{tip labs 
Aa at Merch 31, 2022 Aa at March 31, 2022 

halt CURTIN, Sennen” Ben-Curremt, c 
Un Secured, Cumestornd good 

Track Receteebles 

From Releced Parties 74aa5 49 - Tam - 

pa Pt Shee : Lareug sins eh fe 
= 7asn.20 4,229.00, Tpes.or 108.84 

C Sf enthe h yeer ie Myre More thee 3 pre Too 

Trsiegeted Traky rrvtvabice - cammaberwa ood tai 5 wie aa Tae 
Lintegetr) [hade Barmatin tah Nene wgmte ond 

noeda ak - - - - = 

Pd Cre tenpetnd Thats Rew rretiirs - raed bpeanyel - - - ° = 

VERA pets Treks Kenery etter aa cemnaternny pone) . . . . . 
Hhvp Dtngndtind Tandy Rircedgtthen - witht haow eqgnaicam! erraee 
je cot rik . . . * . 

: an s ee TAD |                   
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Ae at March 31, 2021 

or » 

the carrying welucs & the books of eocowtte (ough beth these connpantes hare beet) incurring hesees, The chosing tedkeote a af Maret 3), 2022 with reepect te 
Lirstied and NNM tefre tevestinents Limited are” DOTS 11 Lakhs and © 362.57 Lakin eeepectively. 

Uasecered. considered good 

tank Ovpevita o@h more than }2 months maturity 

Kareest Merry Oepenite 

Retentin Money Degenht 

Oder eeceyweliine Deas Releynd Parties 

Beourny Deyoett 

Mewrehe veceney ated chery shegmmste wth tamthes 

Lintngreted Trade sroetvattien + comatcrvel gant 
Uretegeterd Tate Raver sites - wtih Nowy cigratn cw 
Lantegwin! Trade Beoctrahtes - cakt eepwined 

Dieponat Trade Rartrabiee-conmmtennd gout 
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Botes forming part of Financtel Statements 

2.10 Cash and Cenk Equivabents 
(Sin Lakbet 

Aa Aa 

Mroch 31, 2029 | March Ft, 20285. | 
Cah on hard 40 na 

Babasces wtih Hanke 

In Current Accounts ose noun 

Own Depesite 0 “S21 

pee tend, Liteon) Acorns an.22. Abt) 

|_ Total 3,087.29 3,031.48 | 

|2.18 Other Pinaneial Assets 
{ tin Labial! 

an Am 

Meech 9), 309} | Maren 3), 2090 | 
Rictertam Money Ocpentt Po. 1782.00 

Ocver pecetwabives trose Relaced Portion 202 ae 

Seevrty Opes 7442 16 
Advances Recowrabie 250084 1 e047 

|_ Rareest Marwy Depeaie 23.95 g 
Total 3,843.49 406231 

2.12 Other Current Assets 

[Sin kabel) 
Aaa O* At * 

Masch 31,2022 | Mpech $1, 2021 | 
Orther Depoutis 026 131 

Adrance to suppliers, sub-contractors and others o4126 6s78.0 

| verte be Sictated) Parris. ; 1 
Total 6415.00 ieee 

2.12 Equity Shere Copital 

{Sie habseall 
Muntber of Anat ' Number of Anat 
‘Shares Masch 31,2022 | Shares BMaseh 31, 2021 

Aathorined 

Kaquity Shares of @1 cect 3},00,00 600 2000 0) 3),00,09,000 008.00 

Redeemable Preference Shares of €200 pact 20,00,00,000 2,000.00 20,00,00,000 2,000.00 
Total 5,900.90 5,009.90 

Deweed, Bucdecribed and Called op Capitat 

Baquity Shares of t1 cach TAZ LAO mA 7ARGE OO T4200 

Fully pelé up Capital - 

Bagquity Shares of C1 coch Hoo TI795 VITO o mes 

|__ Ai = Prertntieed Susswe Amsssuee vetigicwsDy peste tye 237 2D 23° 257 28 237 | 

|__Fotal 740.23 740.32 | 

nx) Reccociliation of the Number of Eqaity Shares OutviunGiag at beginning and at end of the year 

i Aa oh Mareh 33, 2002 a ares SSE 
0.2 Shsses. Asovent Shtoce 

Beelertow ot Che bengneting of Ue yrer TATA 737,95 7,37, PAO 737,98 
AG1| Equity Shares allornied during @e pear ° ° é e 

Sheers bought hock during the prar « : . ° 

Babsnce at the end of the 7,27, 94,040 737.96 7,37 B4940 737.965         
  

600 pays dividend in Indian Rupees only, 
The Company bes only one clans of paid-up equity shares having par value of ¢ 1 per shew. Keck shareholder of equity sheee is entified te one you per share. The Company dechors! 

  

  

  

  

      

tn the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity sharce will be entitled to recetve reraairizig axeets of the Company, after af al pevfesersiet The} 
Calrtrocan wi be me peepertion to the mumiher of equity shares tedd by the shacwbedders. 

¢j Deiaiie of shares bebd by shaeebsider holding more than 5% 

Ae at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2023 

asa of the Sharshetéee | amber ot shares|  wolshare | Wambereluhares| Wal share 
bois Dolding bobs 

1} St) Name Negrewere Rae 3,07,22,202 i. 167 22.200 1s 

2 M/s Mecthvcon Orenites Lentned 40,+4,000 tow 44,000 O90 

|_ Hest, Sone horntesne Smeets — a =   
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‘Stkawes bold by premeomers at Che end of the pear “ én 

SNe Commotes ase Ne of Sheree | Sol botal haere yor 

' 107 32.202 “As 
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a Lhe hs - 

o naw ams 
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2.14 Other Equity 
S 

| Aa at Marck 31, 2022 ‘As at March 31,2021 

(s) Seeoritios Premiem 29,313.07 AaIaoT 

(bj General Reserve 

Opening Balance 8.061.483 506153 

Ad& Treaster freee Serplus in Sarees of Profit and Lose : = 

Coming Daeere f.081 43 B.od1.53 

|e) Serphes in Statement of Protx and Lees 

Opereng Nalacce Tis T5204 47 

AeOd ¢ Prot fee he Your Assi ay) Ose 351 
Transieon Mowermers - = 

Less: Appropt lations ° 

Progen Divwheed - ° 

Cividend Distriteation Tax - ° 

Transier to General Meserve s * 

Coming Bale 15,200.80 21,582.13 

| (4) Other Components of Equity 
Rereeasurements af the Kamphapee Onfined Teoefs Pace om mis? 
Ea pected comdit lose en fair ealowtom of Gnanctal eetece pee on 

/ (Decrenee) in Coat pur tape of Kilective interest rate enon eo. 

Hart vend 

#284.24)/ peat 

| Totes iabeshtet etefd 92,191.08 | 00,000.89 
|2. 15 Rerrewtege 

— eee eee 
Meterithes * Materities © 

‘Term Loam 

|Secxmedt 

Preen Masts 67,087.79 65,062.01 

Sree prost feyB Loag, tern Sct : Ac08.t/2 ii22 20500 
Total : 71206.48 13.58 72,171.20)                 
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Motes for Long Term Borrowings From: Banks and Mieencta) inatitutions 
Term Lewes form Finacial Imetitutions 
18) Secured by hypothoostine af varions equipments Granced throngh Ge loan errengements (om Finanetal lneiutions 

of the Bank / Fisamctal Iaatitutlon Beet Rata of Outmandiag Repayment 
Jostalmoonts Datereet t in lek Terma/Peried of 

Dapalgenent Pinweee Liveitnd rc eae Tma Somerby 
Mar 22. 

2.16 Trade Puysbice 

(8p kabbust 
Aa at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

Nes Current Current * Nes Current Current © 
Por Supplies and Services 

(0 tort cutatarctiing Gore of macro enterprines andere exterprines, mmal 

(Ti total outatending dure of credtiers ceher than macroodterpriees and ermal eererpriaes wast 47D L4iiae 46.682 55 

Retention Meaney Depoane 

0 total eutmanding Goes of macro euterprinns antemeadl earerpriaes, and 

(Dy) nota) cotetandang dives of orrtiters cher than macroraterprines aed coe] eaterpriaes. 21628 S.260.98 aus 57 7086.20 

Overs 

1A) tote! eurtetaretiog: Ques af Wee lo enierpryees sidernes emterpriece mel 

(1) nomad capt eines dues of creditors other than wie roenter prions wed were) oan Riese Teseo] ss. 2 Bizz3t 

|_Totat 7370-44 $8922.21 12,109, 14 $2,797.26 |                 

Wh references Le Mote Me 2.18 & 2.23 ibe company heves) received any condrinestions about (he MEI: tates of (he Trade peyebles hones 20 claesificetion made 

wdjustmernts woetd be required ln beoke of eccounts upoe reewtpt of these confirmations 

  

  

  

                  

  

  

  

                    

  

  

      

  

  

  

  

ed 

Patewlery 
Lowe thee 8 peer ityews Byes btowe Ouse D veer Tel 

nes - . ° = 

te aaie muse Nem wo LASS a 7s 

8) grated Aare MEME . : - : 

7m 320 we ws as 1m | 
2.17 Other Financial Lisbilities 

{i eahtvas 
As at March 31, 2032 Ax at Mare 51, 2031 

Hea Carrent Current * Noa-Current Curtent * 

leterest Accreed 40d duc on Borrowings 1,905.45 1,966.45 

Uspeoal Divehond Accwunts Ob 27) 

Paypahie te Byteted Taree “ - 733.00 - 

pe oir Pasabien, Es 227202. 22.51) 
Le il 7288 a2tcp ALG) 1.87 

2.18 Provisions 
{sin Labbst 

wn Cr) 

moved 31, 2003 | steed 33, 202) 
Prerision for Employee Benethts 

Granatty TO. 72,70 

}__Sscmacireriey sinerec} ote aes! 

Teta 319.55 104.07 | 
2.19 Other Mon Current Linkilities 

2 re 

As at Mere® 31, 2002 Aa at Moreh 33, 9021 

— Cureent * Wow Curvent Curewnt = 

Mihbtetion Ahene ino 2.7843! 3247 90 6.57 

Maechtorry Adraccr - MAM - 34.76 

Material Afventce ‘72 - 472 s76 

Hewerese Rearend ip whrenee - s70.4) . 43,20 

a Deane Afvonces Seep Reteted Parties = 298023! : 35.0177 | 
ae i | 221128. 23,293.99 2,306.82 29,200.46 )                 
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Moock 33, 3022 | March 33, 2021 

Coedit/Oveedralt facilities availed from banks are serered > 
Firw part-paswa bypechecatian charge te afl working capital beenics In Maltipie Dearing Acrergement on all caiating and ftere 
CUloees enact 

Seemed park paawy on all the feed aseets of the Company Bech present ened farure. 
Dalanees 06 o@ Marek 33, 2032 

of the Bank 

Dark 
Thank of Wate 
National Denk 

Mahindra lank 
Prewwn 
oft Inetia 
Fee, 

4 repayment * “ew 

the the yret refed’ Set March 222 on ts bare 

of in mad taterest to Danks and Financial Institutions as om March 2022 

Mame of the Bank / Tinencial inatitwtion 

Sinee the compary has defatted in cypayewet of Docrwings to harks theee awry deckared as NPAs by teetka Hence entire berrewtrggs mre sows in Current Liabdries 
  
  

  

      
  

  

  
  

      

            

  

  

    

2.21 Trade Payables 

{Sin txkbys) 
am acm 

Moreh 3}, 3023 _} March 33, 2033 | 
Fer Sapplics and Serewes 

Ue tetel cutetarstizg Goes of wicro enterprise: andemall enterpriecs: and 

(0) total cutetanding does of conditers other than microtnterprises and erchall enterprises. 4620755 6405 

firtentinn Menry Orpesits 

(A) total cutetarting Ques af macro eryterpriars encerpall emterpriaes, arya 

(0) total outstanding ducts of conditers other than microciterprises and ermal enterpriare. 5,700.98 7mm 

Over 
(9 betel eutetareting Qare ef moro erierprinne endemall emterpriacs, end 

[i toma) cutstanding Gwes of coptitors other than micrormterpriams amd a 12590 S127 3! | 

|__ Fetal 5$,825.26 22,707.26 | 

Petrie ter teBewing ports trem der dete of peyescnt 

Reve eee 9 your S23 een Zi yews Te es 
oe - ° - 

Cohers emo wens wes Ras mae 

Diagn dure MMT > : 

Kieqeted Jere - Orders 2 - . - 

Bene jee bo 

2.22 Other Financial Lisbilitics 
[ tin Laktes 

Cy) wae 

_Maved 3}, 203) | 
lomerest Accreed aad dur on Herrewings 1965.45 196645 

Onpeat Divitend Anceuen 204) 2art 

|__ Other Pareetirs 1,739 de. 233281) 
bl 2,733,7¢ 31311:87       
  

 



Rotes Gorming part of Fisasetel Stelemente 
Liehitles 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

      

  

  

          

  

  

  

    
  

  

    

2.23 Other Corrent 
[Sin babbst 

Aa at Ae at 
March 31,2022 | Macch 31,2021 

Breese Record i advance F70as 4110 

Mobllocinn Advance 27631 “57 

Nechinery Advasre 1626 sm 

Material Advance . a7 

One Advances tare Rekvwd Purtive 70.422.33 38.0177 | 

Deal a2 32,240.50 | 

|2.24 Provisions 

{Sin taal 
sam Ames 

March 31,2022 | March 31,2021 

Provisios for Kemglopes Benefits 

Oratuity en 7205 

Competed abscoces iia oo 

Other Previetons 

Previaton fhe Bed Detees 9A - 

neal eesti) Roe bere. Ze) 22M) 
a ta 10,899, 34 4007.3}. 

|3:28 Revenes tress Openntions 
[Sin Exktas)| 

‘Year coded March |Your ended March 
21, 2022 21, 2022 

Income fren Cantrects arsl Services OAS OF LRM 
Other Operwting Wcoene WSU EPL 

1 Fotas 70,614.95 |__ 64,685.05 | 

|<.:36 Cithec income 
re 

Yeas ended Wark [oar coded Mase] 
31, 2033 

Ineeeret Income 13% reo 

NMiscxtlanenes loco LWA 679 

Voreign Rarharge Goin : 360 
|_Fovtat Lies) _ 7,390.97 | 
2.27 Cont of Materials Consumed and Work Eapenees 

. 

‘Year eaded March 31,2002 1, aoa 

Construction Materia, Sevres andl eure 

Opening Stock 131667 2.20.25 

A@d: Porches Amsats B42132 

Lees ¢ Closing Sick ™o4) 1Al687 

Total Consumption 9,760.02 9210.99 

Work Expenses 43,1903! 52,1292) SO.93L11 52,901,118 

|_ Total, 51,200.53 vo 

2.28 Eenployes Bamefits Expense 
* 

Your ended Trea 
Merch 33,3033) Maved 31,3033 | 

Salarive & Wages arnt Thane 153447 PS | 

Conrrteetien G@ provident and other Aunts aas 304 

nen SO Weitere Eamrners. 16).09 $90.95 | 

|__ Fetal 1 S716 3,728.60 | 

2.29 Finance Cont 

_ it 
Your cated Fin woe 

March 35,2023 | Maren 31.2031 

| __ Inner Rape aur a 
L_ Total S174       
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2.30 Other Expense . 

Your vada | Yor saded 
Mareh 33,2023 | Moreh 33,2023 | 

Rent MIA) uw 

Rates & Taare 42.95 372.00 

Treerting Expenses “7 Aai 4a40 

feowrty Rapewses “a2 +e 

leweranee Charges m0) as? 

Conndtey Chargers _— > mH 

Mévenors wrinen off 3963.28 sue 

Other Adanetinttetiee Eapernes 208.67 *26.10 
Poreign Kactrange Lote 37268 

Bed Octete Written of 950026 s,498.08 

Denk Guntantee Comuminatoo T1240 $43.50 

DO fees aii te : 
L___ Total 19,208.99 20,872.33 | 

Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

2.31 Contingent Liabilities not provided for: 

(in Lakhs) 

S.No | Particulars As at As at 
31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021 

1 | Bank Guarantees** 19,929.38 24,096.32 
2 | Corporate Guarantees issued by the Company on 8,526.29 26,000.00 

behalf of its subsidiaries and others 
3 | Disputed Sales Tax (on appeal) 687.42 687.42 

4 | Entry Tax 8.85 8.85 

5 | Service Tax 1,655.75 1,655.55 

6 | Goods and Service Tax - 3,28 

7 |The Company is a party to legal suits on| Amount not | Amount not 
construction contract terms related disputes, | ascertainable | ascertainable 
pending before various courts in India as well as 
arbitration proceedings. It is not possible to make a 
fair assessment of the likely financial impact of 
these pending disputes / litigations until the cases 
are decided by the appropriate authorities 

** on behalf of Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures. 

2.32 Remuneration to auditors: 

(% in Lakhs) 

S.No | Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 
1 Statutory Audit Fee 8.00 8.00 
2 | Tax Audit Fee 2.00 2,00 
3 _| GST Audit Fee 3,00 3.00             

2.33 Segment Reporting: 
The Company's operations predominantly consist of construction/project activities, Hence 
there are no reportable segments under Ind AS 108. 
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2.34 Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS 11 Construction contracts 

Particulars (Xin Lakhs) 
2021-22 2020-21 

Contract revenue recognised 60,431.64 | 61,525.24 
Aggregate of contract costs incurred and recognised profits 3,63,034.86 | 5,47,512.37 
(less recognised losses) up to the reporting date for Contracts 
in progress 

Amount of advances received for contracts in progress 3,238.27 4,348.34 

Amount of retention money for contracts in progress 1,058.26 12,237.38 
Gross amount due from customers for contracts in progress 1,667.75 8,029.61       
  

2.35 Micro & Small Enterprises: The Management has taken steps to identify the enterprises 
which have provided goods and services to the company and which qualify under the 
definition of Micro and Small Enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts 

payable to such enterprises as on 31" March, 2022 has been made in the financial 
statements based on information received and such amount outstanding as on 31" March, 
2021 to Micro and Small Enterprises is NIL. Further, in the view of the Management, the 
impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is 
not expected to be material. 

  

  

2.36 Earnings per Share: (* in Lakhs) 

Yearended | Year ended 
March 31, March 31, 
2022 2021 

Net Profit after tax available for equity shareholders (3,381.33) (3,646.70) 

Weighted Average number of equity shares for Basic EPS | 7,37,94,940 | 7,37,94,940 
{Nos) 
Weighted Average number of equity shares for Basic EPS | 7,37,94,940 | 7,37,94,940 

(Nos) 
Face Value per Share () 1.00 1.00 

Basic and Diluted EPS * (’) (4.58) (4.94)       
  

*The Company has no dilutive instruments. As such Diluted Earnings per share equals to 
Basic Earnings per share. 
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2.37 Related Party Transactions: 

(It) 

1. Following are the list of related parties 

MADHUCOMN 

  

S.No. Particulars 
  

  

A. Subsidiaries 
Madhucon Infra Limited 

Madurai - Tuticorin Expressways Limited 

Step-down Subsidiaries 

TN (DK) Expressways Limited 

Trichy - Thanjavur Expressways Limited 

Chhapra Hajipur Expressways Limited 

Barasat-Krishnagar Expressways Limited 

Ranchi Expressways Limited 

Madhucon Toll Highways Limited 

Vijayawada-Machilipatnam Expressways Ltd 

Rajauli Bakthiyapur Expressways Limited 

Associates 

Madhucon Properties Limited. 

O
S
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Related party transactions during the year as follows 

(in Lakhs) 
  

2021-22 2020-21 
  

Revenue from Contracts and Services 

Step-down subsidiaries 

Jointly Controlled/entities and ventures 

Remuneration 

Key Management Personnel 

Director Sitting Fee 

Loans/ Advances Given 

Subsidiaries 

Step-down subsidiaries 

Jointly Controlled/entities and ventures 

Loans/ Advances Received 

Subsidiaries 

Step-down subsidiaries 

Jointly Controlled/entities and ventures 

Associates 

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management 
personnel or their relatives 
Retention Money 

Step-down subsidiaries   Jointly Controlled/entities and ventures   

2,070.57 

6,177.94 

124.38 

1.30 

604,28 

(983.97) 

2,251.68 

2,373.37 

2,809.84 

1,273.19 

12.41 

2,951.39 

5,100.33 

81,85 

1.30 

2.22 

1,135.40 

329,35 

1,352.87 

1,102.48 

147.57 

303.16     
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{II} Related Party balances outstanding at the end of the year as follows 

  

  

      

{ in Lakhs) 

2021-22 2020-21 

Trade Receivables 

Subsidiaries - 531.48 

Step-down subsidiaries 7,036.77 9,905.57 

Jointly Controlled/entities and ventures 428.72 - 

Outstanding Receivables 
Subsidiaries 23,412.91 | 22,277.15 

Step-down subsidiaries 2,214.81 3,427.70 

Associates 473.65 3,283.49 

Jointly Controlled/ entities and ventures 12.41 4,668.00 

Key Management Personnel 49.33 55.19 

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management 3,590.79 | 4,763.07 
personnel or their relatives 

Outstanding Payables 

Step-down subsidiaries 14,310.00 | 36,430.91 

Jointly Controlled/entities and ventures - 1,822.96 

Key Management Personnel 0.48 1.60 

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management 153.02 174.70 
personnel or their relatives 

Corporate Guarantees 

Subsidiaries 8,526.29 9,976.69 

Bank Guarantees 

Step-down subsidiaries 4,335.00 4,335.00 

Jointly Controlled/entities and ventures 5,822.85 8,900.00 
    

2.40 Some of the Bank Accounts at closed projects which are in dormant and have not been 
reconciled due to non-availability of statements. 

2.41 Going Concern 
In Preparing the financial statements the Board of Directors have considered the operations of the 

Company as going concern notwithstanding that the Company incurred a net loss of Rs. 3,361.88 
Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 3,682.34 Lakhs } for the financial year ended 3ist march 2022, and as at 

that date, the Company is in net current liabilities position of Rs. 1,85,349.72 Lakhs (Previous year 
Rs. 1,89,771.58 Lakhs }. The Company is also in net liabilities position of Rs. 1,94,118.70 Lakhs 
{Previous Year : Rs. 2,05,715.01 Lakhs ) as at 31st March 2022. In addition as disclosed in Note 

No. 2.22 to the financial statements the company has defaulted in payments of borrowings to 

Banks and these were declared as NPA’s by banks. As on date the company is in discussions with 
its lenders for One Time Settlement of their dues. 
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2.42 Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/re-classified to conform to the figures of 
the current year. 
2.43 Additional Regulatory Information 

i) Tithe Deeds of all immovable properties are held in the name of the company. 

ii) The Company is not in possession of any Investment property. 

iii) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year, 

v) No loans and advances were granted to promoters, directors, KMPs 

vi) There is no capital work-in-progress 

viii) There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami 
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made 
thereunder 

ix} The company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets but those 
borrowings has been declared as NPAs by the banks and hence there are no returns or statements 
filed by the company. 

x) The company was not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution. 

xi) The company did not enter into any transactions with struck off companies. 

xii)There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period, 

xiii) The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 
2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017, 

xiv) There are no Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of 
sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 

xv) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share 5 
(A) The company didn't advance or lend or invest funds (cither borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies),including foreign 
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that 
the Intermediary shall 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

(B) The company didn't receive any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign 
entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that 
the company shall 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

 



Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED oe 

{ii} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

xvi} The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. 

MAD 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

xvii) Ratios 

S.No] Particulars Numerator Denominator 3st ist Variance 
March | March 
2022 | 2021 

1 | Current Ratio Current assets Current liabilities 0.090 0.102 12% 

2 | Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity 3.465 3.672 6% 

3 | Debt Service Coverage | Earnings available for debt | Debt Service 20.018 24.840 19% 
Ratio service 

4 | Return on Equity Net Profits after taxes Average Sharcholder’s | (4.541) (4.974) 9% 
(ROE) Equity 

5 | Trade receivables Revenue Average Trade 10.262 8.070 27%" 
turnover ratio Receivable 

6 | Trade payables Purchases of servicesand | Average Trade 0.814 0.967 16% 
turnover ratio other expenses Payables 

7 | Net capital turnover Revenue Working Capital (0.428) (0.422) 2% 
ratio 

8 | Inventory Turnover Revenue Average Inventory 83.120 36.705 | 126%"* 
Ratio 

9 | Net profit ratio Net Profit Revenue (0.047) (0.051) 9% 

10 | Return on capital Earning before interest and | Capital Employed (0.018) (0.066) | 73%°"* 
employed (ROCE) taxes 
Return on 
Investment(ROI) 

11 | Unquoted Income generated from Time weighted om 7 There 
investments averageinvestments was no 

income 
from the 
investme 
nts 

12 | Quoted Income generated from Time weighted ra om There 
investments averageinvesitments was no 

income 
from the 
investme 
nts               
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Comments: 

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio * 
Trade Receivable Ratio has been improved as result of better collection mechanism and also due 
to imporovement in the turnover. 

Inventory Turnover Ratio ** 
Inventory Turnover Ratio is increased as result of better utilization of material and effective 
management policies 

Return on Capital employed *** 
Ratio on Capital Employed is improved due to substantial reduction in the loss of the company 

xviii) Undisclosed Income 
There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or 
disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during 
the year, 

xix)Corporate Social Responsibility 
Since the company is incurring losses in current year and consecutively for preceding 2 financial 
years CSR is not appilcable 

xx) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency 
The company has neither traded nor invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the 
financial year 

In terms of our report attached 

For P.Murali & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN : 007257S 

A.Krishna Rao N. Secthaiah Mohammad Shafi 
Partner Managing Director Whole-time Director 
Membership Number 020085 DIN-00784491 DIN-07 178265 

K. Venkateswariu D. Malla Reddy 
Place : Hyderabad Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
Date : May 28, 2022 ACS: 9559 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of 

M/s, Madhucon Projects Limited 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 

. Qualified opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of MADHUCON 

PROJECTS LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Holding Company’), its subsidiaries 

and its associate (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and associate together referred 

to as 'the Group’) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,2022,the 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including the statement of other comprehensive 

income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow, the Consolidated Statement of Changes 

in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and 

other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ‘consolidated financial 

statements’). 

The Consolidated Financial statements includes the following entities 

Subsidiaries 

1) Madhucon Infra Limited [Which includes its Subsidiaries (i to ix ), 
mentioned below] 

2) Madurai Tuticorin Expressways Limited (audited by other auditors) 

3) Madhucon Mega mall Pvt Ltd 

4) Nama Hotels Pvt Ltd 

5) Madhucon Heights Pvt Ltd 

Subsidiaries of Madhucon Infra limited 
i. Madhucon Toll Highways Ltd 

ii. TN (DK) Expressways Ltd (audited by other auditors) 

iii. TrichyTanjavur Expressways Ltd (audited by other auditors) 

iv. ChhapraHajipur Expressways Ltd (audited by other auditors) 

v. Barasa Krishnagar Expressways Ltd (audited by other auditors) 

vi. Ranchi expressways Ltd (audited by other auditors) 

vii. Vijayawada-MachilipatnamExpressways Limited (audited by other auditors) 

viii. RajauliBakthiyapur Expressways Limited (audited by other auditors) 

ix. PT Madhucon Indonesia (Unaudited) 
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B Associates 

1, Madhucon Properties Limited (This company is not considered for consolidation) 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 

section of our report, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the 

Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 

at March 31, 2022, and loss and other comprehensive loss, consolidated changes in equity 

and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

2. Basis for Qualified Opinion 

1, We refer to the carrying value of investments held in and unsecured loans and 
advances given by the company to its subsidiaries, which have been incurring 
losses and in case of some of these companies, net worth was fully or substantially 
eroded. In the absence of fair valuation of these investments, we are unable to 
comment upon the carrying value of investments and we are unable to comment 
whether any provision for impairment in the value of investments, loans and 
advances is required. 

2. We refer to the “Madhucon Mega Mall Private Limited (MMMPL)” a subsidiary of 
the company incorporated for developing shopping mall cum multiplex on leased 
land taken from Andhra Pradesh housing Board ( Now known as Telangana 
housing Board) (“The Board”) at Kukatpallyin Hyderabad. Pending approval from 
government to start the project, the carrying values of Investments in and Loans 
Sanctioned to MMMPL amounting to Rs.3,500.00 lakhs and Rs.135.33 Lakhs 
respectively are shown as realizable at the Values Stated in the Books of Accounts. 

3, There are outstanding Loans andadvances of Rs 3075.11 Lakhs and Rs 362.87 Lakhs 
granted to “Nama Investments Limited” and “NNR Infra Investments Private 
Limited” respectively, in which the Company’s Directors have Interest. These 
Companies have been incurring Losses and accumulated losses exceeded the Net 
Worth, The management is yet to assess the risk of default and resultant expected 
credit loss allowance on such loans and advances. 

4."The Holding company’ is yet to transfer unpaid dividend of an amount 
aggregating to Rs. 6.62 Lakhs relating to Financial Years 2008-09 to 2010-11from 
unpaid dividend account to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 

5. “the Holding company” has defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks and financial 
institutions amounting to Rs.67,087.79Lakhs and Rs,4,508.69 Lakhs respectively as 
per books of account. All the loans outstanding were classified as NPA by the Banks 

and Financial Institutions. Interest on these loans have not been provided for the 
financial years 2018-19 to 2021-22. 

6. There are some delays in depositing undisputed statutory dues by the ‘The Holding 
company’ including Provident Fund, , Income-tax, Sales Tax, Goods and Service Tax, , 
and other statutory dues, Undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof, which were 
outstanding for more than six months from the date they became payable are as follows: 
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S.No.| Name of the Status Nature of Due Period Rs. 

in Lakhs 

1 The Income Tax Act, 1961 Dividend 2011-12 to 2015-16 139,93 

Distribution Tax & 

Interest on it 

2 Professional Tax PT PAYABLE 2011-12 to 2020-21 20.87 

3 The Employees Provident Provident fund 2013-14 to 2020-21 95.73 

ds and Miscellaneous 

vision act 1952 

4 Sales Tax Sales Tax payable [2013-14 to 2021-22 28.55 

5 Works Contract Tax Works ContractTax /|2014-15 to 2017-18 611.42 

6 Goods and Service Tax Goods and Service 2021-22 167.27 

Tax 

7 The Income Tax Act, 1961 Tax Deducted at 2021-22 3.07 

Source     
7. In view of losses incurred by “the HoldingCompany” and in the absence of prior 

approval from the lender banks and* financial Institutions, managerial 
remuneration of Rs. 93.93 Lakhs paid by the company during the year is in excess of 
the limits specified under section 197 read with schedule V of Companies Act,2013. 

8. (a) ‘The holdingCompany’ is yet to file final GST Returns for the FY 2021-22 in case 
of a few states. 

(b) The turnover and input credits are subject to reconciliation. 

9. In case of The Holding company’ Internal Audit has not been conducted for the 
period 01* October 2021 to 31" March 2022. 

10.‘The Holding company’ has not produced Title Deeds in respect of certain 
immovable properties (lands) held as Property plant and Equipment. 

11. In case of “Ranchi Expressways Ltd (REL)”, a step-down subsidiary of the 
company,CBI has filed FIR against REL, its Promoters and Directors on 12-03-2019 
under Prevention of Corruption Act and Indian Penal Code. Subsequently, the 
Enforcement Directorate has raided the premises of “the company” on 11-06-2021 
and the investigation is under progress. 

12. In the absence of confirmationsof Trade Payables, Trade Receivables and various 
advances/loans, we are unable to comment on the extent to which such balances 

are payable/recoverable. 

13. Madhuconinfra Limited has defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institution 
amounting to Rs, Rs,16.57 Crores as per books of account. The loan outstanding was 
classified as NPA by the Financial Institution. Interest on the loan have not been provided 
for the financial years 2018-19 to 2021-22. Borrowings from financial institution are subject 
to confirmation and reconciliation. 
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14.“Madhucon infra Limited (MIL)”, has a term loan from ICICI bank whose principal 
outstanding was 14.82 crores as per OTS agreement against which the bank had approved 
one-time settlement (OTS) . The settlement amount for all the dues outstanding was Rs, 
3.41 crores to be paid within 30days from the date of acceptance, which was accepted and 
fulfilled by the company as per the terms and the balance outstanding liability (after 
OTS), was offered under other income. 

15. The IFCI Ltd had approved one-time settlement (OTS) of its outstanding dues of 
Rs.190.96 Crores vide its letters dated February 24',2020. In terms of settlement, OTS 
amount of Rs, 70 Crores was to be paid by the company in three instalments. However, 
the company madetotal payment of 13.5 crores up to 31** March,2022. 

16, Madhuconinfra Limited, has made a provision of Rs, 58.66 Crores towards impairment at 
5% on investments in equity and other investments made in its subsidiaries.In the absence 
of fair valuation of the same, we are unable to comment on the adequacy of the provision 
made. 

17. Madhucon Infra Limited, balances as at 31 March,2022 in respect of Some subsidiaries are 
subject to reconciliation. 

18. In view of losses incurred by Madhucon Infra Limited and in the absence of prior 

approval from the lender banks and financial Institutions, managerial remuneration of 

Rs 34,51 lakhs paid by the company during the year is in excess of the limits specified 

under section 197 read with schedule V of Companies Act,2013. 

3. Emphasis of Matter 

« “the Holding Company” has offered Rs. 3,999.13 Lakhs as Revenue during the year 
which was an Advance received against work bills from a step-down subsidiary. 

e We draw attention to Note 2.41 to the ‘The Holding company’s’financial 
statements- 

“the Holding company’s” current liabilities exceeded current assets and “the 
Holding company” has defaulted in payment of dues to banks , all these indicate a 
material uncertainty existing that may cast a significant doubt on “the Holding 
company’s” ability to continue as a going concern. However, the management 
believes the use of going concern assumption on the preparation of the financial 
statements of “the Holding company” is still appropriate in view of its continuing 
discussions with its lenders to obtain approval for and implementation of an 
appropriate debt resolution plan, and “The Holding Company” will continue to be 
in operation in the foreseeable future. 
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e Madhucon Heights Private limited subsidiary of “The Holding company’ defaulted 
in repayment of dues to Banks .amounting to Rs 9,047.76 Lakhs. respectively as per 
books of account. All the loans outstanding were classified as NPA by the Banks. 
Interest on these loans have not been provided. 

¢ Madhucon Heights Private limited subsidiary of ‘The Holding company’ The 

accumulated losses have completely eroded the Net worth of the company. The 

company has suffered recurring Losses. The accounts of the company have been 

prepared on the basis of going concern assumption. However, the eroded Net 

worth will significantly affects the company’s ability to continue as a going concern 

unless it raises capital in order to fund its operations. 

Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 

our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 

context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements of 'the Holding Company’, and in 

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters, We have 

determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 

report 

* ‘The carrying value of investments held in and unsecured loans and advances given by “the 

Holding company” to its subsidiaries, which have been incurring losses and in case of some of 

these companies, net worth was fully or substantially eroded. 

* “The Holding Company” has defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks and financial institutions 

All the loans outstanding were classified as NPA by the Banks and Financial Institutions. 

Interest on these loans have not been provided for the financial years 2018-19 to2021-22. 

* Thereare noconfirmations of Trade Payables and various advances/ loans. 

* Title Deeds in respect of certain immovable properties (lands) held by “the Holding Company” 

were not produced. 

* Incase of 'the Holding Company’ internal Audit has not been conducted for the period Olst 

October 2021 to 31st March 2022. 

* “TheGroup's” current liabilities exceeded current assets, 

4. Other Matter Paragraph: 

a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of one 
subsidiary and seven step down subsidiaries included in the statement, whose 
financial statements together comprise total assets, before elimination, of 
Rs.4,20,266.08 Lakhs as at March 31, 2022, total Revenue of Rs.32,690.69 Lakhs and 
total Loss & total Comprehensive loss of Rs. 9760.93 Lakhsfor the period 01-04-2021 
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to 31-03-2022. The financial statements and other financial information of these 
subsidiaries have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished 
to us by the Management, and our audit opinion on the consolidated financial 
results, to the extent they have been derived from such financial statement is solely 
based on the reports of the other auditors. 

b) The financial statements and other financial information of PT Madhucon Indonesia, 

a Foreign step down subsidiary of the Holding company included in the statement, 
/whose financial statements comprise total assets, before elimination, of Rs.9370.09 
Lakhs as at March 31, 2022, total Revenueof Rs 0.46 lakhs and total Loss & total 
Comprehensive lossof Rs. 15,51 Lakhs for the period 01-04-2021 to 31-03-2022,The 
Financial statements / financial information of this company are unauditedhave 
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in 
respect of this Foreign step down subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-sections 
(3) and (11) of section 143 of the Act, in so far it relates to the aforesaid stepdown 
subsidiary, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements / financial 
information. 

c) The Consolidated Financial Results of Madhucon Infra Limited for the year ended 
3ist March, 2022, does not include the financial statements/ financial results of its 
subsidiary “Simhapuri Energy Limited”(SEL) which has gone into liquidation and 
The Madhucon Infra Limited has created 100% provision for the investment in 
“Simhapuri Energy Limited” and in case of “ Madhucon Projects Ltd “ its entire 
investment in “Simhapuri Energy Limited” has been written off. . 

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of one subsidiary 
and seven stepdown subsidiaries. Our opinion on the statement is not modified in respect 
of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the 
other auditors, 

The “Opinion” /"Emphasis of Matter Paragraph” /”Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements ” of such audit reports are reproduce below: 

Barasat-Krishnagar Expressways Limited ("BKEL') 

Due to termination of the project of the company, going concern assumption is not 
appropriate and financial statements have been drawn accordingly. Cost incurred on the 
project upto 31-3-2022 at Rs. 5,81,79,22,202/- including the Cost and expenses incurred on 
and for the project for the financial year covered under the audit report instead of writing- 
off to profit & loss have been accounted as NHAI Claims receivable under the head "Other 
Current Financial Assets" which is In contravention of the provisions of Indian accounting 
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standard Ind AS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets) claims being 
contingent asset in nature. This has resulted in over-statement of Current Assets and 
understatement of loss for the year accordingly and Cumulative loss to that extent. Further, 
no interest has been provided for on the borrowings from institutions. 

Subject to above, in our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required 
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 
at 31st March, 2022, and its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date, 

Emphasis of Matter: 

1) We draw attention to note no. 1 in the financial statements "The construction work is 
delayed due to pending approvals and right of way to be provided by NHAI. The 
Company had issued notice for termination of the project to NHAI on 31st December, 2015. 
The company and NHAI entered into a Supplementary Agreement to the 'Concession 
Agreement dated 20th June, 2011' on 2nd May, 2016 for inclusion of the clause of ‘Society 
for Affordable Redressal of Disputes' (GSAROD) Committee for arbitration. NHAI had also 
issued notice for terminations of the project vide its letter dated 3rd May, 2016 and the 
company had replied that the notice is not valid. Both Company and NHAI appointed 
arbitrators. The Arbitration proceeding are in progress with SAROD. 

2) The borrowings from secured lenders have been declared as Non-performing asset by the 
lender. Interest on related borrowings have not been provided for. 

In view of the above going concern assumption is not appropriate and therefore financial 
statements have been drawn accordingly. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Rajauli-Bakthiyarpur Expressways Limited (‘RBEL’) 

Emphasis of Matter: 

Project of the Company has been foreclosed with mutual consent, therefore, going concern 
assumption is not appropriate and financial statements have been drawn accordingly. 

As the project of the company has been foreclosed with mutual consent, cost incurred on 
the project up-to 31st March, 2022 Rs.8,15,39,853/- instead of writing-off, has been 
accounted asClaims receivable under the head “Other Current Assets" which is in 
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contravention of the provisions of Indian accounting standard Ind AS 37 (Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets) claims being contingent asset in nature. This 
has resulted in over-statement of Current Assets by Rs.8,15,39,853/- and understatement of 
cumulative loss by the same amount. 

The Company is continuing to expect the reliasation of the expenses incurred on the project 
recoverable within a period of 12 months. However, it is not materialised so far . 

Madurai Tuticorin Expressways Limited (MTEL) 

Emphasis of Matter: 

MADHURAI-TUTICORIN Expressways Limited (MTEL) has taken loans from different 
financial institutions. Those loans became NPAs. 

Interest on such loans has been provided for till the day of becoming NPAs and to the 
extent interest has been paid afterwards. Hence, interest has not been recognized for the 
year on both long term and short term portions of loans. The balances lying in the Bank 
current accounts are subject to external confirmation. 

The amounts due to the company and due by the company are continued to be classified as 
current assets and current liabilities, while they are due for more than 12 months. 

The provision for Periodic maintenance and MMR has not been provided in accordance 

with the future requirements as estimated and also the amortization of project cost has been 

provided at lesser amount. 

The adequacy of the IND AS adjustments is not corroborated and is subject to other Ind AS 
adjustments carried out during the year. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

i. The Company has pending litigation at the Madurai Bench of The Honorable High 
Court of Madras, Bench made by Bus Owner's Association against Madurai plaza to 
direct the concessionaire to collect 50% of toll fee. However the Honorable High Court 
ordered to collect 70% of toll fee from 21.12.2018 onwards till the relevant section of 
NH-45 B toll highway has been fully relied as per the specifications in the Concession 
Agreement, 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. No deferred tax provisions have been made in view of the estimation of inadequate 
revenue in future to adjust the same. 

d) Chhapra- Hajipur Expressways Limited (CHEL) 

Emphasis of Matter: 

Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Limited (CHEL), a Public Limited Company, was 

incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, on24 Day of June, 2010 as a Special Purpose 

Vehicle for Design, Build, Operate, Finance and Transfer of 4 laning of Chhapra-Hajipur 

section of NH-19 from KM 143.200 to Km 207,200 in the state of Bihar on annuity basis for a 

concession period of 15 years (2.5years of construction period and 12.5 years of operating 

period). 

This contract was awarded by NHAI .The company shall hand over project to the NHAI on 

expiry of concession period. The Concession Agreement, on execution, will entitle the 

company to take a fixed sum of annuity every 6 months, in arrears, starting from the date of 

commencement of commercial operations (COD) from NHAL The construction work is 

under progress. 

No deferred tax provisions have been made in view of the estimation of inadequate revenue 
in future to adjust the same. 

The project cost of Rs. 973.14 crores includes Rs. 342.60 crores deferred IND AS 
adjustments, The adequacy of the IND AS adjustments is not corroborated and is subject to 
other Ind AS adjustments carried out during the year. 

This has reflected in the increase of the Liabilities and an increase in the Project cost 
represented by NHAI receivables. 

TrichyThanjavur Expressways Limited (TTEL) 

Emphasis of Matter: 

TRICHY-THANJAVUR Expressways Limited (TTEL) has taken loans from banks. Those 
loans became NPAs. 
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Interest on such loans has been provided for till the day of becoming NPAs in previous 
years and to the extent interest has been paid afterwards. Hence, interest has not been 
recognized for the year on both long term and short term portions of loans. 

The amounts due to the company and due by the company are continued to be classified as 
current assets and current liabilities, while they are due for more than 12 months. 

The provision for Periodic maintenance and MMR has not been provided in accordance 

with the future requirements as estimated and also the amortization of project cost has been 

provided at lesser amount. 

The adequacy of the IND AS adjustments is not corroborated and is subject to other Ind AS 
adjustments carried out during the year, 

TN (DK) Expressways Limited (TNDK) 

Emphasis of Matter: 
TN (DK) Expressways Limited (TNDK) has taken loans from different financial institutions. 
Those loans became NPAs. 

Interest on such loans has been provided for till the day of becoming NPAs and to the 
extent interest has been paid afterwards. Hence, interest has not been recognized for the 
year on both long term and short term portions of loans. 

The amounts due to the company and due by the company are continued to be classified as 
current assets and current liabilities, while they are due for more than 12 months. 

The provision for MMR has not been provided in accordance with the future requirements 

as estimated and also the amortization of project cost has been provided at lesser amount. 

The adequacy of the IND AS adjustments is not corroborated and is subject to other Ind AS 
adjustments carried out during the year, 

The other income includes Rs. 8.90 crores arising from write off by Madhucon Infra 
Limited. This has resulted in the reduction of outstanding due by the company to 
Madhucon Infra Limited. 
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g) Ranchi Expressways Limited (REL) 

Emphasis of Matter: 

Ranchi Expressways Limited (REL), a Public Limited Company, was incorporated under 

the Companies Act, 1956, on2™ Day of June, 2010 as a Special Purpose Vehicle for Design, 

Build, Operate, Finance and Transfer of 4 laneing of Ranchi-Rangoan-Jamshedpur section of 

NH-33 from KM 114.00 to Km 277.500 in the state of Jharkand on annuity basis for a 

concession period of 15 years. This contract was awarded by NHAI. The company shall 

hand over the Project Highway to NHAI on expiry of concession period. 

The company has achieved physical progress of 50.24% and approached NHAI for One 

Time Fund Infusion (OTFI) for completion of the remaining stretch. NHAI has initially 

sanctioned an amount of Rs.223 Crs as One Time Fund Infusion and subsequently NHAI 

has gone back by cancelling the already sanction OTFI amount of Rs.223 Crs, Lenders and 

the company have preferred One Time Settlement (OTS) with NHAI for the works already 

completed. 

While negotiations are going on for OTS proposal, NHAI has terminated the Concession 

Agreement on 30/01/2020 without following the termination procedure laid down in the 

Concession Agreement{as informed by the company]. Since project got terminated, Lenders 

are seeking for One Time Settlement. Company and Lenders agreed and requested the 

NHAI to refer the matter to Conciliation Committee of Independent Engineers (CCIE). 

The NHAI had given the consent for referring the matter to CCIEvideits letter dated 18-04- 

2019. The company has submitted the claim with NHAL The proceedings of CCiEwere 

commenced on 25-09-2019 as informed by the management. It is also informed that 

Arbitration Proceedings have also commenced. 

CBI has filed FIR against the Company, Promoters and Directors on 12/03/2019 under 

Prevention of Corruption Act and Indian Penal Code. Subsequently, the Enforcement 

Directorate has raided the premises of the company on 11-6-2022 and the investigation is 

under progress. 

Cost incurred on the project up-to 31" March, 2022Rs, 13,38,73,49,514/- instead of writing- 
off, has been accounted asClaims receivable under the head "Other Financial Assets" which 
is in contravention of the provisions of Indian accounting standard Ind AS 37 (Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets) claims being contingent asset in nature. This 
has resulted in over-statement of Current Assets by Rs.13,38,73,49,514/- and 
understatement of cumulative loss by the same amount. 
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In view of the above, the termination of the Concession Agreement indicates the existence 
of a material uncertainty that cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue 
as a going concern. 

Interest on Loans is not provided for during the year under audit. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated 

financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance withthe accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 

of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 

and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 

of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 

and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the Accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement 

that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

orerror. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 

relatedto going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 

realistic alternative but to doso. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 

reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidatedfinancial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 

and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high 

level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
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will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 

these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks,and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 

from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to 

design audit Procedures that is appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 

the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has 

adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 

controls, 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists; we 

are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 

Consolidated financial statementsor, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 

continue as a going concern, 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated financial 

statementsrepresent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation, 
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated financial statements 

that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 

reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated financial statementsmay be 

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 

scope of our audit work and in evaluating the statements of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 

the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated financial statements 

of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 

our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 

or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1, As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that: 

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

b) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the basis for Qualified opinion,in 

our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 

far as appears from our examination of those books; 

c) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the basis for Qualified 

opinionthe Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 

Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by 

this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 
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d)Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the basis for Qualified 

opinion,The aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the applicable Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued there 

under. 

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022, 

and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 

March 31, 2022, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f)With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 

the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 

‘Annexure A’; and 

g) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended , in our opinion 

and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i.The Group has disclosed the pending litigations which would impact its financial position 

in its notes to financial statements. 

ii. The Group does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii, “The Holding Company’ has not complied with the provisions of section 124(5) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 regarding the remittance of unpaid dividend of an amount 

aggregating to Rs. 6.62 Lakhs relating to Financial Years 2008-09 to 2010-11 from 

unpaid dividend account to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) within the 

stipulated period, 

iv.(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned 

or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 

funds) by The company or “The Group”to or in any other person or entity, including 

foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 

("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received byThe 

company or“The Group” from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding 

Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in 

the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) 

above, contain any material misstatement. 

v. None of the companies in“The Group”has neither declared nor paid any dividend 

during the year. 

For P. Murali& Co, 

Chartered Accountants, 

FRN No: 0072575 

A Krishna Rao 
Partner 

M.No:020085 

UDIN:- 22020085 AKQQHC4565 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 28-05-2022 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under clause (i) of 

the Sub-section 3 of the Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘The Act’) 

In conjunction with our Audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the company as 

of and for the year ended 31* March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls 

over financial reporting of Madhucon Projects Limited (‘the Holding company’) and its 

subsidiary companies which are incorporated in India, as of the date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 

by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 

and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 

Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal financial controls 

over financial reporting based on our Audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 

the Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 

“Guidance Note”) and the standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 

143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an Audit of Internal Financial Controls, both 

applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the ICAL These 

standards and guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 

and performed the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such 

controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 

the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 

effectiveness. Our Audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 

selected depend on the Auditor's Judgment, including the Assessment of the risk of 

material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion and the company’s internal financial control system 

over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 

preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes these policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 

records that, in reasonable detailed, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in 

accordance with generally accepted principles, and that receipts and expenditures are 

being made only in accordance with authorization of management and directors of the 

Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 

of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a 

material effect on the Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitation of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitation of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

Projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 

future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
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reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion, except possible effects of the matter described in the basis for qualified 

opinion to the consolidated Independent Auditor's Report, reasonable internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting but not adequate and such internal financial 

controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31*, 2022, based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute Of 

Chartered Accountants of India. 

Other Matters 

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness 

of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 

Consolidated Financial Statements of ‘the Holding Company’, in so far as it relates to 

separate financial statements of one subsidiary, seven step down subsidiaries, which are 

companies incorporated in India, is based on the respective reports of the auditors of such 

subsidiary and step down subsidiaries incorporated in India. 

For P. Murali& Co, 
Chartered Accountants, 
FRN No: 007257S 

A Krishna Rao 
Partner 

M.No:020085 
UDIN:- 22020085 AKQOQHC4565 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 28-05-2022 
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MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 

. {¢ in Lanka) 
Note As ot As ot 

Ne. Maroh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
ASSETS 
Nonm-Current Assets 
Property, Plant amd Equipment 24 10,267.39 10,622.70 
Capital Work-ie-Progreas 21 15,013.41 15,013.41 
Intangible Axacts 2.13 57,400.81 64,254.46 

(v1 Intamgibte Ansets under Development 40,002.43 46.333,14 
levestment Properties 4.46 41.36 
Financial Assets 
Investments 2.2 75,338,03 TS338.03 
Trek Recelrnbles 23 Sha 45142 
Lowes 24 1041.46 1,072.55 
Others Financtal Assets 2.5 109,676.25 74,737.37 
Dederred Tax Assets (Net) aa 2,568.36 FASESI 
Osher Non-Current Assets 26 22,276.06 Se! 2642343 
Total Non-Cerrent Assets 4b |__ 3,3 8,726.78 | 
Current Assets 
lovemtories 27 559 1479.27 
Financial Assets 
levrestitieniis 28 64.78 64.07 
Trade Recetrables 29 1,569.89 AT a4 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.10 9AIBSS 6440.24 
Bank Balances other than above 211 2,035.38 589.93 
Loans 2.12 174,52 199.15 
Gthers Financial Assets 2.13 183,502.27 1 BS048.25 

Qurrest Tax Asset (Net) 4,300.47 6,202.73 
Other Current Asacts 2.14 14,965.36 13,692.95 
Total Current Asscts 6 bi 4 

Total Aeets Sse isan) 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Eqqaity Share Capital 2.15 740.32 740.32 
Other Equity 2.16 (2.10,525.2% (8,90. 160.04) 

Less = Profit / (Lens) frum Associates 39 

Equity Attributable to Shareholders of the Company (2,08, 502,58) (1, 88.437.33) 
Non Controlling Inserests 12,211,264 (9,735.00) 

Total Equity (2,21,013.84) (1,98,872.33) 
Liskilities 
Nom-Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings 2.17 2,34,265,00 239,123.40 
Trade Payables 2.18 7,274.61 $2,204,57 
Other Fimencial Lisbities 219 1,707.4 1537.50 
Provisions 2.20 38,639,842 33,571.93 
Dederred Tax Liabilities (Net) - - 
Other Non-Current Liabilities 2.21 Lois RO? | 
Total Non-Caurrent Liabilities 283,198.72 |_ 289,694.02 | 
Current Liabilities 
Financtal Liabilities 
Borrowings 2.22 132,050.65 1.33,918.26 
Trade Payables 2.23 59,720.66 63,373.41 
Other Firencial Listiities 2.24 72,072.06 TOKA1.57 
Other Current Uahilities 2.25 79,772.30 63572,10 
Provisions 2.26 141,729.84 83,530.38 
Currest Tax Liabélitses (Net) 1,313.80 2,145.42 
Total Current Liabilities 4 8150.51 | SALOU 14 

| Total Equity and Liabilities: SHI44,19 
The accompanying o¢¢es are az; integral part of the consolidated financial statemects 
fe termes of Gar report attached 

For P.Murali & Co, For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants 
FERN : 0072378 

W. Beothalah Mohammed Shafi 
A.Krinhmas Rao Managing Director Whole-time Director 
Partner DIN 00784491 DON-O7 7828S 
Membership Number 020065 
UDEIN: TIODOIBSAKQNIIIISS 

Place : Hyderabad K, Venkateswarlu D, Malla Reddy 
Date | May 28 2022 Citief Pinancial Officer Coenpony Secretary 

ACS: 95590 
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MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 
Comsolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2022 

  

  

  

  

  

  

Mote Year ended wma 

Xo. Mareh 33, 2033 000 | Maroh 33,2033 
Revenue 

Revenue from Operations 2.27 4 A14,79 90,916.23 

Other Income 2.28 11,745.99 12,484,190 

Total Revenve 106,500.78 1,03,400.33 

Expenses 

Cost of Materials aad Work Expenses 229 73,573.07 88,542.92 

Changes ie inventory aad work-in-progress 2.33 934.24 $39.61 

Exaployre Benefits Expense 2.30 2,920.22 2,792.55 

Finance Costs 231 3,137.00 24,570.33 

Depreciation and amortization expense 2.10 14,094.98 $2,871.32 
Other Expenses 232 23,730.70 1994.51 

Total Expenses 1,18,390.21 131,961.54 
Profit before Exceptional and Extraordinary lems and Tax (11,829.43) (26,561.21) 

Exceptional tema - - 

Sthare of (Loss) from Associate Comparty 982.39 982.359 

Profit Before Tax (10,847.04) |__(27,878.82)) 
Tax Expense 

) Current Tax - (5.392.231) 

(ii) Adjustment of Tax relating to earlier periods - - 

(ii) Deffered Tax 1,870.14 3,782.68 

i 14 + 

(Loss) / Profit for the Year [182.737.10) ps.eazrl 
Attributable to 

Shareholders of the Company (10,654.51) (23,339.24) 

Non-Controlling Interests (2.082,68) (530.05) 

Other Comproheasive Income 

$0) Re-Classification of Employee Detiord Benefit Obtigation| 19.45 35. 64) 

{>} Exchange differences on tramstathon - - 

©) Amount Net Reclassifieble to P&L 11.90) 

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year 17.49 5.00) 

Total Comprehensive (Loss) / Income for the yoar (12,099,095) (26,204.93)) 

Actributable to 

Sharchoiders of the Company (10,617,03) (23,374.90) 

Non Controlling Interests (2,082,685) 2,230.07) 

Stharchokiers of the Company 17.48 65.66) 

Nem Conrroiling Interests . . 

Total Comprehensive Income (10,617.03) (23,374.90) 

Earnings per share of Pace Value of © 10/- each 
Basie and Diluted (14.41)] [31.63)}               

‘The accompanying notes are am integral part of the consolidated financial statements 
Ie terms of Gur report attached 

For and on behalf of the Board 

M. Seethalah Mohammed Shafi 
Director Whoete-time Director 

DIN 0078449) DIN-07 178265 

K. Venkateswarta D, Malla Reddy 
Chief Financial Officer Comapamy Secretary 

ACE 95590 
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Madhucoa Limitos 
Statement of Changes in Equity Sor the Year ended March 21, 2022 
a} Eqeity Share Capital 
fExpatey Shanes af Bat f- coeds 7370440 ahetent 

nSeeert Repeting Fetes — 
Oop ia 

Bile ate Ngety Shere 
beginning Re Capel dente | Rrvteted belenee ot fee Chenpee te equity cheer 

TORE FOP ag pete petits «= beghening of Qc carrer capital fering (he cevewe = Ralamee of Phe red of the 

aS. a a |. a 

Da foetee: Repmieg reves Coie tahoe 
(Ohengee ie 

Brolemee af te Cgety Saree Rene Dalene ot he 
begin ite = Captidderts begining ite «9 Changes be regelty shore 

ferries: reporting peter perked Trevines rypocing capital during te Beloner 4 Oe ond of Oe 

= poet. oem ee 

Oe opty 

      
The ac runmepeny ing fetes aFe af inicgred part of Iter etarndabier fearetel slatrmente 
fe Serene ef eur report attactedt 

Pee P.terad & Co. For and on beball of the Board 
Chactered Acoruetarts 
Pek: CO72S7S 

AXrinbas Rao &. Gocthalah Mohammad Shad 
Peetoer Managing Deector Wrhele-cme Directer 

Memberstep Warder 020045 THES-OOTN449) COC-07 1 THIGS 

Piece | Hudernhed K Venkatewwerte D, Malle Reddy 
Dine | 73 2 Cited Financial Ofer Company Secretary 

ACS, 59 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022 

(in Lakhs} 
Year ended Year ended 

March31 , 2022 March 31, 2021 

A |Cash flow from operating activities 

(Loss) / Profit before tax (10,847.04) (27,578.83) 

Adjastments for: 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 14,094.98 12,871.32 
Dividend Income (0.77) (0.74) 

interest Incosne (129.46) (105.64) 

tmplarment - - 

Finance costs 3,137.00 24,570.33 

17,101.75 37,335.27 

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 6,254.70 9,756.44 

Change in Working Capital 
(increase) / decrease in Trade Receivables (723.88) 10,801.76 

(imcrease)/ decrease in Inventories 925.68 1,455.93 

(increase) / decrease in Other Financial Assets (32,782.76) (85,081.30) 

Oncrease)/ decrease in Other Current and Non-Current Assets 4,776.62 6,584.26 

Increase / (decrease) in Loans (13.26) 4,847.95 

Increase /{decrease) in Trade Payables (8,582.71) 16,329.09 
Inerease/{decrease] i Other Financial Liabilities 2,681.63 (2,018.79) 
Inerease/ {decrease} in Other Current and Non-Current Liabilities 42,360.39 (8,523.52) 

Cash generated from operations 14,896.42 (45,848.18) 

income taxes paid (9,530.26) (5,392.23) 

Net cash from operating activities 24,426.68 (40,455.95) 

B |Cash flows from investing activities 

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment including CWIP (555.33) (10,417.57) 

Change in Capital Reserve and others (13,912.09) (7,194.41) 

Purchase of Investments - - 

Due to Derecognation of Simhapuri - 1,01,474.32 

(increase) / decrease in other bank balances (1,456,29) (25.49) 

Dividend Received 0.77 0.73 

Interest Received 129.46 105.64 

Net cash used in investing activities (15,793.48) 83,943.23 

C |Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds /(Repayrnent) of long term: borrowings (1,190.30) 66,921.97 

Proceeds from short term borrowings (net) (1,267.61) (87,469.53) 

interest paid (3,137.00) {24,570.33} 

Net cash used in financing activities (5,594.91) (45,117.89) 

Net increase/(decreasc) in cash and cash equivalents 3. 30 11,830.60) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 460.2 O90). 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 9,498.55 6,460.24 | 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per with the Balance 

Sheet 9.498.55 6,460, 24 | 

___|Cash and Cash Equivalents end of the Year 9,498.55 6,460.24 | 
The accompanying notes are an aviegral pert of the consolidated financial statements 

For P.Murali & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants 

PRN ;: 0072578 

A.Kriahaa Rao N. Seethaiab Mohammad Shafi 

Partner Managing Director Whole-time Director 

Membership Number 020085 DIN-DOTSA491 DIN-O7 178265 

UDIN: 220200S5AKQNJIS255 

Hyderabed K. Venkateswarlu D, Malla Reddy 
Date : May 2% 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

ACS. 9559 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements 

Significant accounting policies: 

1.1 Statement of 
These Consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in 
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to 
time). 

1.2 Basis of preparation 
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical 
cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments that 
are measured at fair value in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) (to the extent notified) 
and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The 
Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to 
time). Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given 
in exchange for goods and services. 

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of 
fair values for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair value 
measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which 
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of 
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as 
follows: 

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities that entity can access at measurement date 

* Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable 
for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from 
prices); and 

* Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market 
data {unobservable inputs). 

1.3 Presentation of financial statements 
The Consolidated Balance Sheet and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule III to 
the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act’). The Consolidated statement of cash flows 
has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement 
of Cash flows”. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance 
Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule III to the 
Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial statements along 
with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting 
Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 
Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in lakhs 

rounded off to two decimal places as permitted by Schedule Ill to the Companies 

Act, 2013. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupees to two decimals places. 
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Notes forming part of -. .solidated Financial Statements 
Basis of consolidation: 
The consolidated financial statements of the group comprise the financial 
statements of the Madhucon Projects Limited ("Parent Company”) and its 
subsidiaries and associates (“the group") as at 31st March 2022. 
Subsidiaries: 
Entity which is directly or indirectly controlled by Parent Company is treated as 
subsidiary. Control exists when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, has 
power over the investee, is exposed to variable returns from its involvement with 
the investee and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. 

The Parent Company starts consolidation of a subsidiary when it obtains control 
over the subsidiary (directly or indirectly) and ceases when it loses control (directly 
or indirectly) of the subsidiary. 

Associates: 
Associates are all entities over which the Parent Company has significant 
influence but has no control. This Is generally the case where the Parent Company 
directly or indirectly holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments 
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after 
initially being recognised at cost. 

Consolidation procedure: 

(a) The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been harmonised to ensure the 
consistency with the policies adopted by the Parent Company. 

(b} The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation 
are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent company, i.c., 
year ended on 31st March. When the end of the reporting period of the 
parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for 
consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same 
date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to 
consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary. 

(c} The consolidated financial statements of the Group combines the financial 
statements of Parent Company and its subsidiaries on line by line basis by 
adding together the like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and 
expenses. 

(d) Unrealised profits/losses on intra-group transactions, Intra-group assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses are climinated in consolidation. Parent's 
investment in each subsidiary and the Parent's portion of equity of each 
subsidiary are eliminated in consolidation, 

{e} Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are 
attributed to the owners of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling 
interests, Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the 
owners of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests even if 
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance, 

(f} Non-controlling interest represents that part of the total comprehensive 
income and net assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests which are 
not owned directly or indirectly by Parent Company. 

1.4 Cash flow statement: 
Cash flow statement is prepared segregating the cash flows from operating, 
investing and financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported 
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using indirect method, Under the indirect method, the net profit/ (loss) is adjusted 
for the effects of: 

i. Changes during the period in inventories and operating receivables and 
payables and transactions of a non-cash nature; 

ii. Non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, unrealised foreign currency 
gains and losses, and undistributed profits of associates; and 

iii. All other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows. 

The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group is 
segregated based on the available information. Cash and cash equivalents 
(including bank balances) are reflected as such in the Cash Flow Statement. 

1.5 Use of Accounting Estimates: 
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires that the 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the 
date of financial statements and the results of operation during the reported 
period. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of 
current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates which 
are recognised in the period in which they are determined. 

1.6 Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) are stated at cost of acquisition including 
any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended 
use, attributable interest and finance costs, if any, till the date of acquisition/ 
installation of the assets less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if 
any. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when 
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the 
asset. 

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has opted to continue with the carrying values 
measured under the previous GAAP as at 1 April 2015 of its Property, Plant and 
Equipment and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the Property, Plant 
and Equipment on the date of transition i.¢. 1 April 2015, 

1.7 Non - current assets held for sale and discontinued operations: 
Non — current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their 
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather 
than through continuing use. Non — current assets and disposal groups are 
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and 
fair value less costs to sell. This condition is regarded as met the sale is highly 
probable and the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its 
present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be 
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the 
date of classification. 

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations 
and are presented as a single amount as profit / loss after tax from discontinued 
operations in the statement of profit and loss. 

Assets and liabilities classified as held for distribution are presented separately 
from other assets and liabilities in the balance sheet. 
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A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of the 
Group that either has been disposed off, or is classified as held for sale, and: 

% Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of 
operations, 

+ Is part of a single co — ordinate plan to dispose of a separate major line of 
business or geographical area of operations, or 

® Isa subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. 

An entity shall not depreciate ( or amortise }) a non — current asset while it is 
classified as held for sale or while it is part of a disposal group classified as held 
for sale. 

1.8 Intangible Assets 
Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Group controls the asset, it 
is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the 
Group and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. Intangible assets are 
stated at cost, less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. The estimated useful life and amortization method reviewed at the 
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being 
accounted for on a prospective basis. 

1,9 Rights under Service Concession Arrangements 
Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits 
that are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the 
asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of 
tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative 
impairment. 

1.10 Toll Projects (Right to charge users}: 
Toll collection rights obtained in consideration for rendering construction services, 
represent the right to collect toll revenue from the users of the public service 
{road) during the concession period in respect of Build-Operate-Transfer ("BOT") 
project undertaken by the Group. Toll collection rights are capitalized as 
intangible assets upon completion of the project at the cumulative construction 
costs plus the present value of obligation towards negative grants and additional 
concession fee payable to National Highways Authority of India ("NHAI"})/State 
authorities, if any. Till the completion of the project, the same is recognised under 
intangible assets under development. 

The cost incurred for work beyond the original scope per Concession agreement 
(normally referred as “Change of Scope”) is capitalized as intangible asset under 
development as and when incurred. Reimbursement in respect of such amounts 
from NHAI/State authorities is reduced from the carrying amount intangible 
assets to the extent of actual receipts. 

Extension of concession period by the authority in compensation of claims made 
are capitalised as part of Toll Collection Rights at the time of admission of the 
claim or when there is a contractual right to extension at the estimated amount of 
claims admitted or computed based on average collections whichever is more 
evident. 

Any Viability Gap Funding (VGF) in the form of equity support in connection with 
project construction is accounted as a receivable and is adjusted to the extent of 
actual receipts, 
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Pre-operative expenses including administrative and other general overhead 
expenses that are directly attributable to the development or acquisition of 
intangible assets are allocated and capitalized as part of cost of the intangible 
assets. 

Intangible assets that are not ready for the intended use on the date of the 
Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible assets under development". 

1.11 Depreciation/ Amortisation 
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted 
for cost less its estimated residual value. 

Depreciation on Property, Piant and equipment has been provided on Straight- 
Line method in accordance with the Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, 
based on the useful life estimated on the technical assessment as in force and 
proportionate depreciation are charged for additions/deletions during the year. In 
respect of additions / deletions to the fixed assets / leasehold improvements, 
depreciation is charged from the date the asset is ready to use / up to the date of 
deletion. The asset's useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the 
end of each reporting period. 

1.12 Impairment of Assets: 
At the end of each accounting year, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of 
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment whether there is any 
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. 

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is determined at the higher of the fair 
value less cost to sell and the value in use in case of an individual asset and at 
higher of the cash generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and the value in use. 

Impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as 
impairment loss and the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its 
recoverable amount. 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset 
CGU is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the 
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined had no impairment loss is recognised for the asset or CGU in 
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

1.13 Financial instruments: 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and 
financial liabilities are initially measured at transaction values and where such 
values are different from the fair value, at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets 
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 
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a. Financial Assets 

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets other than trade 
receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all 
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets 
carried at fair value through profit or loss is initially recognised at fair value, and 
transaction costs are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Subsequent Measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in 
following categories: 

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a 
business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual 
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding, 

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is 
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. Further, in case where the Group has made an irrevocable selection 
based on its business model, for its investments which are classified as equity 
instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other 
comprehensive income. In any other case, financial asset is fair valued through 
profit and loss. 

Impairment of Financial Assets 
The Group recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model 
for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss 
allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is 
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, 
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, 
unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition 
in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit 
losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting 
date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognised as an 
impairment gain or loss in statement of profit or loss. 

De-recognition of Financial Assets 
The Group de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the 
cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset and the transfer 
qualifies for derecognition under IND AS 109. If the Group neither transfers nor 
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to 
control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the 
assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a 
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset 
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 
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b. Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified 
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the 
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

Equity Instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the 
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments which 
are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 
Equity instruments which are issued for consideration other than cash are 
recorded at fair value of the equity instrument. 

Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at 
FVPL, loans and borrowings and payables as appropriate. All financial liabilities 
are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

Subsequent Measurement 
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the 
balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate the fair value due to the 
short maturity of these instruments. 

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract 
is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced 
by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of 
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification 
is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new 
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

ce, Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported 
in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

1.14 Investment property: 
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation {including property under construction for such purposes), 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs, 
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured in 
accordance with the Ind AS16’s requirement for cost model. 

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment 
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no further economic benefits 
expected from disposal. 

Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the property is included in profit or 
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised. 

1.15 Inventories: 

Raw Materials: 
Raw Materials, construction materials and stores & spares are valued at weighted 
average cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower, Cost includes all charges 
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in bringing the materials to the place of usage, excluding refundable duties and 
taxes. 
Work in Progress: 
Work-in-Progress is valued at the contracted rates less profit margin / estimates. 

1.16 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash cquivaient in the balance shect comprise cash at banks and on 
hand and demand deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and 
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash 
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value net of 
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group's 
cash management, 

1.17 Segment Reporting: 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal 
reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. Revenue and expenses 
directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. 
Expenses which are not directly identifiable to each reporting segment are 
allocated on the basis of associated revenue of the segment and manpower efforts. 
All other expenses which are not attributable or allocable to segments are 
disclosed as un-allocable expenses. Assets and liabilities that are directly 
attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable segment 
and all other assets and liabilities are disclosed as un allocable. Property, plant 
and equipment that are used interchangeably among 
segments are not allocated to reportable segments. 

1.18 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: 
The Group recognises provisions when there is a present obligation as a result of 
past event and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources and reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for Contingent 
liabilities is made in the notes on accounts when there is a possible obligation or 
present obligations that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of 
resources. 

Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements when flow of economic 
benefit is probable. 

1.19 Interest in Joint Operations 
A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control 
of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, 
relating to the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of 
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant 
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. 

When the Group undertakes its activities under joint operations, the Group as a 
joint operator recognises in 
relation to its interest in a joint operation: 
1. its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly, 
2. its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly, 
3 its revenue from the sale of its share arising from the joint operation, 
4, its share of the revenue from the joint operations, and 
5. its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly. 
The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses relating to 
its interest in a joint operation in accordance with the Ind AS applicable to the 
particular assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses. 
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 
Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value 
added taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group 
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is 
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and specific criteria 
have been met for each of the Group's activities. The Group bases its estimates on 
historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of 
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement. 

  

Raven from vals of services is 3 recognized as per the terms of the contract with 
customers based on stage of completion when the outcome of the transactions 
involving rendering of services can be estimated reliably. Percentage of completion 
method requires Group to estimate the services performed to date as a proportion 
of the total services to be performed. 

Revenue from Toll & Annuity projects: 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 
Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of duties and taxes and net of 
discounts, rebates and other similar allowances. The Group recognises revenue 
when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that the 
future economic benefits would flow to the entity and specific criteria have been 
met for each of the activities described below. The Group bases its estimates on 
historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, type of 
transaction and specifics of the arrangement. 

  

Reverie from construction/ protect related activity and contracts for 
supply /commissioning of complex plant and equipment is recognised as follows: 

1. Cost plus contracts: Revenue from cost plus contracts is determined with 
reference to the recoverable costs incurred during the period and the 
margin as agreed with the customer, 

2. Fixed price contracts: Contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of 
cost incurred till such time the outcome of the job cannot be ascertained 
reliably subject to condition that it is probable that such cost will be 
recoverable. When the outcome of the contract is ascertained reliably, 
contract revenue is recognised at cost of work performed on the contract 
plus proportionate margin, using the percentage of completion method. 
Percentage of completion is the proportion of cost of work performed to- 
date, to the total estimated contract costs. 

The estimated outcome of a contract is considered reliable when all the following 
conditions are satisfied: 

i, the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
ii. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the contract will 

flow to the Group; 
iii. the stage of completion of the contract at the end of the reporting period 

can be measured reliably; and 
iv. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the contract can be 

measured reliably. 

Expected loss, if any, on a contract is recognised as expense in the period in 
which it is foreseen, irrespective of the stage of completion of the contract. 
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For contracts where progress billing exceeds the aggregate of contract costs 
incurred to-date and recognised profits (or recognised losses, as the case may be}, 
the surplus is shown as the amount due to customers. Amounts received before 
the related work is performed are disclosed in the Balance Sheet as a liability 
towards advance received. Amounts billed for work performed but yet to be paid 
by the customer are disclosed in the Balance Sheet as trade receivables. The 
amount of retention money held by the customers is disclosed as part of other 
current assets and is reclassified as trade receivables when it becomes due for 
payment. 

1.21 Other income: 

a) Interest Income: Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is 
probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured 
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal 
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the 
financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

c) Lease Income: Lease agreements where the risk and rewards incidental to the 
ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor are recognized as 
operation leases. Lease rentals are recognized on straight — line basis as per the 
terms of the agreements in the statements of profit and loss. 

1.22 Insurance claims 
Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to 
be admitted and to the extent that the amount recoverable can be measured 
reliably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection. 

1.23 Claims 
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts are disclosed under 
contingent liabilities. Claims made by the Group are recognised as and when the 
same is approved by the respective authorities with whom the claim is lodged. 

1.24 Commitments 
Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, Commitments are 
classified and disclosed as follows: 

a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 
and not provided for 

b) Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid 
c}) Funding related commitment to subsidiary, associate and joint venture 

companies and 
d) Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are 

considered material and relevant in the opinion of management. 
e} Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal 

course of business are not disclosed to avoid excessive details. 

1.25 Foreign exchange translation and foreign currency transactions: 
The functional currency and presentation currency of the Group is the Indian 
rupee. 

Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on 
the date of transactions, Gains and losses resulting from settlement of such 
transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
  

119



MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED oe 
MAD 

Monetary assets and liabilities related to foreign currency transactions remaining 
unsettled at the end of the year are translated at year end rates. The difference in 
translation of monetary assets and liabilities and realised gains and losses on 
foreign exchange transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The exchange difference on restatement of long term receivables / payables from / 
to foreign operations that are considered as net investments in such operation are 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the separate financial statements of 
the reporting entity or the individual financial statements of the foreign operation, 
a8 appropriate, 

1.26 Employee Benefits: 
Provident fund is defined Contribution scheme and contributions are charged to 
profit and loss account of the year when the contributions to the respective funds 
are duc. Other retirement benefits such as Gratuity, leave encashment e¢te., are 
recognized on basis of an Actuarial Valuation. 

1.27 Borrowing Costs: 
Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest 
method and finance charges in respect of assets acquired on finance lease. 

Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the 
period from commencement of activities relating to construction / development of 
the qualifying asset upto the date of capitalisation of such asset are included in 
the cost of the assets. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged 
to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active 
development activity on the qualifying assets is interrupted. All other borrowing 
costs are recognised in profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

1.28 Taxation 
Income tax expense represents sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax 

Current Tax: Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for 
the year as determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the 
provisions of the Income tax Act, 1961. 

Deferred tax: 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities in the Group’s financial statements and the corresponding 
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary 
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available 
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such 
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences 
arise from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that 
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be 
recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected 
to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based 
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
end of the reporting period. 
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Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT): 
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives 
future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, 
is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the entity will pay 
normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset when it is highly 
probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the entity. 

1,29 Leases: 
The Group’s leasing arrangements are mainly in respect of operating leases for 
premises and construction equipment. 

These leasing arrangements range from 11 months to 10 years generally and are 
usually cancellable / renewable by mutual consent on agreed terms. Lease 
payments under operating leases are recognised as an expense on a straight line 
basis in the statement of profit and loss over the lease term except where the lease 
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation. 

1.30 Fair value measurement 
The Group measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting 
date. Fair value is the price that would be received on sale of an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

a. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
b. In the absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for the 
asset or liability. 

The fair value of an assct or a liability is measured using the assumptions that 
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that 
market participants act in their economic best interest. 

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances 
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the 
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs, 

1.31 Earnings per Share: 
Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss for 
the year attributable to the Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is 
computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year, adjusted for the effects of 
dilutive potential equity shares, attributable to the Equity Shareholders by the 
weighted average number of the equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares 
outstanding during the year except where the results are anti-dilutive. 

  

121



 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

      
  

  
  

  
  

    
 
 

 
 

 
 

    
 
 

  
 



Madhucon Limited 
Notes forming part of the consolktated Geanctal statements 
2.2 tnvestasents 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED =e 

Amat 

  

1) Investment in Eqaity Instruments 
(i) Subsidiaries: 
tn Shares of 710 each, tally paid up jetherwise apecified) 

(li) Associates: 
Jin Shares of 210 each, fistly paid up (otherwise specified 

Madthucen Agra Jaguar Expeessways Limined 

Madhucon Properties Limited 

Others-Associate Compasies* 

Gul Others 
to Shares of €10 euch, fay paid up (otherwise specifier) 

Rajanagaram Gas Power Private Limited 

fa Karere Mant Limited 

74,300.06 

0.23 

312 

954.39 

4851 

a 

Asat 

74,300.06 

ol 

42 

949 

4aa1 
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2.3 Trade Recetvables 

  
  

  

    
  

  

  

    

  

    

2710.19 

+383.52 

1,75, 67.46 
   

  

2.5 Other Pimamcial Assets 

As at Mareh 31, 2022 
Non-Carreat Current 

Unsecured, comsidered good 
Bask Deposits with maturity more than 12 mooths 576,91 

Earnest Maney Deposita 247.91 - 

Retention Money Orpasit 3,603.28 

Recetenble under service concession arrangemerits 97,822.19 - 

Advances Recoverable 7AL3,90 * 

Receivable Prom Others - 5,600.32 

Recetvabie From NIKAI > 4,900.65 . 

Ctaiins Receivable frem NHAL . 1,74,508.49 

~ 199.70 ° 

_1,09,676.25 | _1,82,708.16 737.37 

  

      
  

Madhucon Infra Limited 
Notes Seming pert of the consdlidoted Geanctal stafements 
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12,6 Other Now-Currant Assets 

  

Advance to suppliers and sub-comtractars 

  

USh5S 

15,737.76 

PIAT AD 

              

  

Raw Maternale 

  

    
  

  

        
  

  

        
  

  

  

  

    
Dodiaputed Trask peceieabies - considerrd good 

Unatingeted Trade Meceiwubics « which here siguificnnt inerenee in credit rivky 

{i Undbepeuted Trade Revetrebtes «ered! enpeired 

Dynpe stent Trade Revemabilee <ornicere qad   fe) Dixqasted Trace Reewivabies -— which Save sigeificas! increase i= credit hak       

  

    

2.10 Gash end Cash Equivalents 
  

Cash on hand 

Balances with Danks 

In QCarrret Accounts 

ie Depoait Accounts with Maturity lews than 3 opeths 

a RS Dividers Accounts   
Total   

  

  
  

2:11 Bask Batence other then shove 

    Margin money and other deposita with banks 

Total   

  

  
  

Madhocen Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of the Grancial sintexsenta 

4.24 Loans ————— 
As at 

March 31, 2022 

rnd 
Asst 

March 31, 202 

  

|Umsecared, comsidered good 
Security Deposit 174.52 130.15 
    Total   174.52     130,15 
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Receteable Pron Others 

Receteable From NHAI 

Other receivables @orn related parties 

Claima Receivable from NHAL 

    

2.14 Ovber Current Assets   
  

Prepak! Expenses 

Prepaid [maturance 

Interest Accrued on Deposits 

Advance to suppliers. sub-contractors and others 

Statutory Dues Receirable 

Advances to celated partion 

Advances aher than Capital Advances 

611.63 

2.24.73 

11,624.57           

Total 
Nisdiacoa Frefects Usa 
Notes forming part of the consolidated Gnancial statements 

2.15 Equity Share Capital 

    

cc 
  

  

      

        

  

      

              

Asat As at 
Number of Mareh 31,2022) Wuamber of March 31, 
Shares Shares 2021 

‘Authorised 
Equity Shares of €10/+ cach 4,50,00,00,000 9,50,000,00 4,50,0000000 $,50,000.00 

total |_4,80,900.00 | 4,580,000. 09 | 
lsseed, Subscribed and Called up Capital 

Equity Shares of %10/- cnet - - « 

Pally peid up Capital 

| Equity Shares of Rx, 1/- 7,37,94,930 
Equity Shares of 410/- each each 737,95 } Equity Shares 737.95 

ja Ade: Perfelied Shares Amoust originally pekd up 237 237 
Total, 740.33. 740,32 | 

&) Reconciliation of the Namber of Equity Shares Outstanding at beginning and at end of the year 

(in Lakha) 

fare | nares OS | AOSD E | 
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,BA77.77.045 126,777.70] 128.7777045 | 1,28,777.70 
Add Equéty Shares allowed during the year > - ; . 
Starrs bought back during the year ° - : 7 

Balance at the end of the year 128,77,77 048 L2B,777.70 | 1.28, 77TTOWS 1,28,777,70 

b) Terms/ Rights attached te Shares: 

The Company has only one class of paid-up ayuity shares Raving par value of © 10 per share. Each sharcholder of equity share is exytitied to ane 
vote per share, The Company declares and pays dividend in indian Reapers oniy, The Dividend proposed by the Beard of Directors is subject to 
approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. 

im the ewest of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be extitied to receive remaining assets of the Company, after 
distrivution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be im preportion te the mumber of equity shares held by the shareholders, 

¢) Bonus Sharea/ Buy back shares for comsiéeration other than cash issued @uring the past five years: 

(1) Agprogaic nussber and class of shares allceted as fully paid up pursuant te comtrects withou! payment being received in Cash - Mil 
(2) Aggregate nussber and class of sharrs allotted as fully paid up by way of Bonus shares - Wil 
13) Aggregate number and class of Shares bought back » Mil 

Notes farming part of the Gmancial statements 
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2.16 Other Equity 
is 

Tew aR, OE] rs ae 3a 
Securities Premiam 29,313.07 29,313.07 

Capital Reserve 
Lewin Cagetat Grant Oefferment 

| (>) General Reserve 
Opening Balance 5,061.53 5,061.53 
Add; Additions daring the year - . 

Closing Balance y "5,001.53 | ) "F061. | 

He} Serplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 
Opening Balance 224,207, 70} (2,90.703.45) 

Adds Profit for the Year (11,673.29 renee 
Add: Capital Grant Defierment £2,005. 12} (2,005.12) 

Correction in Profit amd Leas 15,489.62) 1,01 487,21 
Less: Appropriations 

Proposed Dividend - ° 
Dividend Distritution Tax - . 

Tranafer to Reserves - . 

Ctosing Balance {2,49,375.73)) {2,24,207,70)) 

Other Components of Equity = 

Remensarementas of the defined benefit plans and others (244,32) 3.57 
Exchange differences in translating the fimancial {140.02} @1lL7q) 
Incrense/ (Decrease) in borrowing cost pursuant to e inaiaal 
application of Effective Interest rate method 

meeaeh (368,15), 

Reserves on Coasolidation 2,681.52 3,851.21 

Compoment of Unsecured Loam P8214} 421,34) Be10.00)) 

Toul Bi0sa83 Ti 80, Fe6-58)) 
2.17 Borrowings 

ct 

As at As at 
Mare 31, 2022/ Marck 31, 2021 

|Seoured: 

Debentures - > 

Term Loans 

Prom Banks 206,953.00] 2,13,008.19 

From Others 26,168.82 24979.10 

Panded Interest Term Loan 

Prom Tanks : je 

From Financial institations - . 

68.37 68.37 

Unaecured: 
Loans from related parties 788.31 . 

Froeo Financial institutions 285.90 L0S7.74 

Total 334,265.00 | _2,39,123.40 |         
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{vii) Baranot-Krishnacer Expressways Limited 
Terma of Reparmont - Secured Loan 

Indian Rupee Loans Consists of Loans borrowed from a consertium of 7 bankers & one Gmancial institution os per commen loan agrement 

Gated 26-09-2011. The entire outstanding debt as per comnmes lean agrement was amended and the loan emcunt was payable as per master 
agreeement dated 24-06-2015. During Use year the company has net closed the any term bean account. the company has not peivided the 
@merest Guring the financial year. 

interest te mot provided during the financial year duc to the term leans became NPA. 

The Comparry has executed loan documents and created security as per commen loan agreement dated 26-09-2011 and master agreement 

amended on dated 24-16-2015 
Terms of Repayment - Un Secured Loan from Related Parties 

The unsecured bans are previeded by the promoters of the company as per Common loan agreement with Senior Lenders by way of Sub- 
ecdinate Joan such subOrdinate leans interest and peinciple repayenent shall be made after fina) setiiement date. The date on which all the 
secured obligations have been discharged in fill to the satisfaction of the lenders, 

2.18 Trade Payables 
(tin 

  

  

As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

‘Non Carreat 

    

    

  

  

   

  

For supply amd Services 937.44 1316.67 

Retention Money Deposits LidO28 3,845.57 

___ Others 3,176.89 7,042.33 

Total 7,278.63 
  

        

  

2.19 Other Fimascial Liabilities 

  

  

    

   

    

Aa at Maroh 31, 2022 
Non-Curreat Current 

Current Maturities of Long Teren Borrowings - 50,485.00 

interest Accrued and due on Becrowings . S67 S18 5,673,186     

  

              

interest accrued but not due . 1.96545 - 1,965.45 

Trade Payables LS1t51 - 1,545.74 

Other Payables 1,707,904 12,915.92 1,537.50 10,366,50 

| Lined Dividends = 2281, : 2 
Total 1,707.94 972,06 1,537.50 

2.20 Provisions 

  

  

Proviston for Employes Benefits 

    

  

      

  

    

  

          

in Lakhs} 
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 3), 2021 

Non-Current Current Now-Current |__ Current | 
Mobilization Advance 1402.43 26,194.44 3,247.90 854.57 

Material Advance 8.72 , a72 8.76 

Machinery Advance - 316.26 = 316.26 
Stumiory Dues Payable - 3,299,385 - 3S7TERO 

Other Linbilitées - 0,591.41 - 45,759.49 

_._Reveree Recrived in Advances : 370.81 = 141.10 
Other advances from related parties - * - 32,710.66 

Total 1,311.35 79,772.30 3,256.62 | __ 83,372.10 |       
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2.22 Borrowings 

  

  

  

  

    

  

  

(Secered: 

Leans repayable on Gemand 

From Banks 

From Others 

Total 

2.23 Trade Payables 

For Supplies and Services 
Tue to Other Payables 

Related Parties 

Retention Moarcy Deposits 

thers 
Total 
    

  

  
  

  

2.24 Other Financial Liabilities 

  

  

Cutrest Maturities of Long Term Borrowings 

Interest Accrued and due on Borrowings 

interest accrued bat not duc 

Trode Puyabies 

Other Payaties 

Payables to Related Parties 

1,965.45 

1511.6) 

12,915.92 

  

  

2.23 Other Current Liabilities 

  
  

  

Statutecy Doers Payable 

        

Madbucos Infra Limited 
Notes forming part of the comsolidated financial statements 

2.26 Provisions 

  

  

Provision for Employes Benefits 

Gratuity 

Compensated absences 

Preoviaion for Baddebts 

Provision for Expenecs 

Provision fer Major Maintenance and Repairs 

Provision for Periodic Maintenaane 
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2.27 Revues from Operations 

cz 

Year caded Year 
31 3 

Operating Income 

Income from Comtrects and Services 64,941,635 68,529.73 

Tod Fee Collection 19,685.10 $5,766.91 

Other Operating [Income 

Sule of Metal, Scrap & Others . 9.52 

a tT 10,)87,97 10.07 
Total 94,814.79 16.23 

2.28 Other Income 
= ts 

Your ended 
Mareh 3). 202 

Interest Bocome 120.46 105.64 

Miscellancous Income 10,382.69 13,144.65 

Capital Grant Defferment 1,233,07 2h07 

Dividend Lexcome 0.77 0.74 

Total 13,745.99 | __ 33,484,30 } 

Madhecesn Infra Limited 
Notes fortiina part of the consolidated Gnancial statements 

2.29 Cost of Materials and Work Expenses 
(tin Lakh} 

Year onded Year ended 
31 March 31, 2021 

Stores and Spares 8825.78 8,621.32 

Works Siepecinte Obit) Se 
Total 73,373.97 | ___ $8,843.92 | 

2.33 Changes in Work-in-progress aad Stock 

Year ended pene 
31, 20232 

Opening Stock 1,316.67 2,206.28 
Opening Work-in-Progress = - 

Chosing Stock 352.43) (1.31667) 

_{lncreane)/Decrense im Work-in-Progress 934.24 889.61 | 
2.30 Employee Benefits Expense 

_ in 

| Yoar ended Year ended 
Mareh 33, 2021 

Salarice & Wages Beers and Provident Find 2494.23 2538.14 

Sane Weitere Expenses — 225.90 3271 
Total 2,920.23 2,792.85 | 

2.31 Pinamce Cost 

Year ended | Year eaded 
March 93, 2023 

Interest Experiae 3,137.00 23,986.43 

[ec oa: Conmi : $33.50) 
Tee 3,137.00 | _ 24,570.33 | 

3.32 Other Expenses 

Year ended Year caged 
3 Mareh 31, 2021 

Adesinistrative Expenses 16,410.63 556.12 

Insurance Charges 82.71 162.22 
Consultancy charges 491,15 41540 

Rent, Rates & Taxca 503.68 807.36 

a Acraernee written off $242.55 Sst 
Total 23,730. 1,994.51 |         
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2.33 Subsidiaries and Associates companies considered in the financial statements are: 

S.No. | Name of the Entity Country of Proportion of Ownership Interest 
Incorporation | Madhucon | Madhucon | Madhucon 

Projects Infra Toll 
Limited Limited Highways 

Limited 

I Madhucon Infra Limited India 94.89% - - 

2 Nama Hotels Private Limited India 99.96% - - 
3 Madhucon Mega Mall Private India 66.66% - - 

Limited 
Madhucon Heights Private . 

4 Limited India 66.66% - - 

5 Madhurai Tuticorin India 54.12% - 24.48% 
Expressways Limited 

6 Madhucon Toll Highways Limited India 0.01% 99.98% - 

7 Ranchi Expressways Limited India 0.02% 0.02% 99.94% 

8 Barasat Krishnagar India 0.03% 0.04% 99.88% 
Expressways Limited 

9 TN(DK) Expressways Limited India 0.13% 50.97% 48.36% 
10 Trichy-Thanjavur Expressways India 0.15% 76.10% 23.70% 

Limited 
Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways India 0.16% 54.23% 45.58% 

11 | Limited 
12 Vijayawada-Machilipatnam India 1.78% 13.33% 80.44% 

Expressways Limited 
13 Rajauli Bakhtiyarpur India 4,80% 4.00% 83.20% 

Expressways Limited 

14 PT Madhucon Indonesia Indonesia 4.86% 85.00% - 

15 Madhucon Properties Limited * India 33.33% . °                 

a) *As the losses incurred by the Associate, Madhucon Properties Limited is in excess of 
the investment made by the Company, such associate financials are not considered for 

  

  

        

consolidated financials. 

2.34 (a) Contingent Liabilities not provided for: ( <in Lakhs) 

Particulars As at As at 

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 
Bank Guarantees** 19,929.38 24,096.32 

Corporate Guarantees issued by the Company on behalf of its 8,526.29 26,000.00 

subsidiaries and others 

Disputed Sales Tax fon appeal) 687.42 687.42 
Entry Tax 8.85 8.85 

Service Tax 1,655.50 1,655.50 

Income-tax demand contested in appeal 31,395.49 - 

The Group is a party to legal suits on construction contract} Amount not Amount not 
terms related disputes, pending before various courts in India | ascertainable ascertainable 
as well as arbitration proceedings, It is not possible to make a 
fair assessment of the likely financial impact of these pending 
disputes / litigations until the cases are decided by the 

appropriate authorities 

i" on behalf of Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures 
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2.35 The long term unquoted investments in equity shares of subsidiary companies as given 

hereunder and included in Schedule V are pledged with Banks and Financial Institutions which 

have extended loan facilitates to the respective investec companies. 

  

  

        

S.No | Name of the entity No of Shares No of Shares 

pledged pledged 
as at as at 

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 

1 Madurai Tuticorin Expressways Limited 13,98,20,500 13,98,20,500 

2 Nama Hotels Private Limited 1,38,41,000 1,38,41,000 

3 Madhucon Infra Limited 53,94,77,705 53,94,77,705 
4 Simhapuri Energy Limited 715,220,236 715,220,236 
5 Madhucon Toll Highways Limited 12,00,00,000 12,00,00,000 
6 | Madhucon Heights Private Limited 9,000 9,000 
7 | TN (DK) Expressways Limited 6,04,87,600 6,04,87,600 
8 Trichy-Thanjavur Expressways Limited 4,59,30,000 4,59,30,000 
9 | Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Limited 4,74,96,637 4,74,96,637 
10 | Barasat-Krishnanagar Expressways Limited 2,21,34,000 2,21,34,000 
11 _ | Ranchi Expressways Limited 7,52,08,000 7,52,08,000     

2.36 Deferred Tax Asset / (Liabilities) (net) 

Significant components of deferred tax Asset /(Liabilities) for the year ended March 31, 

  

  

          

  

  

MADHUCOMN 

  

  

2022: 

(*% in Lakhs) 

As at As at 

March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 
Deferred Tax Asset 
Opening Balance 4,438.51 8,421.19 
During the Year (1,870, 14) (3,982.68) 

Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability) (met) 2,568.37 4,438.51 

2.37 Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS 11 Construction contracts 

("in Lakhs) 

2021-22 2020-21 
Contract revenue recognized 60,431.64 61,525.24 
Aggregate of contract costs incurred and recognised profits 3,63,034.86 | 5,47,512.37 
(less recognised losses) up to the reporting date for Contracts 
in progress 
Amount of advances received for contracts in progress 3,238.27 4,348.34 

Amount of retention money for contracts in progress 1,058.26 12,237.38 
Gross amount due from customers for contracts in progress 1,667.75 8,029.61           

2.38 Micro & Small Enterprises: The management has taken steps to identify the enterprises 

which have provided goods and services to the Group and which qualify under the definition of 

Micro and Smal] Enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 

Development Act, 2006. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such 
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enterprises as on March 31, 2022 has been made in the Financial Statements based on the 

information received and such amount outstanding as on March 31, 2022 to Micro and Small 

Enterprises is Nil which the Auditor have relied upon. Further, in the view of the management, 
the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act 

is not expected to be material. 

  

  

2.39 Earnings per Share: 

Yearended | Year ended 
March 31, March 31, 
2022 2021 

Net Loss after tax available for equity sharcholders (10,617.03) (23,374.90) 

(tin Lakha) 

Weighted Average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (Nos) 7,37,94,940| 7,37,94,940 

Weighted Average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (Nos) 7,37,94,940 |} 7,37,94,940 

Face Value per Share (®) 1.00 1.00 

Basic and Diluted EPS * (*) (14.41) (31.63)           

*The Company has no dilutive instruments. As such Diluted Earnings per share equals to 
Basic Earnings per share. 

2.40 Related Party Transactions: 

I. Following are the list of related parties and relationships 
  

S.No. Particulars 
  

A. 

| 

2 

3 
4 

5 

B. 

6 

7 

x 

Cc 

9 

i0 

il 

12   

Enterprises where significant influence exists 

Madhucon Estates Limited 

Nama Properties Limited 

Mana Blue Metal Private Limited 

Madhucon Mineral Resources Limited 

MBN Anchored Earth Limited 

Joint Ventures 

Madhucon Sino-Hydro JV 

Madhucon Shrechari Hule JV 

MPL SCCPL SSBBC JV 

Key Management Personnel 

Sri Nama Seethaiah 

Sri K. Srinivasa Rao 

Sri Md Shafi 

Sri Nama Krishnaiah 
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Il. Related party transactions during the year as follows 

( 8 in Lakhs) 

2021-22 | 2020-21 

Revenue from Contracts and Services 8,248.51 5,100.33 

Remuneration 

Key Management Personnel 124.38 81.85 

Sitting Fee 1.30 1.30 

Loans/ Advances Given 

Associates 2,809.84 1,102.48 

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management : 
personnel or their relatives 

Loans/ Advances Received 

Jointly Controlled /entities and ventures - 1,352.87 

Retention Money 

Jointly Controlled /entities and ventures 12.41 303.16 

Ill. Related Party balances outstanding at the end of the year as follows 

{ % in Lakhs) 

2021-22 | 2020-21 

Trade Receivables 

Jointly Controlled/entities and ventures - 

Outstanding Receivables 

Associates 473.65 | 3,283.49 

Jointly Controlled/entities and ventures 12.41 4,668.00 

Key Management Personnel 49.33 55.19 

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management 3,590.79 | 4,763.07 
personnel or their relatives 

Outstanding Payables 

Associates: - 

Jointly Controlled /entities and ventures - 1,822.96 

Key Management Personnel 0.48 1.60 

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management 153.02 174.70 
personnel or their relatives 

Bank Guarantees 
Jointly Controlled /entities and ventures 5,822.85 | 8,900.00         
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Note No. 4 The outstanding loans and advances which were granted to Nama Investments Limited and 

NNR Infra Investments Private Limited in which the company’s directors have interest are realizable at 

the carrying values in the books of accounts though both these companies have been incurring losses and 

accumulated losses exceeded the net worth of these companies, The closing balance as at March 31, 2022 
with respect to Nama Investments Limited and NNR Infra Investments Limited are > 3075.11 Lakhs and * 

362.87 Lakhs respectively. 

iii) Barasat - Krishnagar Expressways Limited, a subsidiary company entered into an 

agreement with NHAI, for developing road project in the state of West Bengal. The construction 
work is delayed due to pending approvals and right of way to be provided by NHAI. The 
company had issued notice for termination of the project to NHAI on 31st December, 2015. 
NHAI had also issued notice for terminations of the project vide its letter dated 3rd May, 2016 
and company had replied that the notice is not valid. Both Company and NHAI appointed 
arbitrators. The Arbitration proceeding are in progress with SAROD. 

The borrowings from secured lenders have declared as Non-performing assets by the lender. 

Interest on related borrowings have not been provided for- 

Cost incurred on the project up to 31-3-2022 at Rs. 5,81,79,22,202/- instead of writing -off to 
profit & loss has been accounted as NHAI claims receivable under the head “Other Current 
Financial Assets. 

iV) Ranchi Expressways Limited, a subsidiary company, NHAI terminated the Concession 
Agreement on 30-01-2020 without following the termination procedure laid down in the 

Concession Agreement. The company has submitted the claim with NHAI. Arbitration 

Proceedings have also commenced. CBI has filed FIR against the Company, Promoters and 
Directors on 12-03-2019. Subsequently, the Enforcement Directorate has raided the premises 

of the company on 11-06-2022 and investigation is under progress,Cost incurred on the project 

upto 3lst March, 2022 Rs.1338,73,49,514/- instead of writing-off, has been accounted as 
claims receivable under the head * Other Financial Assets. 

V) Rajauli - Bakhtiyarpur Expressways Limited (RBEL), a Subsidiary company was awarded 

the work of Four Laning of Rajauli-Bakhtiyarpur Section of NH-31 from KM 47.723 to KM 
154.500 on Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis. As the project of the 

company has been foreclosed with mutual consent, cost incurred on the project up-to 31st 
March, 2022 Rs.8,15,39,853/- instead of writing-off, has been accounted as claims receivable 
under the head “ Other Current Assets” The company is expecting the reliasation of the 

expenses incurred on the project. 

VI) Madurai —- Tuticorin Expressways Limited NHAI has levied penalty of Rs.172.66 Crs for 
delay in undertaking of Periodic maintenance works. The company has commenced Periodic 
Maintenance works. 

VI) Trichy - Thanjavir Expressways Limited NHAI has Ievied penalty of Rs.49.79 Crs for 

delay in undertaking of Periodic maintenance works. The company has commenced Periodic 
Maintenance works. 
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Segment Reporting 
The details of primary segment information for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 
2021 are given below: 
The Group is currently focused on three business segments Construction, Power and Toll 

  

  

Collection 

{ % In Lakhs) 

As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Segement Revenue 

Construction 64,941.63 68,529.73 

Energy - - 

Toll Highways 19,685.19 15,766.91 

Others 10,187.97 6,619.59 

Less : Inter Segment Revenue - 

Total 94,814.79 90,916.23 

Segment Results before Interest and Taxes 

Construction (5,953.70) (3,008.21) 

Energy - - 

Toll Highways (1 804.69) (692.11) 

Others (933.93) (290,58) | 

Total (8,692.33) (3,990.89) 

Leas ; Interest Expenses 3,137.00 24,570.33 

Profit Before Tax (10,847.04) (28,561.22) 

Segment Assets* 

Construction 4,79,114.S7 4,65,480,83 

Energy - - 

Toll Highways 4,32,898.43 4,27,795.54 

Others 11 710.23 19,225.47 

Less : Inter Segment Elimination (3.74,361.46) (3,79,039.05) 
549,361.77 5,33,462.79 

Segment Liabilities** 

Construction 5,18,989.52 5,10,794.10 

Energy - - 

Toll Highways 5 31 634.47 5 78 555.26 

Others 16,450.51 21,324.82 

Less : Inter Segment Elimination (3,74,361.46) (3,79,039.05) 

6,92,713.04 7,31,635.13   

  

  

  

  

        
  

* Segment Assets excludes current and non-current investments, deferred tax assets 
** Segment Liabilities excludes deferred tax liabilities 
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2.43 In respect of a Subsidiary, Madhucon Natural Resources Limited, Singapore, the audit of 
the subsidiary is not completed, there are no transactions from the inception and the 
effect on consolidated financial statements is negligible. Hence not considered for 
consolidation, 

2.44 Some of the Bank Accounts in Holding Company at closed projects which are in dormant 
and have not been reconciled due to non-availability of statements 

2.45 Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/re-classified to conform to the figures 
of the current year. 

In terms of our report attached 

For P.Murali & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN ; 0072578 

A.Krishna Rao N. Seethaiah Mohammad Shafi 
Partner Managing Director Whole-time Director 
Membership Number 020085 DIN-00784491 DIN-07178265 

Place : Hyderabad K. Venkateswarlu D. Malla Reddy 
Date ; 28 May, 2022 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

ACS: 9559 
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MADHUCON 
MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 

CIN: L74210TG1990PLC11114 
Reg off: Madhucon Complex, 1-7-70, Jublipura, Khammam - 507002 

Tel: 040-235569001, Fax: 040-23556005, Website: www.madhucon.com 

UWe hereby record my/our presence al the 32™ annual general meeting of the company being heki on 29" September 2022 
at 3:00 P.M, at its registered office. 

Member Folio/DP ID- Client ID No.  Memiber /Proxy’s name in Block Letters Signature of MembeciProxy 

  

Regd. Fotio/ Client ID: 
“Applicable for mambers holding share in Etectronic Form. 
Note to be signed and handed over at the enterence of the Meeting Venue 

  

MADHUCON 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 
CIN: L74210TG1990PLC11114 

Rag off: Madhucon Complex, 1-7-70, Jublpura, Khammam - 507002 
Tet: 040-235569001, Fax: 040-23556005, Website: www.madhucon.com 

FORM NO.MGT-11 
PROXY FORM 

Pursuant to Section 105/65) of the Companies Act 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Manageenent and Administration) uses 2014) 

  

Uwe, being the member (5) Of oo. eeseeea shares of the above names Company hereby appoint: 

  

As mylour proxy to attend and vote (on 2 poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 32 Annual General Meeting of the 
Company, be held on Thursday, the 29" day of September, 2022 at 3:00 P.M_ at Registered Office: Madhucon Complex, 1- 
7-70, Jublipura, Khammam = 807 002 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

Resolution No. Resolutions Vote™* 
Ordinary Business For | Against 

To receive, consider and adopt Annual Accounts FY ended 31st March, 
1.Ordinary Resolution | 2922 

8) The Audited Financial Statements of the Company in IND AS format 
for the financial year ended 31° March, 2022 together with the 
Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors’ thereon; and 

b) The Audited Consolkiated Financial Statements of the Company in 

IND AS format for the financial year ended 31 March, 2022 together 
with the report of the Auditors’ thereon 
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MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 

CIN: L74210TG1990PLC11114 
Reg off: Madhucon Complex, 1-7-70, Jublipura, Khammam - 507002 

Tek F; www 
To appoint a director in place of Mr. Mohammad Shafi (DIN; 07178265), who 

       

T 

Notes: 

1. The proxy duly completed should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 (forty 
eight) hours before the time fixed for hodding the Meeting. 

2. Aproxy need not be a member of the Company. 
3. A-person can act as proxy on behalf of the members not exceeding 50 (Fifty) and holding in the aggregate not 

more than 10% (Ten percent) of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding 
more than 10% (ten percent) of tofa! share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single 
person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any ofher person or shareholder, 

4, “This is only optional, Please put an 'X in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If 

you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Agains? column blank against any or all the resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in 
the manner as he/she thinks appropriate, 

5. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes. 
6. In the case of joint holders, the Signature of any one hokier wil be sufficient, but names of all the joint holders 

should be stated. 
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